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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good morning. As

          3  anyone knows on this Committee, I always am very

          4  punctual, unfortunately so many things are happening

          5  today. We have the First Lady, and I know that the

          6  Bronx Delegation and the Borough President will have

          7  to be running back to the Bronx because she is in

          8  town.

          9                 For those of us from Brooklyn, this

         10  Sunday we are very proud as Puerto Ricans because

         11  this will be our sixth annual Brooklyn Puerto Rican

         12  Day Parade, and right now, I was downstairs with the

         13  Speaker in giving the official proclamation of the

         14  Council to the Puerto Rican Day Parade officials,

         15  the Queen and the President. So, I apologize for

         16  starting a little late. I assure you this will not

         17  happen again. It is the first time in 15 years that

         18  I have been in the Council that I presided over a

         19  hearing that started late.

         20                 Good morning, and welcome to today's

         21  oversight hearing on the reductions and phasing out

         22  of the department's services and staff at North

         23  Central Bronx Hospital.

         24                 For the record, I want to say that

         25  this is not a new issue. I first heard rumors that
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          2  HHC allegedly had plans to close North Central Bronx

          3  Hospital back in March. I informed the Council

          4  Members from the Bronx of what I heard, and on April

          5  14th, a newspaper article by Juan Gonzales of the

          6  Daily News started the rumors all over again.

          7                 On April 15th, the Speaker, Peter

          8  Vallone, Council Member June Eisland and myself,

          9  sent a letter to President Luis Marcos of the Health

         10  and Hospitals Corporation, asking him to explain if

         11  there is any truth to the rumors that HHC plans to

         12  close North Central Bronx Hospital. Dr. Marcos

         13  denied the rumors in his response letter.

         14                 Recently there have been further

         15  allegations regarding the transfer of services and

         16  staff from North Central Bronx Hospital, the Jacobi

         17  Hospital. Resolution 905 was introduced by Council

         18  Member June Eisland calling for a hearing on this

         19  matter. Therefore, I am holding this hearing in

         20  order to get the facts from the Health and Hospitals

         21  Corporation, and I must say I thank you and I see

         22  that the President of the Health and Hospitals

         23  Corporation, Dr. Luis Marcos, personally is here on

         24  that invitation. And I also want to acknowledge,

         25  although I will be leading off, I want to also take
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          2  the time to say that I am really honored, and he

          3  doesn't know how proud I am because when I first

          4  came here in 1985 to the City Council, the

          5  distinguished Borough President of the Bronx

          6  Fernando Ferrer, was the Council Member representing

          7  a district, and as a matter of fact, if I remember

          8  correctly, I was honored to serve under his

          9  leadership when he was the Chairman of this

         10  Committee and I was a member, and for me it is

         11  really an honor to have him come back as Borough

         12  President from the Bronx, and now Victor Robles, the

         13  little guy from Brooklyn, presides over the same

         14  committee that he set the tone.

         15                 I want to make one thing perfectly

         16  clear. My main concern is that the people, I repeat,

         17  the people of the Bronx in the area around North

         18  Central Bronx Hospital, gets the proper medical and

         19  preventive health services, that they are treated

         20  with respect, and having said this, I would like to

         21  introduce the prime sponsor of Resolution 905 and

         22  the Council Member representing the district which

         23  includes North Central Bronx Hospital, the Chair of

         24  the Council's Land Use Committee, my colleague and

         25  friend, Council Member June Eisland.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

          3  very much, Chairman Robles, and friend Robles. Let

          4  me say at the outset that Victor Robles sent up the

          5  flairs and the warning signs about this early on and

          6  he and I have been in constant contact and very much

          7  appreciate the scheduling of this hearing, first of

          8  all, as quickly as you did, and during the summer,

          9  this was not something that could really wait until

         10  the fall, we all felt.

         11                 I also want to say that my Borough

         12  President and my friend, Freddie Ferrer, has been

         13  extraordinarily proactive on this subject, not just

         14  at this summertime area of concern but well before

         15  that, and we have worked together and will continue

         16  to work together to bring the best medical care to

         17  people who are in the catchment area of North

         18  Central Bronx and actually throughout the entire

         19  borough, and that is really the purpose of this

         20  hearing. I am the Council Member representing NCB,

         21  but the concern goes far beyond my constituency and

         22  it really goes to the entire borough.

         23                 As I have said before, I am really

         24  concerned that cutbacks and transfers of services,

         25  the total elimination and the transferring of
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          2  certain departments to Jacobi are really

          3  self-fulfilling prophecies for doom for NCB, and

          4  that can't be allowed to happen. The fact of the

          5  matter that the people that live in this area and

          6  use the hospitals are not diminishing, there are not

          7  less young people in the area, there aren't less

          8  uninsured people in the area, there aren't less

          9  struggling people in the area, there are more. So,

         10  again, removing services really causes the

         11  self-fulfilling prophecy to happen. The fact is I

         12  can't understand how you pull out the pediatric

         13  services when statistics show a 36 percent increase

         14  in the last eight months. There is no reason why a

         15  family should have to cross the Bronx to the other

         16  side of the Borough to get pediatric care.

         17                 How can we be justifying the

         18  elimination of the asthma services? Asthma is

         19  growing in the North Bronx, not decreasing. I hope

         20  these questions will be answered. I hope points will

         21  be made not to diminish this hospital, to increase

         22  the services in this hospital.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Before

         25  I proceed with calling the first witness, let me
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          2  just say that because I believe that those of us

          3  were proven to be elected, every day we try to

          4  encourage and motivate and when I see young people,

          5  they come first, there are two populations that my

          6  dear mother, may she rest in peace, and my

          7  grandmother and my grandpa used to always tell me

          8  that I had to always look out for, one, was our

          9  seniors, because has God has blessed them with many

         10  years of experience, and then our young people, to

         11  try to always encourage them.

         12                 So, for those for whom I am about to

         13  introduce and those who are sitting in the audience,

         14  especially the young people, I want you to

         15  understand, if you are impressed with what you see

         16  here, and when you get impressed when I call upon

         17  the distinguished Borough President of the Bronx,

         18  and when you are impressed when the President of the

         19  Health and Hospitals Corporation comes before this,

         20  before us, let me tell you that we are no different

         21  from you. And you could be here or you could be

         22  there, it is up to you, the world is before you, it

         23  all depends upon how much you want it and you

         24  desire.

         25                 So, let me then take the time out to
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          2  introduce some young people who are in interim

          3  programs. One, is the Council's interim programs,

          4  Megan McDermit, Andrea LaPorte, they are from the

          5  City Council's program. And I believe, if I remember

          6  correctly, one is visiting us from California. So,

          7  welcome. California is nice, but I love New York

          8  City.

          9                 And then the other group of young

         10  people and I see that some are wearing shirts, is

         11  the young scholarship program, interim program,

         12  within the Deputy Mayor of Human Services and

         13  Education of the Honorable Ninfa Segarra's office.

         14  If you are here, you are on the balcony, welcome to

         15  City Hall, and I hope you enjoy these proceedings.

         16                 Now, if you watch the Congress of the

         17  United States, when the President comes to speak

         18  before the joint session, the speaker gets up and

         19  very brief and to the point says I have the high

         20  honor and the distinguished pleasure of introducing

         21  the President of the United States. Well, today I

         22  have the high honor and distinguished privilege and

         23  honor to introduce the President of the Borough of

         24  the Bronx, the Honorable Fernando Ferrer.

         25                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman. Good morning.

          3                 Let me first tell you how much I

          4  appreciate your extraordinary generosity, just now

          5  and a moment ago in introducing me. And let me

          6  further say that although you were kind in citing my

          7  past service in this Council and as its Chair of its

          8  Committee on Health, this Committee is in

          9  extraordinarily good hands, and let me commend your

         10  leadership in convening this important hearing,

         11  Council Member Eisland, in introducing Resolution

         12  904 and the members of the Committee on Health and

         13  those other members of the City Council who are

         14  interested in the future of North Central Bronx

         15  Hospital.

         16                 I am Fernando Ferrer, President of

         17  the Borough of the Bronx. I am here today to discuss

         18  the future of NCB. NCB was founded in 1976 by the

         19  Health and Hospitals Corporation. Since its

         20  inception, NCB has been a vital part of the

         21  community it serves in the Northwest Bronx. NCB

         22  helps to fulfill the Health and Hospital

         23  Corporation's mission of providing quality and

         24  affordable health care to people, regardless of

         25  ability to pay.
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          2                 Many of NCB's patients are uninsured

          3  and rely on this community hospital to meet their

          4  health care needs and indeed it is their family

          5  doctor.

          6                 However, the future of NCB appears to

          7  be uncertain, and I hope that this hearing will

          8  clarify the Corporations' plans for this facility

          9  going forward.

         10                 I have tried on numerous occasions to

         11  meet with Dr. Luis Marcos, the President of HHC over

         12  the past two years to clarify this matter. This year

         13  I invited Dr. Marcos to speak at a special session

         14  of the Bronx Borough Services Cabinet, scheduled, I

         15  might add, at his convenience. However, Joseph

         16  Orlando, the Senior Vice President for the North

         17  Bronx Network represented him.

         18                 At that time Mr. Orlando said, and I

         19  quote, "there are no plans to close North Central

         20  Bronx Hospital." Mr. Orlando spoke on a shift in the

         21  method of providing services. I am interesting in

         22  seeing a plan for this shift.

         23                 Answers that I have received from

         24  other HHC representatives regarding the future of

         25  NCB, have been vague, if not misleading.
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          2                 There are several concerns that I

          3  have raised repeatedly with HHC officials and which

          4  will hopefully be addressed at this hearing.

          5                 First, I would like to point out that

          6  NCB is at a distinct disadvantage within the HHC

          7  system because there is no full-time on-site senior

          8  executive dedicated to ensuring that NCB remains a

          9  viable facility.

         10                 The Senior Vice President for the

         11  North Bronx Health Care Network, of which NCB is a

         12  part, is based at Jacobi Medical Center. The Senior

         13  Executive in charge of NCB, who is the chief

         14  operating officer, is also based at Jacobi. In

         15  comparison, there is a full-time chief operating

         16  officer on-site at Metropolitan Hospital, which as

         17  you know is in the Generations Plus Health Care

         18  Network of which Lincoln Hospital is also a member.

         19                 Second, utilization of medical

         20  services has been on the decline at NCB. This

         21  appears to be, as Council Member Eisland pointed out

         22  earlier, a self-fulfilling prophecy. I prefer to

         23  take Mr. Orlando's testimony to my Borough Services

         24  Cabinet at face value. I have known him and I like

         25  Joe Orlando. However, actions taken in recent months
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          2  contribute to the community's feeling that this

          3  facility is eventually slated to close.

          4                 HHC has been closing beds in several

          5  units. Inpatient rehabilitation services have been

          6  eliminated. The Pediatric Inpatient Ward and the

          7  Asthma Unit has been closed. Obstetric and

          8  gynecological services have been cut. The Medicine

          9  Ward has been limited to 60 beds, down from 90 just

         10  a few months ago.

         11                 If services are being cut, there is a

         12  concomitant decrease that is obvious in utilization.

         13                 The decline in providing services at

         14  NCB also impacts on those who keep the facility up

         15  and running, the employees who are the backbone of

         16  this institution.

         17                 Three years ago 2,700 people were

         18  employed at NCB. Today there are only 1,200

         19  employees, fewer than half. Doctors, nurses and

         20  housekeepers have been laid off without

         21  replacements.

         22                 Before HHC makes any more decisions

         23  with regard to the services at NCB, several other

         24  issues must be addressed. We need more detailed

         25  information on HHC's plans to increase inpatient and
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          2  outpatient use at NCB. We need a community health

          3  assessment for this facility's catchment area. This

          4  would help identify the health care needs of this

          5  population and whether the facility is actually

          6  meeting those needs.

          7                 How is HHC dealing with displaced

          8  workers? Are retraining and transfers being offered?

          9                 With the decline in services at NCB,

         10  where are the uninsured patients who use that

         11  facility being treated? If NCB closes, where will

         12  these patients go?

         13                 I have asked HHC in the past, and I

         14  again ask HHC today for an increased commitment of

         15  making NCB a viable institution. To make NCB a

         16  viable medical facility in the era of managed care

         17  requires not just quality health services, but a

         18  marketing campaign to make potential patients aware

         19  of those services.

         20                 And that individual who is in charge

         21  of marketing efforts at NCB, has to be a recognized

         22  professional in health care and in marking, as well

         23  as communications.

         24                 I received a copy of petitions sent

         25  to Dr. Marcos and Mayor Giuliani recently. Hundreds
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          2  of community residents signed in support of keeping

          3  NCB in operation, reinstituting closed and cut back

          4  services, and providing services to a population

          5  that relies on the public hospital system, our

          6  City's hospital system, to receive its health care

          7  services.

          8                 It is imperative that we not lose

          9  sight of HHC's mission of serving those in need,

         10  regardless of their ability to pay.

         11                 The Bronx deserves a quality public

         12  hospital system, and NCB is a key component of that

         13  system. In order for NCB to fulfill its mission, I

         14  call on the Health and Hospitals Corporation to not

         15  only keep the facility open, but also restore cut

         16  services to adequately provide for the residents of

         17  the Northwest Bronx.

         18                 Before I close, Mr. Chairman, and

         19  members of the Committee, a moment of history may

         20  well be in order.

         21                 NCB was born out of the closing of

         22  Fordham Hospital. You might recall that a generation

         23  in fact ago. When Fordham Hospital was closed, there

         24  was a promise to rebuild a hospital at its site,

         25  that was a promise never fulfilled. NCB was its
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          2  replacement. But at the same time that Fordham

          3  closed, just a couple of years later really,

          4  Morrisania closed as well. Two major public

          5  hospitals in the Bronx, replaced by NCB. What we are

          6  witnessing today is the atrophy of a major needed

          7  health care institution in the Northwest Bronx and

          8  we cannot and must not permit that to happen.

          9                 I want to thank you very, very much

         10  for convening this important hearing, thank the

         11  members of the Committee for your attention. This is

         12  important, not only to the people of the Northwest

         13  Bronx, but this is yet another step along the road

         14  that was seen just a year and a half ago with the

         15  attempt to privatize Coney Island Hospital, to cut

         16  back services which I believe are in ultimate

         17  violation of the law, the final bull work against

         18  cutting needed health care services for the people

         19  of the community is this Committee on Health, and I

         20  appreciate your leadership.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Borough President.

         23                 I just want to, since I see Dr.

         24  Marcos sitting here, I want to make sure I set the

         25  record straight on what you said, so that if by

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  chance you are not here when he is testifying, I

          3  want to let him know what are some of the questions

          4  I will be asking.

          5                 But before I do that, let me also

          6  acknowledge the members of the Committee that have

          7  joined us. First, of course, your colleague from the

          8  Bronx that I have served with both in the Assembly

          9  and in the Council, Council Member Jose Rivera. The

         10  Council Member when he first came here who always

         11  reminded me that it is not just Manhattan, he is

         12  also part of the Bronx, Council Member Phil Reed. My

         13  distinguished colleague from Manhattan who has big

         14  shoes to fill but is doing an extremely excellent

         15  job, Council Member Chris Quinn. Of course, my

         16  sister who I serve on the Steering Committee with

         17  whom we know, Council Member June Eisland, and of

         18  course, my colleague, also your colleague from the

         19  Bronx who is also a member of this Committee,

         20  Council Member Pedro Espada. We don't discriminate,

         21  the ranking minority member of this Committee,

         22  distinguished member of the other side of the aisle,

         23  my friend and colleague republican from Staten

         24  Island, Council Member Jim Oddo. And I didn't leave

         25  anybody out.
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          2                 Mr. Borough President, I want to make

          3  sure that I heard something that if it is true I

          4  think we need to hear why.

          5                 In your page three you point out

          6  something which is interesting. Are you saying to me

          7  that at that particular facility -- let me say this,

          8  that is an acute care facility, correct?

          9                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         11                 That in the absence of an executive

         12  director, the chief operating officer who is

         13  supposed to be the overseer of the day-to-day

         14  operations of that facility is not physically housed

         15  at that facility; is that what I am hearing?

         16                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: He is not a

         17  full time on-site senior executive at that facility.

         18  In fact that individual is based at Jacobi Medical

         19  Center.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And the other

         21  thing that I want to make sure --

         22                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: By the way,

         23  Mr. Chairman, I did compare it to another network,

         24  Generations Plus, which covers two acute care

         25  hospitals, among other freestanding facilities,
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          2  Lincoln and Metropolitan, the on-site senior

          3  executive for Metropolitan is full-time at

          4  Metropolitan.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The reason I ask

          6  that, because this Committee did tour those networks

          7  this summer and before and I am aware of that.

          8                 Let me ask you another question that

          9  based upon your testimony. And I believe, with all

         10  due respect, whether one likes it or not the fact is

         11  that when one is elected, whether you agree or

         12  disagree, I believe it says "government of the

         13  people, by the people and for the people" and so as

         14  an elected official and the highest elected

         15  official, and while I don't intend to move out of

         16  Brooklyn and move out to Nassau or Suffolk or those

         17  counties or others choose to, and that is what

         18  America is about, you would be considered a county

         19  executive, a very powerful person. Yet, you say that

         20  you asked for certain information that pertains to

         21  that facility, so that as the chief operating

         22  officer of the Borough, in order to assess and look

         23  at the status or the state of the borough, as you do

         24  every year in your State of the Borough Message, you

         25  can effectively represent the people of the Bronx,
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          2  there is information that you requested among them,

          3  I believe you said the plan, and am I hearing that

          4  as of this moment you have not received from the

          5  Health and Hospitals Corporation that documentation;

          6  is that what I heard?

          7                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: Indeed you

          8  did.

          9                 You may infer that from my testimony,

         10  but even more, Mr. Chairman, the City Charter

         11  provides, that is the presiding officer of not only

         12  the Borough Board but the Borough Services Cabinet,

         13  I set the agenda, set the calendar, and top ranking

         14  City officials are required to attend the Borough

         15  Services Cabinet. That is a provision of the City

         16  Charter. Mostly honored in the breach of late, and

         17  it is not as though we didn't jump through hoops of

         18  fire to get Dr. Marcos there. In fact, I repeat in

         19  my testimony that a meeting was set up, called,

         20  called to order, with the full expectation that Dr.

         21  Marcos would be there. At the last minute he

         22  cancelled, and that is unfortunate. We still look

         23  forward to having him come. We reiterated the

         24  invitation after he abruptly cancelled his

         25  appearance of the meeting, but did send Mr. Orlando,
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          2  we would like to have him, we still reiterate our

          3  invitation to comply with the law and the City

          4  Charter and appear before the Borough Services

          5  Cabinet.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Knowing that you

          7  are on a tight schedule, and I ask my colleagues,

          8  since I do see Dr. Luis Marcos, and I really want to

          9  get to the answers and statuses and perhaps I can

         10  say this: Mr. Borough President, this Chair, as you

         11  know, when I first got appointed I did visit you. I

         12  made a commitment to work with you and the people of

         13  the Bronx, when it comes to health issues, and I am

         14  prepared to still extend that courtesy to you, not

         15  that you need a Council Member from Brooklyn just

         16  because he is the chair of a committee, but I

         17  believe that this is not about individuals, this is

         18  about health need and health services. And so long

         19  as I preside, and I may be a lame duck, but I am not

         20  a dead duck, and I am still going to be around for

         21  the next two years, wherever I could be helpful as

         22  the chairman of this Committee and my colleagues and

         23  I am prepared to assist, there are certain things I

         24  want to say for the record.

         25                 This has no reflection upon I am for
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          2  this one or I am against that one, there are certain

          3  things that are non-negotiable, and as an elected

          4  official, one of the things that I have always said

          5  over and over, whether you like me or you don't like

          6  me, so long as the people who elected me, I

          7  represent the people. And as the Borough President

          8  of the Bronx and the Charter, which all of us take

          9  an oath of office, I don't feel comfortable when I

         10  hear things that I believe you are entitled to

         11  receive, whether you may not like what you receive,

         12  but you are entitled to it.

         13                 So, I will pursue that even after the

         14  hearing. I believe if they cannot justify why they

         15  cannot submit that, I mean you can't take an oath

         16  and say you defend the law and then choose what law

         17  to enforce and what law not to enforce.

         18                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: It's a

         19  little like the Ten Commandments, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

         21                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: It is all

         22  ten or nothing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, that may be

         24  so but I also have ten commandments, and that ten

         25  commandments doesn't get broken or changed. It is
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          2  set in stone. And so I will deal with that.

          3                 Do any of my colleagues, before I

          4  excuse the Borough President, have questions?

          5                 Council Member Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Welcome, Mr.

          7  Borough President.

          8                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: Thank you,

          9  Council Member.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: As the Chairman

         11  said in his introduction in his unique way, I am the

         12  Council Member that represents the mid-island

         13  portion of Staten Island, and included in my

         14  district is Seaview Hospital, the only HHC facility

         15  on Staten Island, and I am not satisfied, frankly,

         16  with the relationship Seaview has with the Brooklyn

         17  Staten Island Network, and I understand that NCB is

         18  part of the North Bronx Health Care Network, and in

         19  your testimony you laid out some criticisms of that

         20  network.

         21                 I was just interested in any other

         22  general thoughts you have about the Network system,

         23  the comments about its effectiveness or

         24  ineffectiveness. Again, I am not satisfied with the

         25  network system in my district, I was just wondering
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          2  if you have any general comments on this system as a

          3  whole.

          4                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: Council

          5  member, in having had some perspective with Health

          6  and Hospitals Corporation going back 15 or so years,

          7  I have seen different management styles from

          8  president to president and that's fine, not my job

          9  to critique their management style. I look at

         10  outcomes. I am dissatisfied with the outcome in this

         11  particular part of the world. The outcomes for NCB

         12  do not inspire confidence in that hospital's

         13  viability going forward. That is the issue.

         14                 By the way, there is another thing as

         15  well. These networks are set up with anomalies from

         16  network to network. They are not all the same, they

         17  don't all run the same. That concerns me deeply.

         18  There appears to be very little management

         19  uniformity in these networks, now that is a critique

         20  I suppose I have of a management style, but again it

         21  relates to outcome.

         22                 What you were pointing out in a

         23  relationship with Seaview, and Seaview has long

         24  been, when I was privileged to chair this Committee,

         25  long been a stepchild of the system. NCB was almost
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          2  designed to be that way for a whole host of historic

          3  reasons. But that doesn't mean that we have to

          4  accept them, it doesn't mean that people who go

          5  there, remembering that one out of every four New

          6  Yorkers, one out of every four, has no health

          7  insurance. The individual standing next to that one

          8  out of four is worried about his or her health

          9  insurance. That is in jeopardy and standing at the

         10  brink.

         11                 Were it not for a network of public

         12  hospitals in this City, they would have nowhere to

         13  go, nothing on which to rely, and when there is

         14  catastrophic illness in the family, the need for an

         15  emergency room, the need for acute care, where do

         16  you go?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If I may, Mr.

         18  Borough President, I don't see any other questions,

         19  may I ask that you have staff from your office who

         20  could stay behind, and when it is all said and done,

         21  I welcome any comments or suggestions or things that

         22  you believe this Committee should be pursuing and

         23  addressing with the Corporation in your absence and

         24  I extend that to you, sir.

         25                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: I am deeply
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          2  grateful, Mr. Chairman. One has been directed to

          3  remain for the duration of the hearing. I again want

          4  to thank you and Council Member Eisland for

          5  introducing this resolution, and the members of the

          6  Committee for your attention and your leadership.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you so

          8  much.

          9                 Mr. Borough President, I think

         10  Council Member Eisland would like to say something.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I just wanted

         12  to make a further comment, because our distinguished

         13  chair has asked for you to have a staff member to

         14  stay here, staff member Judy Farrell, and others who

         15  have assisted her have really worked I would say

         16  full time to develop the concerns to track what has

         17  been going on. They have done the kind of staff work

         18  that you can be very proud of and sometimes staff

         19  work is overlooked, so I just wanted to mention that

         20  there is a major commitment that has been noted by

         21  the people of the Bronx, and not only by yourself

         22  but through your direction to your staff, your staff

         23  has been great.

         24                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FERRER: Thank you

         25  very much, Council Member. They are a fine team, and
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          2  I, too, am very proud of them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

          4                 Let me again say that today must be

          5  my day for introducing presidents. I have now the

          6  high honor and privilege of introducing and asking

          7  to come forward the President of the Health and

          8  Hospitals Corporation, the Honorable Dr. Luis

          9  Marcos. And if you have anyone you want to join you,

         10  sir, please feel free.

         11                 Let me say, while Dr. Marcos is

         12  getting set, I ask the audience, although this is a

         13  big chamber, but unfortunately any discussions,

         14  please take it outside because it distracts

         15  attention, and this is a serious matter. So,

         16  Sergeant-At-Arms, any discussions, please have them

         17  go outside of the chambers.

         18                 Dr. Marcos, again, I want to

         19  personally thank you for accepting my invitation to

         20  join us, and you personally appearing. I know you

         21  have a prepared statement, which I will have you

         22  read, if you do. I understand that you have

         23  presentations and questions, but why don't we then,

         24  as you begin, why don't we introduce who is with you

         25  so that we know who is at the table with you and
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          2  then proceed as you would like, sir. And again,

          3  thank you.

          4                 DR. MARCOS: Thank you.

          5                 Good morning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good morning --

          7  well, good afternoon.

          8                 DR. MARCOS: Good afternoon. It is

          9  really a pleasure for us to be here today because it

         10  is for us an opportunity to answer your questions

         11  and certainly clarify the many misunderstandings

         12  relating to the North Central Bronx Hospital.

         13                 I don't have a prepared statement,

         14  because I wanted to give an opportunity for as many

         15  questions as possible, but I would like to briefly

         16  address some of the concerns that the Borough

         17  President of the Bronx, Mr. Fernando Ferrer, has

         18  raised.

         19                 Let me start by saying that I have a

         20  great admiration for the Borough President. I go

         21  back to 1978 when with his help, and certainly he

         22  was instrumental in instituting a law in the City by

         23  which every emergency room had to have interpreters

         24  to --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That was a
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          2  Ferrer/Robles. Go ahead.

          3                 DR. MARCOS: Exactly. Exactly.

          4                 And interpreters saw that patients

          5  who do not speak English could be understood by the

          6  physicians and the nurses that treated them, and

          7  since that time, and this is 1978, so we go back

          8  many years, I have met many times with the Borough

          9  President, it has always been rewarding to meet with

         10  him and I am very happy to meet with him any time.

         11  It happens that the day when we were going to have a

         12  meeting about NCB, I really could not attend, but I

         13  did send two corporation officers who are here with

         14  me today who really know even more than I do about

         15  what actually is happening there in terms of the

         16  day-to-day operations. And this is Mr. Joseph

         17  Orlando, he is the Senior Vice President for the

         18  Network, and Executive Director of NCB and Jacobi,

         19  and Laray Brown, who is the Senior Vice President

         20  for Planning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, Mr. President

         22  before you proceed, let me make sure, maybe as we go

         23  along maybe I can dispose with certain things.

         24                 For example, I thought I heard you

         25  say that you are prepared to meet with the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  distinguished Borough President, and may I suggest

          3  that maybe, and I would like to know, maybe your

          4  staff can reach out to his staff and set a mutual

          5  date and time where you can personally, and bring

          6  your senior staff people, so that you will meet with

          7  him personally; is that fair?

          8                 DR. MARCOS: Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And will you let

         10  my office know when that will take place?

         11                 DR. MARCOS: We will. We certainly

         12  will.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         14                 DR. MARCOS: Another point that the

         15  Borough President made I think was in reference to a

         16  question about Staten Island, but he mentioned

         17  outcomes, and I have to say, because I feel this

         18  very strongly, that the public hospitals in the City

         19  have never been better than today, never. Whether

         20  you look at quality of care and measure that quality

         21  through the Joint Commission test, through incidents

         22  that we must report to the State, through any

         23  measure that you -- waiting times, objective

         24  measures, the Corporation has never provided better

         25  care than today.
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          2                 From a financial point of view. As

          3  you know, for the first time in the history of this

          4  Corporation, and for the past four years, '96, '97,

          5  '98 and '99, we have ended the year after paying

          6  all of our bills, every bill, including Con Edison,

          7  every bill, we have ended the year with money in the

          8  bank. Not a lot of money, but money in the bank for

          9  the first time in the history with no subsidy, zero

         10  subsidy from the City of New York, the State of New

         11  York or the federal government.

         12                 So, I think that we at the

         13  Corporation are very proud, because not only we

         14  provide better care, but we have credibility and

         15  accountability in the industry of health care which

         16  is very important when we need money to build new

         17  hospitals.

         18                 Because we do well financially, and

         19  also in terms of patient care, right now we have

         20  about $600 million in tax-free bonds that you are

         21  all welcome to buy, I really suggest that you do,

         22  when you buy bonds, HHC bonds, that allows the

         23  Corporation to maintain the hospitals and to build

         24  new hospitals, like we are going to build a new

         25  Kings County Hospital, we are in the process of
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          2  building a new Queens Hospital, we are maintaining

          3  our infrastructure, we are renovating Harlem, we are

          4  renovating NCB, $15 million in capital monies are

          5  going to NCB in the next two years, Bellevue, I mean

          6  every hospital is being maintained, not only safe

          7  but is being upgrading.

          8                 So, as far as outcome is concerned I

          9  have to say that certainly by any objective measure,

         10  by any objective measure we are doing very well.

         11                 Now, the issue of closing NCB has

         12  come up and I think that, you know, I guess some

         13  groups need some mission in life and they will grasp

         14  anything to pursue a goal of their own sense of

         15  mission, but there is no plan, there has never been

         16  plans to close North Central Bronx Hospital, like

         17  there has never been plans to close, as long as I am

         18  president of this Corporation, to close any

         19  hospital.

         20                 Now, what is happening in health

         21  care, as you know as well as I do, is that the

         22  population of the City has a choice of where they go

         23  for care. When I was training at Belleview at 1969

         24  and 1970, I remember that Bellevue was one of the

         25  public hospitals where only the people with Medicaid
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          2  will come through the public hospitals and welcome

          3  in the rest of the hospitals, like private

          4  hospitals, voluntary hospitals didn't want to treat

          5  men, women and children with Medicaid. So, the

          6  public hospitals were the only recipient of the

          7  Medicaid patients. Now that has changed. Medicaid

          8  has become like a phone card, and every hospital in

          9  the City is fighting to attract Medicaid patients.

         10                 So there is a competition out there.

         11                 Now, when you put together the

         12  competition for Medicaid patients, with the fact

         13  that there is a need for fewer people to be

         14  hospitalized, you know, people that suffer from

         15  AIDS, for instance, three, four years ago, for the

         16  most part they needed to be in the hospital at some

         17  point.

         18                 Today, thanks to the advancement in

         19  the medications that we can use to treat people with

         20  AIDS, most of the people with AIDS don't need to be

         21  hospitalized, they can be treated in the clinics.

         22  Trauma in the City is down, there are fewer

         23  accidents, there are fewer victims of bullet wounds,

         24  and other incidents that had people ending up in the

         25  hospital.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 In the City, because of managed care

          3  principles, there are more people, children, adults

          4  that gave primary care physicians, so they go to

          5  their primary care doctors, rather than waiting for

          6  their condition to get worse and end up in the

          7  emergency room.

          8                 So, that is also another variable

          9  that explains why there are fewer people in need of

         10  hospitalization.

         11                 And finally, the length of stay,

         12  meaning the average number of days that any patient

         13  spends in the hospital has dropped significantly in

         14  the City and in the public hospitals, has dropped

         15  from about eight days in 1992, to about five days

         16  and a half in 1999. So, if you have fewer people

         17  coming to the hospital, and then those people who

         18  are hospitalized spending in the hospital fewer

         19  days, you are going to have an excess of beds. There

         20  is no other way, and as I said before, because of

         21  good reasons.

         22                 I don't want to minimize the fact

         23  that we have lost some patients to the private

         24  sector, that is real, but we haven't lost that many

         25  either. Last year we treated about 1 million and a
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          2  half New Yorkers, different people. That is one in

          3  every five New Yorkers.

          4                 So, we may have lost some patients

          5  that decided to go to Mount Sinai or Presbyterian or

          6  Montefiore, but not that many.

          7                 Now, as we have fewer people in our

          8  beds, in the hospital beds, and this applies to all

          9  of the hospitals with very few exceptions, but it

         10  does apply to North Central Bronx, then we have the

         11  need for fewer employees. And I know how difficult

         12  that is, how painful that is, the idea of downsizing

         13  and reducing the workers and losing workers, but

         14  there is no other way, because if we don't have

         15  patients in the house, we don't need as many people.

         16                 Now, let me show you, and I don't

         17  want to -- because this is very important, we are

         18  saying in the Corporation that once the services are

         19  utilized by fewer patients, then after that happens

         20  we adjust the workforce to be able to use the

         21  workforce that we need and be able to pay our bills,

         22  right? Because the only money we have coming in is

         23  the money from the insurance company, Medicaid and

         24  Medicare included. So, it is after there is a drop

         25  in the business that we have a drop in the number of
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          2  employees. Not before like some groups like to say.

          3                 Now, when you look at these numbers

          4  at North Central Bronx, let me show you the

          5  inpatient census here.

          6                 Now, I would like to show you this

          7  because the hospital census is the area that more

          8  business brings. A patient in the hospital uses more

          9  employees and more workforce than anything else,

         10  much more than in a clinic or in the emergency room.

         11                 If you look at 1992, why don't you

         12  help me. Fiscal 1992. On the average there were 349

         13  patients in North Central Bronx Hospital on the

         14  average. Remember, this hospital was built for 456

         15  beds. So, in 1992 we had 349 patients. At that time,

         16  in 1992, we had a workforce of 1,685. Keep in mind

         17  those two numbers, 349 patients, 1,685 employees.

         18  Now, when you move to 1994, we had in the house 300

         19  on the average and 17 patients, on any given day.

         20  That means a drop of how many? Thirty-one patients a

         21  day, every day of the year, right? From 1992 down to

         22  1994. When you look at the workforce, in 1994 we had

         23  1,709 employees.

         24                 In other words, the number of

         25  employees in 1994 was higher than in 1992. The
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          2  number of patients in 1994 was lower than 1992. Now,

          3  what this means is that it is not like some groups

          4  like to say inaccurately, it is not that we dropped

          5  the number of employees and then the number of

          6  patients dropped because there are no doctors or

          7  nurses to see them, which is not the case, but we

          8  wait to see how many patients use the hospital and

          9  then we adjust the workforce to the business that

         10  that hospital produces, and I think that that is the

         11  present, fair and responsible way of running this

         12  Corporation, and that example that I show you here

         13  applies to every other hospital in this Corporation.

         14                 Now, in addition, like everybody else

         15  is doing in the industry of hospital care, we are

         16  consolidating, we are merging, we are working

         17  together. Years ago it would have been unthinkable

         18  to even imagine that institutions like New York

         19  Hospital will, with all of their competitiveness and

         20  all of their status and impetus for glory, that they

         21  will link, that they will combine with Presbyterian

         22  Hospital. No one could have predicted that.

         23  Certainly I would not have predicted that.

         24                 Who could have predicted that Mount

         25  Sinai was going to merge with New York University,
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          2  when they were competing they were two very

          3  different. Today these two organizations,

          4  Presbyterian, New York Hospital, Mount Sinai, New

          5  York University, and you look at others, like Beth

          6  Israel, they are all part of the same network.

          7                 Now, why do they do that? They are

          8  doing that like we are doing that, because you can

          9  save a lot of money, or at least substantial amounts

         10  of money, without impacting on the quality and the

         11  services that you provide, and the way we do that

         12  is, for instance, we utilize the new technology in

         13  laboratories, so rather than having a laboratory in

         14  every hospital, and I am not talking about tests,

         15  like blood tests, that we all need to have

         16  immediately in the emergency room. No, I am talking

         17  about tests that we used to send out, that tests may

         18  take a week, two weeks to get the results, we used

         19  to pay outside vendors to do that for us, or maybe

         20  we used to have different labs in different HHC

         21  hospitals do it. So, rather than having every

         22  hospital having all of these services, now because

         23  of their technology, we can have the results through

         24  computers where we can save and have one lab for

         25  maybe two, three or four hospitals. Rather than
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          2  having a Department of Personnel in every hospital,

          3  every clinic, we can have one large Department of

          4  Personnel in one network. Instead of having a

          5  purchasing department in each clinic, in each

          6  hospital, now we can have one purchasing department

          7  for a network.

          8                 So, to explain what we are trying to

          9  do with this network, again we are not doing

         10  something that the rest of the industry is not

         11  doing, we are doing the same thing, we are thinking

         12  a lot about how we are doing this, we do it

         13  carefully, we ensure that we don't lose patients in

         14  the meantime. Some of you may have seen some of the

         15  advertisements that we are starting out there with

         16  HHC, we are your public hospital, better than ever,

         17  we are going to be advertising for the particular

         18  hospitals and particular clinics, and we need your

         19  help. We need your help, we need the help of the

         20  advocates, we need the help of the community, we

         21  need the help of the unions and employees, to ensure

         22  that we put out a positive word about the hospital,

         23  so that the community believes in coming to our

         24  hospital, and the patients come in, you know, and

         25  with this I end.
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          2                 One of the worst things that can

          3  happen to the public hospitals in the City is to

          4  keep this negative publicity. When we have

          5  demonstrations in front of the hospitals, when we

          6  have advocates saying that the care stinks, the care

          7  is not good, when we have all this bad publicity,

          8  you know what it does to us? What it does is it

          9  scares the patients away. Because if I am sick or if

         10  you are sick, would you want to go to a hospital and

         11  have to cross a picket line to get care for

         12  yourself? Would you want to go to a hospital that

         13  everyone says the doctors are not good or the nurses

         14  are not good?

         15                 I would not want to do that, because

         16  when you are sick you are vulnerable and you want to

         17  go to the best place. So we need good publicity. We

         18  need your help to ensure that the good things that

         19  happen in the hospitals are publicized, so we don't

         20  keep losing patients.

         21                 The other problem with bad publicity

         22  is that we have difficulty hiring good people. Who

         23  wants to come to work to a place that every day they

         24  hear or they read in the paper that the place is not

         25  good? We may have all of the money in the world,
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          2  like we do now, we have good financial at HHC, good

          3  nurses don't want to come to work for us, good

          4  doctors, then we have a problem.

          5                 You know, I think that if we all

          6  together, if we agree that we are going to at least

          7  say the good things that happen, I don't mean to

          8  convey to you that we should not criticize things

          9  when we are doing something wrong and we are not

         10  perfect. There are times when we make mistakes, and

         11  there are times when we do the wrong thing, I agree

         12  with that. But in the meantime, at least if things

         13  we are doing well, which are many, many, many, why

         14  don't we all together try to publicize some of that

         15  so that we will not continue to be subject to an

         16  erosion of our patient base. And that in many ways

         17  explains what is happening at North Central Bronx.

         18                 And now thank you very much for

         19  allowing me to share with you my remarks.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, Dr.

         21  Marcos, let me, before I begin with some questions,

         22  also acknowledge my colleagues who have joined us.

         23  First let me start with the chair of the

         24  Subcommittee under this Committee. The Chair of the

         25  Subcommittee on Mental Health, Mental Retardation
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          2  and Alcohol Services, my colleague from Brooklyn,

          3  Council Member Una Clarke, and I also see that the

          4  former chair of this Committee also, the

          5  distinguished colleague from Queens, Council Member

          6  Marty Povman also, and did I leave anybody out?

          7                 Dr. Marcos, let me perhaps again

          8  bring up front and set aside and get direct

          9  clearance, I guess I want to use the word. Let me

         10  walk you through the networks within your

         11  corporation, and so that the allegations that I

         12  heard this morning, maybe we could dispense with it.

         13                 Because in order for me to address

         14  the Borough President's statement, it is not

         15  allegations it is on record when he said it. I

         16  wanted to make sure that I understand that what he

         17  is saying is correct, before I ask you the question

         18  about the chief operating officer at the facility.

         19                 It is fair to say that under your

         20  current Health and Hospitals Corporation the

         21  following networks exist? Is there a Brooklyn,

         22  Staten Island Family Health Network?

         23                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And in that

         25  network it consists of Kings County Hospital, East
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          2  New York Diagnostic and Treatment Center and Seaview

          3  Hospital Rehabilitation Center and Home; is that

          4  correct?

          5                 DR. MARCOS: And Coney Island too.

          6  Coney Island Hospital.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And so now Coney

          8  Island has been added to that network.

          9                 DR. MARCOS: And the McKenny Nursing

         10  Home (phonetic), which is a new nursing home.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let's start with

         12  that network as we move along, and I ask my

         13  colleagues if we are going to really -- you know

         14  with me, when I have hearings I want to make sure I

         15  deal with the issues.

         16                 At Kings County Hospital, besides the

         17  Executive Director, he happens to be the Senior Vice

         18  President of that network; is that correct?

         19                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The Senior Vice

         21  President of that network is also the Executive

         22  Director of Kings County?

         23                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do they have a

         25  chief operating officer?
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          2                 DR. MARCOS: At Kings County?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, sir.

          4                 DR. MARCOS: Chief operating officer

          5  for the network, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, no that

          7  is not my question.

          8                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, they do, but his

          9  responsibility goes beyond Kings County.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You can help me

         11  to elaborate on the network, I just want to make

         12  sure I understand the question that the Borough

         13  President posed to us this morning.

         14                 Well, let me say this: Is Jean Leon,

         15  who I believe is the Executive Director of Kings

         16  County, who happens to also be the Senior Vice

         17  President of the network, correct?

         18                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: She is not the

         20  chief operating officer, correct?

         21                 DR. MARCOS: No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. There is a

         23  chief operating officer at Kings County Hospital; is

         24  that correct?

         25                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. And that

          3  person is stationed at the hospital?

          4                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: At East New York

          6  Diagnostic Treatment Center, do they have a chief

          7  operating officer?

          8                 DR. MARCOS: No, I don't think so.

          9  Well, every large clinic or hospital, they have an

         10  administrator, but there is no chief operating

         11  officer.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What I am trying

         13  to get to is, is there a need to have an on-site

         14  administrator called an administrator or chief

         15  operating officer, but as a professional person in a

         16  field that is not my expertise so I am relying upon

         17  all of you who have the expertise, is it your

         18  opinion that at a facility there should be someone

         19  who at least runs the day-to-day operations within

         20  that facility; is that fair?

         21                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         23                 Do you have one at Seaview?

         24                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then I believe
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          2  your next network that I am aware of is the

          3  Generation Plus Health Network; is that correct?

          4                 DR. MARCOS: I don't want suddenly to

          5  cut in any way your line of questioning, but every

          6  hospital --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

          8                 DR. MARCOS: -- Including North

          9  Central Bronx has an on-site administrator.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Are all those

         11  chief operating officers or administrators

         12  full-time?

         13                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then let me go

         15  back to the Borough President's statement on page

         16  two that says: First I would like to point out that

         17  NCB is at a disadvantage within the HHC system

         18  because there is no full-time on-site senior

         19  executive dedicated to ensuring that NCB remains a

         20  viable facility.

         21                 That is his statement. Can you verify

         22  that, sir?

         23                 DR. MARCOS: No, there is a full-time

         24  administrator, her name is Barbara Rosado

         25  (phonetic).
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And where is she

          3  stationed at?

          4                 DR. MARCOS: She is at North Central

          5  Bronx.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, physically if

          7  I visit that hospital I will find that person there

          8  full-time?

          9                 DR. MARCOS: You will find that person

         10  there and many others that spend full time --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, no. That

         12  is not the question, Mr. President.

         13                 DR. MARCOS: Yes. The answer is yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am not here to

         15  embarrass you. I am not here to put you on the spot.

         16  I am here to get the facts and set the record

         17  straight.

         18                 I must say, and I have to concede

         19  that I thought I visit every network, I see that

         20  this is one network I did not. I intend to come to

         21  visit this network, too, and I just want to make

         22  sure that when I go around, okay, that what you are

         23  saying to me is correct.

         24                 What you are saying for the record,

         25  that the chief operating officer at North Central
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          2  Bronx is a full-time, physically located at that

          3  facility?

          4                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, there is an

          5  administrator full time, her name is Barbara Rosado,

          6  at North Central Bronx.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now this person,

          8  what is the official title at that facility?

          9                 DR. MARCOS: Site administrator.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Not chief

         11  operating officer. Okay.

         12                 I had a meeting at the request of

         13  Council Member Eisland when we were trying to put

         14  this hearing together, and in order for me to get a

         15  handle of the allegations and what have you, I met

         16  with certain advocates and elected officials,

         17  representatives and the Council member, and let me

         18  just share with you some of the things that came out

         19  of that meeting and I need to just set the record

         20  straight.

         21                 It is alleged at that meeting that I

         22  heard that at that facility there is a cap of 60

         23  beds on the number of patients that would be

         24  admitted, even though there are patients waiting in

         25  the emergency room for admission; is that correct,
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          2  sir?

          3                 DR. MARCOS: No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is there a cap at

          5  that facility with respect to admissions?

          6                 DR. MARCOS: Let me ask Mr. Joe

          7  Orlando, he is the Vice President and Executive

          8  Director of the facility, to answer that question.

          9                 MR. ORLANDO: There is no cap on any

         10  of the services.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Speak into the

         12  mic because we can't hear you.

         13                 MR. ORLANDO: There is no cap, other

         14  than the physical ability to admit a certain number

         15  of patients. I mean, there is a finite limit.

         16                 What has caused there to be concern

         17  on the part --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before you go on,

         19  again, I have to understand, is the current bed

         20  capacity at NCB 197?

         21                 MR. ORLANDO: The current bed capacity

         22  is considerably greater than 197.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me set the

         24  record straight. There is a difference between --

         25  there was a number that every facility had, there
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          2  was a time, and I was here, when we decertified.

          3  When you decertify you eliminate, so what was and

          4  what is may be different.

          5                 As the President said back in 19 --

          6  whatever it was, it was 300 and what have you, what

          7  is the current CO at that facility when it comes to

          8  beds for that?

          9                 MR. ORLANDO: 255.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: 255. And at 255

         11  currently, those are beds that have not been

         12  decertified, those are current certified beds?

         13                 MR. ORLANDO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Have you closed

         15  any beds since that? You are at two what now?

         16                 MR. ORLANDO: Certified bed capacity,

         17  255.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you currently

         19  utilize all of the 255 beds?

         20                 MR. ORLANDO: No. Of those beds -- I

         21  theoretically could use all of them, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me?

         23                 MR. ORLANDO: I could use all of them.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You could use?

         25                 MR. ORLANDO: Yes, but I don't. This
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          2  is the census that is a response to the need.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand

          4  that.

          5                 So that when people are saying, and

          6  now you can go back to this cap of 60 beds, because,

          7  you know, my dilemma, and I need the record

          8  straight, and I didn't hear it from Council Member

          9  June Eisland, I heard from many numerous people, if

         10  there is no cap, where are we getting this so-called

         11  policy or directive that says there is a cap of 60?

         12                 MR. ORLANDO: Very simply, and there

         13  is a memo that has gotten wide distribution, it was

         14  a memo generated by the physician --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do you have that

         16  memo with you, sir?

         17                 MR. ORLANDO: I do not have it with

         18  me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Can we get a copy

         20  of that memo?

         21                 MR. ORLANDO: It was not a memo to me

         22  or from me --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Whoa, whoa, whoa,

         24  let's get one thing straight, folks - I run this

         25  show.
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          2                 MR. ORLANDO: I do not have a copy of

          3  that memo.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I ask the

          5  questions and I am saying, and my colleagues, if you

          6  are telling me that there was a memo from somebody

          7  that was misleading, I want to make sure -- I may

          8  come from a country where people think I don't speak

          9  proper English, but I make sure that I don't think I

         10  have an accent and I want to be clear, so listen to

         11  what I am saying to you:

         12                 There is an allegation that says that

         13  at that NCB, there is a cap of 60 beds, and after

         14  the 60 beds people either/or get transferred to

         15  Jacobi or they sit in stretchers or lay in

         16  stretchers and hallways. That is the allegation.

         17                 (Applause) folks, please.

         18                 That is the allegation. Question: Do

         19  you have, you are the senior vice president, do you

         20  have a policy that sets forth a cap on the bed

         21  capacity and NCB?

         22                 MR. ORLANDO: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now you said

         24  there was a memorandum by somebody, now let's walk

         25  that through and what I want is a copy of whoever
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          2  sent it, I want to see it. And after you explain it,

          3  then I also want to know what steps did you take to

          4  clarify and set straight the record that there is no

          5  cap, okay?

          6                 MR. ORLANDO: I have a very simple

          7  answer.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

          9                 MR. ORLANDO: The memo that I have

         10  seen, which I do not have a copy of today, is a memo

         11  from a physician by the name of Senile Duper, to the

         12  Medical Director, informing him that because of at

         13  that time a vacancy of a physician line, that it

         14  would be inappropriate to admit patients at a number

         15  greater than 60 during the period of that vacancy.

         16                 Until we got another doctor into that

         17  slot, he was suggesting that 60 was the limit, and

         18  it was prudent and appropriate for him to write it

         19  at the time.

         20                 The answer to your question

         21  subsequent to that is that vacancy has been filled

         22  and there is no cap period.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Since that memo,

         24  and since there appears to be a vacancy, what was

         25  the timetable between the memo and the hiring and
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          2  the duration that gives the impression to the world

          3  that there is a cap?

          4                 MR. ORLANDO: Approximately 60 days.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. And then my

          6  last question and then I will open it up for

          7  questions to my colleagues is, at that facility or

          8  the network, is University Group Medical Associates

          9  still the affiliation, I am assuming? Who is the

         10  affiliation of that facility?

         11                 MR. ORLANDO: The affiliate is a group

         12  called University Group Medical Association, aligned

         13  with the North Bronx Health Care Alliance.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And someone who

         15  doesn't know what that means, what does that mean?

         16                 MR. ORLANDO: I will give you a very

         17  brief description of what that was.

         18                 After we discontinued our

         19  relationship with the Montefiore Medical Center at

         20  NCB, who had been historically the affiliate, we

         21  discontinued that relationship both at Jacobi and at

         22  North Central Bronx Hospital. The doctors there,

         23  many of them former Montefiore physicians, organized

         24  themselves into an entity called the Alliance. So,

         25  the medical group or this university group medical

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  associates are the doctors within the facilities

          3  that incorporate themselves and --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And now they are

          5  the affiliate, that is what you are saying to me?

          6  That is nothing new, in WoodHull Hospital we have

          7  the same thing.

          8                 MR. ORLANDO: Very similar.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I

         10  understand that. So those are the doctors within.

         11  You contract out, or HHC contracts out with them and

         12  they are supposed to provide XYZ, correct?

         13                 MR. ORLANDO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Did you execute a

         15  new affiliation, or are they still operating under

         16  the old affiliation?

         17                 MR. ORLANDO: No, it is a new

         18  affiliation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Can we get a copy

         20  of the affiliation of that group? And in the

         21  affiliation I am assuming it spells out what are the

         22  services that are supposed to provide, how many they

         23  are supposed to, when, where and how, that's

         24  correct?

         25                 MR. ORLANDO: It is an HHC standard
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          2  productivity-driven contract, so you will see our

          3  productivity expectations and payments tied to that

          4  productivity. You will not see a roster of people.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But you clearly

          6  said for what is expected of those medical doctors

          7  as a medical group, what are the services they are

          8  supposed to provide, when they are supposed to

          9  provide them and where, correct?

         10                 MR. ORLANDO: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         12                 Let me, while I don't normally, but I

         13  ask my colleagues, especially my colleagues on the

         14  Committee to bear with me, I am going to extend the

         15  courtesy to Council Member Eisland for the first

         16  round of questions, then it is Council Member Reed

         17  and Clarke, as I have it before me.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         19  very much, Mr. Chairman. It is hard to keep in

         20  sequence the questions that I want to ask towards

         21  the statements that have been made by all of the

         22  witnesses.

         23                 But first, let me say that going into

         24  the 21st century, perhaps we can clone people, we

         25  can't yet. And in the discussion about having a
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          2  senior administrator at NCB, let me just say that

          3  Joe Orlando probably travels faster than anybody I

          4  know between the two hospitals and has been

          5  extraordinarily responsive, at least to me, about

          6  questions and about services and concerns.

          7                 That being said, the fact is since we

          8  can't clone you yet, Joe, and can't have you sitting

          9  full time in both places, I really feel that NCB is

         10  being treated like a stepchild, you are a senior

         11  person and you are not sitting full-time at NCB and

         12  I wish you were.

         13                 I also want to say that, Dr. Marcos,

         14  you have taken all of my calls, you have responded,

         15  you have given me information and I very much

         16  appreciate that.

         17                 It has been said to me by both of you

         18  and by other people that this obviously has to be

         19  looked at from a business point of view, as well as

         20  from the delivery of services, and I understand

         21  that. I also understand retailing. I come from a

         22  retail background and the fact of the matter is that

         23  a store or a retail outlet loses business, number

         24  one, if they give a bad service, or number to, if

         25  they don't have a service, or in the case of a
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          2  store, a product to sell.

          3                 The fact is nobody here and nobody to

          4  me has complained about the service.

          5                 I have a very active constituency,

          6  particularly the community-based groups that live

          7  around the hospital complex. That is not the

          8  problem, I would hear it, people descend on me by

          9  land, sea and air in my local office, and they

         10  descend upon me about medical care in other

         11  facilities, with complaints. That is not the

         12  complaint at NCB. The complaint is the diminution of

         13  services, particularly services that people have

         14  been used to.

         15                 When we talk about pediatric

         16  services, asthma services, rehab services, other

         17  services as well, and we see within the network and

         18  to me a network is like a complete circle, things go

         19  in one direction, they come back in the other

         20  direction. The services that I am talking about that

         21  are being cut back and being sent for whatever

         22  reason to Jacobi, are all going east. Nothing is

         23  coming west.

         24                 That, to me, does not constitute what

         25  I understood network to be all about.
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          2                 When we talk about Mount Sinai, New

          3  York Hospital and Presbyterian, I don't think any

          4  one of those three facilities is planning to lesson

          5  the aggregate of their services or to close. They

          6  are concentrating their best skills in certain

          7  places in some cases, but still providing full

          8  services to the people that they are used to

          9  treating. I don't think that is a fair comparison.

         10  We are no longer providing the full services that we

         11  used to at NCB.

         12                 I want a quote from an environmental

         13  assessment for NCB that was prepared by HHC in 1997

         14  based on stats from NCB, references made to the

         15  importance of NCB as a community hospital, focusing

         16  on services to women and children. Well, I underline

         17  that, when you take the pediatric services, when you

         18  take rehab services, when you move them out of

         19  there, how are we providing that kind of service

         20  there.

         21                 The next point I want to make, and I

         22  hope you will respond to the points I am making, is

         23  you talk about the public relations point of view of

         24  presenting the best services to the public, not the

         25  worst face, but the best face to the public. I don't
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          2  have time to be your full PR person, but let me tell

          3  you something, I have been calling the hospital and

          4  telling them particularly about women's forums that

          5  are going on a block away from your institution,

          6  your institution doesn't know about it, and these

          7  particular forums don't know about you and I have

          8  been bringing you together. Well, maybe in my next

          9  life I can do that professionally, I don't have the

         10  time to do that. I don't understand why HHC and NCB

         11  isn't doing that. You have got a good product, what

         12  is left of the product, you are not marketing it in

         13  a professional 1999 way.

         14                 You can't depend on the community,

         15  myself, the Borough President and everybody else

         16  around to do that, you do that for other hospitals,

         17  why in the world don't you do that for NCB?

         18                 I would love some responses.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before you do

         20  that, let me just say this. And I understand this is

         21  a very emotional issue. When you do the clapping it

         22  takes away, because what I want to do is, we are

         23  going to be losing people, folks. I would rather get

         24  to the answers and the questions, so there will be a

         25  time for the rallies and all of that other stuff,
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          2  but, please, let's have a little bit of decorum.

          3                 Mr. President, do you want to answer

          4  Council Member Eisland?

          5                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir. I would like

          6  Mr. Orlando to address the questions.

          7                 MR. ORLANDO: Thank you, and I

          8  appreciate the offer of providing a clone, I do have

          9  two brothers, they are pretty close genetically, and

         10  I am not sure if they would serve the purpose.

         11                 As to services, I think that what we

         12  have to really focus on here is that the services

         13  that were moved kind of moved in two directions, but

         14  let's talk about the hot issue of --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Just quickly

         16  tell me what came west?

         17                 MR. ORLANDO: Well, certainly the

         18  partial hospitalization program in psychiatry, which

         19  is a first in the Bronx, and grand opening sometime

         20  around the 10th September, I hope you can be there

         21  and other Council members can be there to see the

         22  example of the transformation of the former

         23  inpatient reality, one of those rehabilitation wards

         24  that was an inpatient reality, is now a partial

         25  hospitalization where people can go home and sleep
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          2  in their own homes at night but be treated

          3  psychiatrically during the day as if they were

          4  admitted patients. I believe this is a future for

          5  health care in behavioral health, and we have very

          6  much been in the avant guard (phonetic) at North

          7  Central Bronx Hospital --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, that is

          9  exciting, and, again, I am glad we had this hearing,

         10  it is the first time I have heard of that, number

         11  one. But number two, again, for years everything has

         12  been going east, and I think this is the first thing

         13  that I have heard of that is coming west in the

         14  future.

         15                 MR. ORLANDO: Well, that is not true.

         16  I mean, we also have expanded our center for healthy

         17  living at the North Central Bronx Hospital, which

         18  again I think is a very progressive program. It

         19  speaks to bringing issues of behavioral health into

         20  the general medical surgical reality. We have people

         21  now working with diabetics, for example, on how they

         22  can better comply with medication regimes so they

         23  can limit the exposure of their diabetes, how they

         24  can keep their diet under control. We have a huge

         25  amount of people we are working with on stopping
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          2  smoking, and let me just go to --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If I may, Mr.

          4  Orlando, let me -- folks, Sergeant-At-Arms,

          5  honestly, I can't keep track of the back and forth,

          6  so if people are going to leave, let's do it now. It

          7  is really hard for me to listen.

          8                 Again, any discussions,

          9  Sergeant-At-Arms, take them outside.

         10                 Let me pick up on something which I

         11  don't understand. When Council Member June Eisland,

         12  who physically represents that facility, says in

         13  front of me, it is nice, and I am not aware of it, I

         14  am troubled.

         15                 Let me walk you through what I

         16  believe in the last two years that I have been chair

         17  of this Committee, what is supposed to be.

         18                 One, do you agree communication is

         19  very important?

         20                 Do you believe communication as an

         21  administrator, as the administrator of both

         22  facilities, and as the Senior Vice President of that

         23  network, is it fair to say that communication is

         24  very important?

         25                 MR. ORLANDO: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is it also fair

          3  to say that under now this mandate, which you will

          4  have to be in a managed care communications and

          5  outreach and informing is very important if you want

          6  to keep your patients or your clients.

          7                 MR. ORLANDO: Correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But in addition,

          9  you have what is called a Community Advisory Board,

         10  that consists of not only members of the community,

         11  but the community board of the catchment area and

         12  the facilities is supposed to be part of it.

         13                 I am troubled when I have an elected

         14  official who represents the area, and I am not being

         15  critical of the services you just mentioned, but it

         16  bothers me when I hear that somehow, unless you are

         17  telling me that some slips or some crack, my

         18  question is very simple, when, and before you

         19  implemented these services, did you reach out to the

         20  elected officials, the leaderships if the community,

         21  whether it is community boards, the residents, what

         22  have you, in order to inform them of what services

         23  will be provided henceforth at that location?

         24                 MR. ORLANDO: Again, I have a very

         25  simple answer to you. I meet with my Community
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          2  Advisory Board monthly. My Community Advisory Board

          3  is a very active one in the community. They have,

          4  and I can bring you evidence of this, have certainly

          5  been my ambassadors to the community and I think the

          6  Councilwoman would agree, if you talk to people like

          7  Marie Rios, who is the Chair of that Committee, we

          8  have used them extensively as the ambassadors of the

          9  word what is happening at North Central Bronx,

         10  whether it be on the positive side or the negative

         11  side.

         12                 And yes, were there some health fairs

         13  or other community events that we were not aware of

         14  that Council Member Eisland was gracious enough to

         15  provide us with information on? Yes. And we

         16  immediately responded, we were not resistant to that

         17  input at all.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: That is

         19  absolutely true, but I can't do this on a full-time

         20  basis nor can my staff. You don't have anybody who

         21  knows what is going on on a regular basis, there is

         22  stuff going on in September and October and I will

         23  be you anything, you are not part of it, but they

         24  would love you to be part of it I am sure, if there

         25  was a regular liaison going on.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, do you

          3  have a person -- I know at WoodHull I do -- who is

          4  the Director of Community Affairs? And I also know

          5  that at WoodHull, for example, and I can only speak

          6  because I am best known where I come from, I have

          7  also a director of Special Events and Special

          8  Projects so that it is their job to keep track and

          9  inform of the activities within the communities

         10  where the facilities can reap and be part of, do you

         11  have that too?

         12                 MR. ORLANDO: Yes, we do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, did you

         14  hear what he said? There is something wrong here.

         15                 MR. ORLANDO: I have had a full-time

         16  person focused on just NCB in community relations.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, now, that

         18  is the Community Advisory Board.

         19                 When, and before these services were

         20  implemented, did you also -- because I know, again,

         21  in North Brooklyn I just recently, and Dr. Luis

         22  Marcos and I sat together, we had breakfast

         23  together, we have an annual legislative breakfast

         24  where we inform all of the elected officials. Do you

         25  similar have that so that Council Member Eisland and
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          2  all of the others in the catchment area are brought

          3  up to what the facility is doing and new programs?

          4                 MR. ORLANDO: Yes, we do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, let's move

          6  on.

          7                 MR. ORLANDO: Let me talk about the

          8  services that, in the words of the Council Member,

          9  moved east.

         10                 I want to be very clear about

         11  something, that all of the services we are talking

         12  about are simply the inpatient end of the services.

         13                 For example, to get into pediatrics,

         14  which was talked about a lot, I think it is a highly

         15  emotional issue, what has happened is we have

         16  decided because of the dwindling utilization at

         17  North Central Bronx, and because of expertise that

         18  exists at Jacobi Medical Center, very similar to

         19  what you were talking about in terms of what

         20  voluntary hospitals have done in terms of working on

         21  strength and making the total product better, we

         22  have simply located the inpatient reality at Jacobi.

         23                 In point of fact, we have expanded

         24  ambulatory pediatrics to the addition of five

         25  specialty clinics at NCB that did not exist before,
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          2  pediatric crinology and pediatric endocrinology are

          3  the ones that come to mind immediately, and I

          4  believe a pediatric neurology unit also. So, there

          5  hasn't been a reduction in the services at North

          6  Central Bronx Hospital, there has in fact been an

          7  increase in the services at North Central Bronx

          8  Hospital.

          9                 What had happened is, pediatrics,

         10  which is becoming, thank God, increasingly not an

         11  inpatient service, got to the point where we could

         12  not ensure the quality. And at that point we said we

         13  need to put it in one place.

         14                 What one has to know to kind of

         15  understand that decision, which is simply one based

         16  on the quality of care delivered, is Jacobi is a

         17  pediatric trauma center, and because it is so, it

         18  has many pediatrics subspecialists required. It

         19  therefore became appropriate for us to locate the

         20  pediatric inpatient reality at Jacobi as opposed to

         21  NCB, when the decision, and it was a clear one, that

         22  utilization was declining to a point where we could

         23  only maintain one high quality pediatrics

         24  department. To kind of continue the comparison with

         25  voluntary systems, Montefiore also has a east and a
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          2  west campus and they recently closed the inpatient

          3  pediatric unit on their east campus. So, it is very

          4  consistent with what is going on in utilization in

          5  pediatrics. I know it was very emotional when you

          6  talk about inpatient pediatrics, but the reality is,

          7  and you can see it all over the place, inpatient

          8  pediatrics, especially at the level delivered at

          9  North Central Bronx Hospital, is going away.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Last, and then we

         11  will move on to others.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I just want

         13  to make the point, and clarify a large part of the

         14  population that you are serving, again, the

         15  uninsured, the vulnerable, poorer people. You have

         16  an outstanding birthing program, people talk about

         17  that, women rave about it. To take a woman who has

         18  hopefully gone through prenatal care and had a

         19  successful history with the whole birthing project,

         20  and then have her have to travel on public

         21  transportation after she has given birth, and go, as

         22  I say, east, and away from the institution, it may

         23  be the first time she has ever had the kind of care

         24  she should have and over the protracted nine-month

         25  period, for her then not to be able to continue
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          2  there doesn't seem to be the right focus on the most

          3  vulnerable population. It disturbs me.

          4                 And it disturbs me that we are not

          5  continuing with that patient and that child for

          6  preventative medicine there, for early diagnosis,

          7  for keeping the history of that person and hopefully

          8  that family at that institution where they have had

          9  a good experience, and they have to travel out of

         10  their neighborhood, out of the region that they are

         11  used to and go to another hospital is disturbing.

         12                 MR. ORLANDO: I obviously did not make

         13  myself clear.

         14                 The kinds of things you just talked

         15  about, save for the rare occasion where a child has

         16  to be admitted, everything else, the primary care

         17  initiative, the maintenance of good health, the

         18  assessment that you talk about, virtually every

         19  component exists now in an enhanced way at North

         20  Central Bronx Hospital, not in a diminished way.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: If it does --

         22  and I can't make the decision whether it does,

         23  because I am not a health professional, if it does,

         24  and I am not sure whether it does, the people in

         25  that neighborhood don't know that. They don't know
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          2  that, and that is not the hospital that they are

          3  continuing with now, it is troubling. And if it is

          4  troubling to me, for heaven sakes, it should be

          5  troubling to you. But when we see that decline of

          6  utilization at the hospital, not necessarily with

          7  beds, but people who want to come, not to use your

          8  emergency room as their primary care, but to use

          9  your services for primary care, when that is

         10  declining and people are traveling out of the area,

         11  that should be troubling to you.

         12                 MR. ORLANDO: Council Member, I do

         13  believe, and if I could go back to one of Dr.

         14  Marcos' statement, that that crisis of confidence

         15  with the community has been caused by the, if I can

         16  call it, tempest and the teapot, that has started

         17  over the closure of inpatient pediatrics. It is

         18  precisely what Dr. Marcos was referring to when he

         19  said how we all have to work hard to show that we

         20  have a strong Health and Hospitals Corporation, a

         21  lot of interest, more than is deserved, has gone

         22  into simple closure of an inpatient unit which was

         23  underutilized.

         24                 The other services are there, and as

         25  you, yourself say, they are excellent. So, it should
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          2  be all our jobs to kind of be sure that message is

          3  clear, not to have a message about the closure of

          4  inpatient beds.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: If it is true

          6  that there is a negative concern going out of the

          7  hospital, you are not overcoming it in any way. You

          8  are not putting forth enough community relations and

          9  community educations, if that is what you think is

         10  causing it.

         11                 I don't accept that, so I don't want

         12  you to think that I am acquiescing to that, that I

         13  accept it. But if that is what you think, then you

         14  have more of a responsibility to overcome that with

         15  an awful lot more, I don't want to say public

         16  relations, that is the wrong thing to say, community

         17  relations, community education and outreach. And I

         18  plead with you, and the good people who are

         19  providing good services in your hospital I am sure

         20  would say the same thing, you must go out there into

         21  the community an awful lot more and present what you

         22  just said to me.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         24  Reed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair.

          3                 And Mr. President and all of the

          4  other people who have been testifying today, I have

          5  been trying to follow this and this has been a broad

          6  conversation about the delivery of proper health

          7  care for people here in New York, and some of this

          8  debate we have had even in the short space of my

          9  tenure in the City Council, and I think a lot of it

         10  boils down to an ideology about how we should be

         11  providing services for people who are often times

         12  portrayed as the most vulnerable in our society.

         13                 We have a rate of about 30 percent of

         14  uninsured people in the City of New York even that

         15  are employed. There are revolutionary changes in the

         16  delivery of the health care systems, the health care

         17  not only in the City of New York but in the country.

         18  So, while this is about human lives and about jobs,

         19  and as elected representatives of people out there,

         20  we have to be most concerned about those, this

         21  debate I think is really in that larger arena. And I

         22  don't have any doubt that all of you are

         23  conscientious in the effort that you are trying to

         24  make in this system. However, it is difficult for

         25  me, Dr. Marcos, to accept some of your premise, and
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          2  if you can't accept the premise, it is difficult to

          3  follow the rest of the argument.

          4                 You stated earlier on that you were

          5  proud and pleased, and I suspect you have a right to

          6  be, that HHC now operates with a surplus and as a

          7  consequence we are able to do new things, et cetera,

          8  et cetera. That surplus came at the expense of a

          9  great deal of very needed health care and jobs, that

         10  was a decision that was arbitrarily made by the

         11  Administration or the Mayor's Office to reduce the

         12  subsidy of tax dollars through the public hospital

         13  system. That is what that was all about. You had no

         14  choice but to axe services to people in communities.

         15  I don't remember, and it is not important for us to

         16  really get into a debate about what those subsidies

         17  used to be, but I believe at some point they were

         18  way up in the millions.

         19                 Maybe that was not an appropriate use

         20  and we need to begin to look at management systems

         21  that would decrease that, but there was a conscious

         22  ideological decision made by the Administration in

         23  the Mayor's Office that we were not going to

         24  subsidize health care for poor people in the City of

         25  New York. So, let's make sure we understand where
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          2  this debate and this discussion starts from.

          3                 You were then sort of given the job,

          4  it seems to me I picture the wreck of hurricane in

          5  Florida or the ravages of some washed out community

          6  in the midwest from a flood, and then they asked you

          7  guys, who are all very bright, to come back and sort

          8  of reassemble the houses. The devastation exists,

          9  and we can't ignore that it happened.

         10                 One of the other premises that you

         11  talked about, and I understand your frustration

         12  because there is sort of a self-fulfilling prophecy

         13  that happened, that when we constantly see protests,

         14  and people saying negative things about

         15  institutions, that there then is a perception out

         16  there in the community that the last thing in the

         17  world they want to do is to engage themselves when

         18  they are most vulnerable and ill in those

         19  institutions. And I am appalled, and I have

         20  mentioned it to the leadership of the unions, that I

         21  remember unfortunately in the battle of the

         22  reduction of personnel at Harlem Hospital, many

         23  people who were employed there who thought they

         24  might lose their job or the few that were going to

         25  remain when they called me in my office to lobby for
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          2  us to protect their jobs, told me if they were sick

          3  they wouldn't go to Harlem Hospital. So, you know,

          4  that's a little difficult to try to put both of

          5  those pieces together. So, I understand your

          6  position.

          7                 But it isn't a question of bad

          8  doctors, that is not the perception that people were

          9  putting out. The perception was overworked doctors,

         10  overworked nurses, overworked clinicians, overworked

         11  technicians, it wasn't a question of the doctor

         12  didn't have the proper degree or the nurse didn't

         13  know how to clean her hands, it was a question of

         14  did they have time to properly empty the bed pans

         15  and turn the patient over because of the amount of

         16  work they were being asked to do as a direct

         17  consequence of the reduction of tax revenues to the

         18  City hospitals.

         19                 So when we have all of this debate,

         20  let's just put it in a context that is real, and

         21  perhaps in the next administration we will be

         22  looking at probably don't need $70 million in tax

         23  revenue going in this system, but if we are going to

         24  provide adequate services and if we are going to

         25  stop having this debate with qualified, good,
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          2  well-meaning people, like yourselves and the other

          3  two people who were with you at the table today

          4  about should we move the wreck over here, to the

          5  east, to the west, to the south, to the north, we

          6  can't have it unless we have it in a genuine context

          7  of the commitment on the part of the City to provide

          8  health care. And then the more we have this

          9  discussion, absent the discussion of the fact that

         10  the City itself is setting itself in a situation

         11  where it is reducing people's job opportunities in

         12  this City, it is taking the Brooklyn Central Laundry

         13  and privatizing that, it is setting it out to a

         14  non-union shop, the people who probably don't get

         15  health care, and then we are going to turn around

         16  and those very same people are not going to have

         17  health insurance, so they will be uninsured and

         18  where are they going to be coming when they become

         19  sick? Back to the doorsteps of HHC.

         20                 So, I feel like I am sitting here

         21  with Alice in Wonderland sometimes and trying to

         22  figure out who fell off the shelf and cracked it and

         23  there is no lunch today.

         24                 So, these charts make sense, in the

         25  context of what it is that you are supposed to be
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          2  doing as a manager, but unfortunately because of

          3  some things that happened in the community

          4  yesterday, with a murder in my neighborhood and

          5  people that are very disparaged about this, I need

          6  to run up and take care of some things in our

          7  community, I can't stay for the rest of these

          8  hearings, so I just wish there would be an

          9  acknowledgment on the part of this administration

         10  that that is where they started this whole debate

         11  about the proper health care in this community, and

         12  when I have people in my neighborhood tell me they

         13  don't want to go to Metropolitan Hospital, it isn't

         14  because they don't think that the doctors are good,

         15  they are just worried that the doctor and the nurse

         16  have both been there for the last three, four days

         17  and they might not be able to really function full

         18  speed.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 DR. MARCOS: Mr. Chair, I have to

         21  briefly answer, and the same way you don't agree

         22  with the premise, I have to for the record say that

         23  I don't agree with the premise, that these advances

         24  at HHC and our success in quality of care and

         25  financial management and building two new hospitals,
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          2  when was the last time that we were building

          3  hospitals in this City, that that is predicated on

          4  the Administration denying care. I think that is

          5  unfair, that is not accurate. I have worked for this

          6  Corporation seven years, plus five as, almost five

          7  as president, I have spent over 15 years. I have

          8  worked with three administrations and I have to tell

          9  you and everybody here, that I have never seen so

         10  much support of the Corporation to do the right

         11  thing as I have seen with this administration.

         12                 Now, the support is not shelling out

         13  taxpayers' money, hundreds of millions of dollars,

         14  that is not the support. The support is to do the

         15  right thing, which means you are accountable for

         16  providing the best care, we don't tolerate doctors,

         17  nurses or administrators that don't do their job, we

         18  are not a jobs program, we are going to be strong in

         19  facing the affiliate, the medical school that we pay

         20  $500 million a year, we are going to be asking for

         21  performance, productivity and whoever doesn't do

         22  their job will not have a place in this Corporation.

         23  And that is the kind of support that I personally

         24  and this Corporation has gotten from the Mayor and

         25  this Administration that has allowed us with pride
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          2  to be able to tell the world that the private, and

          3  rather that the public hospitals in town is as good

          4  as the private sector in this town, and the quality

          5  of care from a financial point of view and we have a

          6  future, as I said at the beginning.

          7                 When was the last time that this

          8  Corporation was building two new hospitals? We are

          9  building two new hospitals, we are renovating the

         10  rest of the hospitals, and we are simply doing what

         11  is very basic in health care like in any other type

         12  of service, we are simply adjusting the workforce

         13  and the services to the demand of the public, that

         14  is simply what we are doing.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me

         16  acknowledge and say for the record that Congressman

         17  Elliott Engle (phonetic) had prepared remarks, I

         18  will enter it into the record and acknowledge that

         19  he did submit to the Committee.

         20                 I also understand that in the

         21  audience are representatives of elected officials.

         22  So we understand the policy of this Committee and

         23  for the most part the Council, if an elected

         24  official physically comes, then it is a courtesy to

         25  allow that elected official to speak. If the elected
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          2  official sends a representative, you have the right

          3  to be called, we will call you, if you choose to

          4  stay, as we do the others who have registered, and

          5  deliver your testimony on behalf of your elected

          6  official, fine. If not, let me acknowledge the fact

          7  that in the audience there are two staff people, or

          8  two elected officials locally, Joel Ramos from

          9  Assemblyman Jeffrey Dinowitz, and Kimberly Klink,

         10  from Senator Schneiderman's office, and I say to

         11  them if you want to submit, like Congressman Engel's

         12  remarks, for the record, I will be more than happy

         13  to take it. If not, I will call you at the proper

         14  time.

         15                 Mr. President, let me just  say,

         16  because while we are dealing with an issue, in this

         17  case NCB, I, as Chairman of the Committee, have to

         18  also look at the system in general in the City of

         19  New York. Let me just walk you through not too long

         20  ago when you came before this Committee during

         21  budget time, and I want to make sure what I heard

         22  and I don't want people to be confused on

         23  statements.

         24                 If I remember correctly during the

         25  budget hearings, you reported that while the
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          2  Corporation technically is in the black, in terms of

          3  at the end of the fiscal year you will see that you

          4  have some cash flow, but that the number is not that

          5  great, and the possibility would be that you might

          6  find yourself, depending upon the trend, that you

          7  will not be in the black, but you might be in the

          8  red. And if I remember correctly you also said that

          9  you were going to move ahead to either, and I don't

         10  want to use the word layoffs, but either through

         11  attrition or buyout, that there was a number that at

         12  the end of Fiscal Year '99 will automatically,

         13  through attrition, will not be replaced. And that

         14  for the next three fiscal years, that there will be

         15  about 1,000 hospital workers across the system, that

         16  will either -- and if you remember correctly, you

         17  could not give exactly whether you were or you were

         18  not, whether it will take the face of either

         19  buy-outs, attrition, or eventually as a last resort

         20  layoffs; is that correct, sir?

         21                 So when you say to Council Member

         22  Reed, or I heard you say more than once, and if I

         23  remember correctly you did not necessarily meet

         24  those numbers that you reported to us during the

         25  hearings, when I say those numbers, I meant that you
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          2  did not need to treat the numbers you suggested, but

          3  you know, the Council sends a representative to your

          4  Corporation meetings, and I just saw a memorandum

          5  because she represents the Speaker and this Chair,

          6  and if I am not correct, please set the record

          7  straight, that is why I want to make sure that

          8  people don't get the wrong impression that the

          9  Corporation is in the black and don't worry folks,

         10  because I just saw a memorandum where you reported

         11  to the Corporation that you are now moving in the

         12  possible buy-outs, and I am assuming that you are

         13  referring to fiscal year 2000 and the other three

         14  years that you referred to; am I correct? Or that

         15  memorandum is not correct?

         16                 DR. MARCOS: The reasons for having to

         17  continuously adjust the work force in this

         18  Corporation is the number of patients that seek care

         19  in our hospital. You are correct when we anticipated

         20  that based on the trend and the downward trend of

         21  patients that were hospitalized in our hospital,

         22  which is going down, not as much as at NCB but when

         23  you look at the entire Corporation, we are dropping

         24  like one, two percent in terms of the

         25  hospitalization, based on that trend we predict that
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          2  if this trend continues, we may need 500 or 1,000

          3  fewer employees working at HHC.

          4                 Now, what we found over last year is

          5  that the trend was not as deep as we anticipated and

          6  we were able to take care of that problem through

          7  attrition, through normal ways in which people live.

          8                 In the next year we are going to have

          9  an early retirement that was approved by this state

         10  legislature and by the Board of HHC in November.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I want to make

         12  sure that I heard for the record, say it again

         13  because I want to be clear, you cannot implement the

         14  buyout unless you get clearance from the state; is

         15  that what you just said?

         16                 DR. MARCOS: By the buy-out you mean

         17  the early retirement?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Early

         19  retirement.

         20                 DR. MARCOS: That was already clear.

         21                 In other words, in the early

         22  retirement at the Corporation requires the law, the

         23  legislation, that has passed --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It passed both

         25  houses of the legislature and signed by the
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          2  Governor.

          3                 DR. MARCOS: Exactly.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And because it

          5  was passed, then you can now move forward to

          6  implement an early retirement plan, but it had to be

          7  approved by the State Legislature and signed by the

          8  Governor.

          9                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. I am sorry,

         11  I just want to make sure -- I mean, I know it, but

         12  there are a lot of people sitting here who may not

         13  know that and I want to make sure that the players,

         14  as we referred to, does not end here at City Hall.

         15  There is a lot of players and we have to be

         16  consistent. And there are a lot of mandates that are

         17  imposed upon us, and sometimes we don't like it, but

         18  we have no choice.

         19                 And I am not taking sides, but I just

         20  want to make sure we understand the issue.

         21                 So, I am correct that in this fiscal

         22  year, based upon this memorandum, there will be a

         23  possible buy-out or at least early retirement which

         24  might reduce the number of employees within the

         25  Corporation in the Fiscal Year 2000.
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          2                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Do we have an

          4  idea of what that number is?

          5                 DR. MARCOS: No, that is voluntary --

          6  as you know, we will have November and December for

          7  people to decide and there is some requirement in

          8  terms of years of service and age, and then it is

          9  very much of a voluntary decision.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         11  Clarke.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: She is voting.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: She is voting.

         14  Okay, when she comes back.

         15                 Council Member Oddo.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 Dr. Marcos, you were here earlier

         19  when I posed a question to Borough President Ferrer

         20  about the network system, and I am intrigued to see

         21  that some of the concerns I have with respect to

         22  Seaview in the Brooklyn, Staten Island Network, the

         23  folks here have those same concerns. Do you think

         24  there is a conflict of interest if one individual is

         25  a senior vice president of a network and the
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          2  Executive Director of a hospital network?

          3                 DR. MARCOS: No, I don't think so.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, let's use

          5  the Brooklyn, Staten Island Network --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member,

          7  before you go on, let me just say this.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just be

         10  clear on one thing. I think I went through this

         11  during the budget, when the HIV preventive comes in,

         12  and with all due respect, whether we like the answer

         13  or we don't, you asked the question, clearly the

         14  President answered saying no.

         15                 Now, let me tell you that that is an

         16  area after you get finished I am going to address,

         17  because we have to find a way of how addressing it,

         18  but not to suit us individually, but how does it

         19  effectively meet the needs within the individual

         20  facilities.

         21                 So, as having said that, go ahead,

         22  Councilman, pursue it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And, again, even

         24  though this is a hearing, not focusing on the Bronx,

         25  I will use Staten Island as an example, but I think
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          2  it is the same argument.

          3                 I mean, if --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But, I repeat.

          5  You were in the room, that this chair has been one

          6  critical person of the network and the Senior Vice

          7  President, of which I have said that I intend to

          8  deal with it, but in order to deal with an area that

          9  we don't have that much knowledge of, we need to

         10  know exactly again what it does, what it serves, who

         11  it serves and what is it we need.

         12                 And I must tell you, I, too, am not

         13  happy, but I need to know because, you see, I am

         14  troubled with all due respect, that when I look at

         15  the voluntary sector under the current health care,

         16  it is really no different. They are doing it also.

         17  What we need to do is find out what mechanism we put

         18  into place that meets our needs because under this

         19  new health system which we are the creatures of the

         20  state and the federal government, sometimes we have

         21  to do something that we don't necessarily enjoy.

         22                 So, again, go ahead, Council member,

         23  let's stick to the issue at hand, I must tell you

         24  the network is before us, but I never stop a Council

         25  member from asking a question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, let's

          3  change the fact pattern and let's use the entities

          4  before us.

          5                 NCB is in a network, the head of that

          6  network happens to be an executive, the senior vice

          7  president of that network happens to also be the

          8  head of another hospital in that network. To me that

          9  raises a conflict of interest. How am I, if I am a

         10  representative of NCB, or if I am a patient of NCB,

         11  going to think that they get a fair shake when you

         12  have to split the widget and it is between NCB, and

         13  the decision maker, the head of that network, is

         14  also the head of one of those entities within it.

         15  And it just seems to me that inherently it is a

         16  conflict of interest.

         17                 Obviously I have a great deal of

         18  respect for Dr. Marcos, and if he says that it is

         19  not a conflict I take him at his word, but I think

         20  we should raise the issue, and, Mr. Chairman, I tip

         21  my hat to you, and as usual you are on the issues,

         22  and I look forward to having a wider ranging

         23  conversation about that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And to set the

         25  record straight I will tell you what I am troubled
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          2  with, and I have tried, because my colleague John

          3  Fusco, when he served on this Committee, he was one

          4  consistent member who always reminded us that Staten

          5  Island was part of New York City, let me say

          6  something because I want to be clear.

          7                 This Committee and this Chair's first

          8  priority is to the Health and Hospital's Corporation

          9  and its system. I am troubled when I see money of

         10  appropriation, whether it is Ryan White and anything

         11  else, go into the private sector when we all want

         12  HHC to be the -- (speaking to the audience) excuse

         13  me, you can't have it both ways. I am committed to

         14  holding accountable the Health and Hospitals

         15  Corporation to meet its needs. But I also expect

         16  that we have a responsibility to be clear of who we

         17  support and who we don't support. And I must say

         18  that in Staten Island, the disadvantage I have is

         19  that most, if not all of the hospitals on Staten

         20  Island, are not HHC facilities, they are in the

         21  voluntary sector. So Seaview is the only one. So I

         22  am trying to stay with the issue.

         23                 I am troubled when I see Ryan White

         24  money that the Congressional Black Caucus added

         25  because our communities are suffering, and I look at
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          2  the list and not one HHC facility was awarded one

          3  cent. So, that issue, if we are going to address it,

          4  you know me, I don't play favoritism, I call it the

          5  it is. Where I come from, and those of you know

          6  (Speaking in Spanish) I am going to tell it the way

          7  it is.

          8                 So, again, Council member, that is an

          9  issue that I am concerned in a different way than

         10  you.

         11                 I am concerned with the fact that if

         12  the network, and there is a reason for a Senior Vice

         13  President, and any possible conflict, I would rather

         14  see, for example, I would be more than happy to hear

         15  that at NCB, that is not a stepchild to anybody, the

         16  network should have a chief operating officer full

         17  time.

         18                 If every facility has that, then you

         19  know something -- we as a people, especially like in

         20  North Brooklyn where I come from, if those cheap

         21  operating officers look like you and I, don't have

         22  the confidence to come to elected officials off the

         23  record and tell us about the problems they are

         24  facing, then shame on you.

         25                 My problem is that I am not happy,
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          2  because I don't understand, for example, and I will

          3  lay it on the record, Councilman you have Seaview in

          4  the Bronx? In Brooklyn we had two hospitals when I

          5  came here from Puerto Rico, Greenpoint Hospital and

          6  Cumberland Hospital, both closed down, WoodHull

          7  Hospital was opened, promised us the most modern

          8  facility that we were going to be so proud of that

          9  the world was going to come to see, and I have the

         10  worst monster that was created, but I am committed

         11  to making sure it works. That is why it is not

         12  private, that is why it is not closed down.

         13                 I am troubled like you, in a

         14  different way, because I have WoodHull Hospital

         15  which is the mothership. You know, like when I was

         16  part of the network where Bellevue was the

         17  mothership, I was the stepchild of that big mama in

         18  Manhattan, and then you had Goldwater and you and

         19  you had all of these, and I was able to create a

         20  network which simply represents the community that I

         21  represent locally. So, now our network consists of

         22  Cumberland, Woodhull and all of the clinics. And

         23  believe me, you know I am on top of my district.

         24                 But the point is, I am troubled, as

         25  you know, Mr. President, I have spoken to you more
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          2  than once, I am troubled that when I called Cynthia

          3  Carrington, who by the way was the executive

          4  director, still is, of WoodHull Hospital, but every

          5  time I call over there she is either at HHC or she

          6  is at somewhere else or a conference, you are right,

          7  I am troubled.

          8                 I need the Corporation then to sit

          9  with us and let's look over and what is is that we

         10  need to put into place. Because my bottom line, my

         11  constituents don't care who is the bigshot.

         12                 Your constituents, all they want to

         13  know when is when they go to the facility they are

         14  going to get the care that they are entitled to get.

         15  That is my bottom line, because this issue is not

         16  something that is just HHC, if you look at the

         17  health care system today, every hospital has to now

         18  be part of a network if you want to survive.

         19                 Now, how that network operates in

         20  HHC, then we as Council members and members of this

         21  Committee, have an obligation to address it.

         22                 But having said that, do you want to

         23  elaborate on that, Council Member Oddo, please feel

         24  free to. I mean, it is amazing, I think Coney Island

         25  is not too happy either.
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          2                 DR. MARCOS: Thank you. We are working

          3  with the Councilman, and I am aware of his concerns

          4  about Seaview and the rest of the network and we

          5  will work with him to address his concern.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And particularly

          7  since Council Member Oddo did send me a letter that

          8  was sent to you, and I guess he is trying to come in

          9  the back door, and before the Council Member became

         10  elected and he was staff person, Victor Robles was a

         11  staff person to a congressman called Shirley Chism

         12  back in the sixties, Victor Robles became an

         13  assemblyman and now he is a Councilman, so before he

         14  could sneak through that back door, I have been

         15  through that back door more than once.

         16                 My grandma used to say to me when I

         17  was a kid, you have to get up bright and early to

         18  pull something over me. So I respect this new

         19  Council Member who is very aggressive and I

         20  appreciate that, but let me just say this, maybe

         21  what I need to do with you, Mr. President, is let's

         22  respond to his allegation in his letter, not today.

         23  I am ready to deal with you on this leasing that he

         24  wrote to me about where allegedly I think that is

         25  what the issue is all about. Which leads to
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          2  everything else, that they feel that the stepchild

          3  to the Brooklyn Staten Island Network and they are

          4  not getting their fair share. I think that is what

          5  the issue is.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman, if

          7  I may, on that particular issue, Dr. Marcos

          8  responded very quickly and we are actually

          9  negotiated with Camelot for that long-term --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, do me a

         11  favor. Don't negotiate until you also check with

         12  Victor Robles, because I love letters and I made a

         13  commitment to follow through and that is the

         14  problem. I love people who they do their little

         15  negotiations behind doors and then when they don't

         16  like what happens afterwards, then they come running

         17  to me.

         18                 So, do me a favor, the issue became

         19  public, there was communications, I am aware of a

         20  problem at Seaview where allegedly there is a

         21  community service that can be brought into the

         22  community, the dispute is who has the overall

         23  control over the facility and the ground which I

         24  think currently HHC.

         25                 So, let's deal with that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman,

          3  the meeting hasn't been set up and when it does, I

          4  would certainly look for your guidance and

          5  leadership, as I always do.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine.

          7                 But I assure you, Council Member,

          8  this Chair will have an oversight hearing on the

          9  network and the senior vice presidents and the

         10  executive directors on how and what does the network

         11  do, what are the advantages of being in it or not

         12  being in it, and once we have a clear picture of

         13  what it is all about, maybe there are things that we

         14  don't understand that maybe we can. And even when we

         15  disagree with you, sir, as you know, there are very

         16  few of us looking like you and I, and I always like

         17  to give the benefit of the doubt to us.

         18                 So, anything else, Councilman?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No, sir. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Mr.

         22  President, one more and then, of course, I want to

         23  thank you, and this is not the end, this is the

         24  beginning. If the Bronx Delegation wants to pursue

         25  it as a priority of the health and the care of the
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          2  people of the Bronx, I am ready to join them

          3  aggressively.

          4                 Let me ask you this: One of the other

          5  allegations that was raised and generally is the

          6  following, and I think Council Member Eisland began

          7  to address it, and somehow I got lost along the way.

          8                 The allegations that I heard was,

          9  that after the people of that community and the

         10  catchment area receives services from NCB, and now

         11  they need to go to, I think they call it outpatient,

         12  you know, like clinics, like if you moved services

         13  to Jacobi, you would have to go from your community

         14  to Jacobi, and I think she said from east to west. I

         15  unfortunately am from Brooklyn, and I don't know the

         16  difference between east and west.

         17                 The allegations were that they had to

         18  take public transportation to get to and from. If

         19  that is not true, then walk me through, and I would

         20  also appreciate getting the plan of how if a patient

         21  or a client from NCB needs to get services that were

         22  once at NCB but now are at Jacobi, what is the plan

         23  and how, because I know my area, we take people from

         24  WoodHull to Kings County, they don't take public

         25  transportation, we have the network, one of them,
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          2  you and I, Mr. President, I think it was over a

          3  million dollars.  Now, I know in North Brooklyn, I

          4  don't know in the Bronx.

          5                 So, can you explain to me this

          6  transportation issue, why is it that people are

          7  taking public transportation to get public health

          8  services that once was at NCB, now because the

          9  consolidation of services with Jacobi, they have to

         10  go from this hospital to Jacobi, why is it that they

         11  are paying public transportation?

         12                 MR. ORLANDO: Very simple answer. They

         13  have no need to take public transportation

         14  whatsoever. We have, and vehicles must be cheaper in

         15  the Bronx, they didn't cost us a million dollars,

         16  but we have six handicapped equipped really luxury

         17  sized buses that do a constant loop between NCB and

         18  Jacobi.

         19                 And I want to make it perfectly

         20  clear, in that from an outpatient point of view,

         21  there are no services that are not available at NCB.

         22  I mean, it would only be when somebody wants to come

         23  and visit a patient, it may be an inpatient at

         24  Jacobi, and that kind of a thing, but that has been

         25  made available in over 12 hours each day. It runs
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          2  from 7:00 in the morning until 8:00 at night and it

          3  is a constant loop from Jacobi to North Central

          4  Bronx.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When you say

          6  everybody, what do you mean by everybody?

          7                 For example, I want to be clear, and

          8  understand the issue. The issue was that patients or

          9  clients that seek or follow through once they have

         10  gone through that NCB, and now those services were

         11  consolidated at Jacobi, that they have to go from

         12  NCB to Jacobi and that in order to get those

         13  services, rather than having free shuttle service

         14  which is what I didn't want to use, that they have

         15  to pay for a cab or the subway or a bus and I think

         16  that is what I heard.

         17                 If that is not the case, then I

         18  suggest you provide this Committee with your

         19  schedule, and I will make sure that every Council

         20  member from that borough, including the Borough

         21  President, receives it.

         22                 Because if that is not the case, that

         23  is exactly what Council Member Eisland was speaking

         24  about. Out there the perception is that they have to

         25  pay in order to go get services when they should
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          2  not.

          3                 DR. MARCOS: We will provide you with

          4  a schedule of the shuttle. In addition, of those

          5  patients who need to be hospitalized, and they

          6  happen to be at NCB, they are transported to Jacobi

          7  if NCB does not provide the care, in ambulance paid

          8  by the network, by HHC.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I don't see

         10  Council Member Clarke.

         11                 Mr. President, again, I appreciate

         12  the time you have given to us. I think the one thing

         13  that I asked my colleague, and colleagues, is to

         14  perhaps follow through on the areas that perhaps

         15  were addressed, so that you and I can then continue

         16  to look at it.

         17                 Second, let me remind you please,

         18  sir, respectfully, please have your staff and the

         19  staff of the Borough President arrange for you

         20  personally to meet with. The Charter does say that

         21  he can and he should have the right to have the

         22  President of the Health and Hospitals Corporation to

         23  come to his Borough Service Cabinet meeting, and of

         24  course, by all means, bring the distinguished

         25  Executive Director and Senior Vice President, who
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          2  else can give you first hand than your own

          3  personnel.

          4                 But I suggest that, I always believe

          5  give enough rope they hand themselves, don't let it

          6  be on your shoulder that you did not want to meet

          7  with him, but rather, and trying to explain

          8  conflicting scheduling. Let's do it, and I don't

          9  want to be there but at least I get the satisfaction

         10  to know that was done. Would you do that, sir?

         11                 DR. MARCOS: Absolutely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I see no other

         13  questions, thank you very much, Mr. President.

         14                 DR. MARCOS: Thank you.

         15                 DC 37. Elliot Seide and the

         16  distinguished president of Local 420, James Butler.

         17                 Let me before you begin, and not to

         18  take any credit away from or say you are not just as

         19  important, but sitting next to you is someone, that

         20  you have seen him out there, I have seen his

         21  handcuffs, I have seen his crosses, and I guess in

         22  the struggling which you have been for a long time,

         23  I am sure, before I even thought of being an

         24  important person, we sometimes forget to say thank

         25  you. Because without a voice, there is no
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          2  conscience.

          3                 And Jim Butler, maybe sometimes you

          4  think that people don't listen to you, that

          5  politicians are not listening, let me say that in

          6  the 14 years that I have been a member of this

          7  Committee, and of this Council, and now in the last

          8  two years as a Chairman of this Committee, there is

          9  no doubt, were it not because of people like you,

         10  issues like we have before us would never be

         11  addressed.

         12                 And I say in this two years before

         13  the Year 2001, because I am not seeking his

         14  endorsement, I think we as a people have to honor

         15  and give praises when someone is alive and not give

         16  the rose when someone is not around.

         17                 I don't have to like him, I don't

         18  have to agree with his tactics, but the one thing I

         19  have always expected of Jim Butler, he has been

         20  consistent, and he has gotten into trouble within

         21  his own ranks because he has told the truth and the

         22  truth sets you free.

         23                 That is just my personal feeling. I

         24  have been waiting, because I know you were under the

         25  weather for awhile, the last time I had a hearing,
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          2  and it is just as chairman now I can do whatever I

          3  want to do, and I just wanted you to know that if by

          4  chance in the next two years I don't get a chance to

          5  tell you that, at least you heard it from Victor

          6  Robles.

          7                 Go ahead.

          8                 MR. SEIDE: Mr. Chairman, thank you

          9  very much. And we at District Council 37 couldn't

         10  agree with you more. Jim Butler has been the

         11  conscience for the public health care in New York

         12  for a long time, and will be for a long time to

         13  come.

         14                 I wanted to just on behalf of Lee

         15  Saunders, the Administrator, indicate that I am

         16  Elliot Seide, I am the Deputy Administrator of

         17  District Council 37, AFSCME AFL-CIO. And let me

         18  begin by thanking the chair of this Committee for

         19  convening this hearing, and also thanking

         20  Councilwoman Eisland and of course, yourself again,

         21  for your vigilance in regard to North Central Bronx

         22  Hospital.

         23                 I just had the opportunity, besides

         24  these prepared remarks, to sift through the

         25  testimony of Dr. Marcos and his staff, and one of
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          2  the things I just wanted to comment on is the

          3  staffing and that sort of thing, we don't know if

          4  there was ever, at what level of that staffing was

          5  their proper staffing. If staffing was low to begin

          6  with, it may be lower now. We don't know from the

          7  numbers that were given us what is the proper amount

          8  of staffing needed for bed. And, so, those numbers,

          9  I think perhaps leave us with a little

         10  incredulousness.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: May I say

         12  something? I don't normally do this?

         13                 MR. SEIDE: Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But let me just

         15  share with you, because I am now dealing with you,

         16  there were different people that used to come before

         17  this Committee from DC 37, with the exception of Jim

         18  Butler.

         19                 MR. SEIDE: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I say this

         21  respectfully, I don't say this being disrespectful,

         22  I am saying respectfully. I think you all have to go

         23  back to what DC 37 used to be. That was to

         24  communicate with those of us who appreciate when we

         25  wanted you you were there. And so that in each
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          2  hospital, and as long as I am the Chairman, in each

          3  facility, you have your own people in there. I

          4  suggest that when you see things happening, it's

          5  like a cancer, if you catch it early enough, then

          6  you can do something. But if you don't and it gets

          7  uncontrollable, it becomes hard for some of us to

          8  address.

          9                 So, as you go through your testimony,

         10  like Central, Brooklyn Central Laundry, I remember

         11  the last time when I was the Chairman of the Youth

         12  Services Committee there was an issue that was

         13  brought up to me after the horses' cart, with DJJ

         14  and DC 37 because the workers didn't have the mask

         15  and the gloves and we addressed it and after that I

         16  haven't heard boo. I again recommit myself as chair

         17  of this committee to address health issues, workers

         18  and what they do, when it is brought to my

         19  attention.

         20                 Yes, I have to look at the system,

         21  but if I know there are problems at Kings County, at

         22  Seaview at NCB, I am prepared to work with you to

         23  address them so that as budget time comes around,

         24  anyone who knows me, I am not a shrinking violet,

         25  and I say whole-heartedly, I can look at this budget
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          2  where there was zero tobacco money, went from zero

          3  to $30 million. So, I just wanted to say that, okay?

          4                 MR. SEIDE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          5  We look forward to working with you in a partnership

          6  to improve public health.

          7                 I do want to point out that it is

          8  critically important now, as you are doing here, to

          9  draw public attention to what is happening at NCB,

         10  to shine a very bright light on the current effort

         11  to destabilize the facility and undermine its

         12  ability to deliver care to the surrounding

         13  communities.

         14                 The community is here to demand that

         15  needed services be provided at North Central Bronx.

         16  As representatives of the work force, we are here in

         17  solidarity with the community to demand that health

         18  care services at NCB be adequately staffed and

         19  equipped to ensure access in quality.

         20                 Without a sufficient array of

         21  well-staffed services, NCB will inevitably be on

         22  core storage closure, whatever HHC management is

         23  saying.

         24                 As you will hear today, NCB has a

         25  very loyal patient base in the community. Our
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          2  members tell us that patients are willing to put up

          3  with waiting in clinics and waiting rooms for hours

          4  because they want to get their health care at NCB.

          5                 Access to good quality care is

          6  something they have come to expect and count on from

          7  North Central Bronx, because it is a public

          8  facility.

          9                 For some patients, because they have

         10  no insurance, the public facility is the only one

         11  they can rely on.

         12                 We believe that HHC is not pursuing a

         13  responsible health care strategy for the communities

         14  surrounding NCB.

         15                 We have not seen a comprehensive

         16  analysis of the health care needs of that community,

         17  nor do we know that HHC's plan is for providing them

         18  care.

         19                 In spite of our members suffering

         20  from staffing reductions and personnel transfers to

         21  implement service consolidations, HHC management has

         22  been no more forthcoming with the union than with

         23  the community or elected officials about their

         24  intentions.

         25                 Like you, we are told not to worry
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          2  and that there are plans for NCB, but nowhere have

          3  we seen or heard these plans spelled out.

          4                 When Senior Vice President Joe

          5  Orlando says, "NCB will remain open", we do not know

          6  what that means. We do know that they plan to hire

          7  some temporary workers to ensure that the facility

          8  is clean enough to pass joint commission review.

          9                 We do not know why they cannot hire

         10  enough permanent staff to ensure an accessible level

         11  of cleanliness all the time.

         12                 The clients in inpatient utilization,

         13  which were down ten percent during 1999 compared to

         14  1998. And emergency room visits down 2.5 percent

         15  from fiscal years '97 to '98, are supposed to be a

         16  good thing as managed care and preventative

         17  ambulatory services take hold. Instead, however,

         18  these declines are being used to rationalize not

         19  filling position vacancies and cutting services.

         20                 In March, the affiliate group, the

         21  University Group Medical Associates PC, and this was

         22  discussed a little earlier, Mr. Chairman, announced

         23  that it would not be filling two attending physician

         24  lines and the NCB Medical Director responded by

         25  capping the inpatient medicine centers at 60. With
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          2  fewer physicians, less care can be provided and

          3  access is reduced. Patients are discouraged and seek

          4  alternatives so utilization declines further.

          5                 Like you, we just heard the answer to

          6  the 60 bed cap earlier today.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I want to

          8  make sure that what I heard and what you are saying,

          9  because now I see that it was this year, you are

         10  talking about March of this year?

         11                 MR. SEIDE: That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Mr. Orlando said

         13  when I asked him about what was the time period to

         14  fill those positions, he said I think it was 30 to

         15  60 days.

         16                 So, currently those two lines are now

         17  filled?

         18                 MR. SEIDE: That is what we heard from

         19  the Medical Director today. We have not been told

         20  that in a formal way.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, hold on a

         22  second.

         23                 Frank, do you have a copy of his

         24  testimony? I want verification that these two

         25  positions have been filled at that facility. I will
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          2  get it to you in writing.

          3                 MR. SEIDE: I appreciate that, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 Mr. Chairman, our union believes that

          6  inadequate levels of support staff resulted in

          7  decline in hospital utilization too, at the same

          8  time management uses utilization declines as a

          9  reason to cut staff. Between '97 and '98, the total

         10  full-time equivalency declined by about 10 percent,

         11  including the layoff of 59 Local 420 members in June

         12  1998.

         13                 Faster declines in inpatient

         14  utilization started after that, Mr. Chairman. And we

         15  are concerned that this cycle of reductions will

         16  keep going.

         17                 To make things more complicated,

         18  Montefiore, the hospital next door is no longer an

         19  affiliate. It is now a competitive for paying

         20  patients. NCB faces not only the growing pains of

         21  restructuring to emphasize primary care, but also

         22  heavier competition for paying patients than in the

         23  past.

         24                 Instead of responding by emphasizing

         25  outreach, NCB appears to be retreating. While
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          2  Montefiore announced a new children's hospital, NCB

          3  closed its pediatric inpatient ward. Montefiore's

          4  aggressive expansion of ambulatory care facilities

          5  aimed at Medicaid patients, may also explain the

          6  decline in NCB's outpatient visit. We do not expect

          7  to see much competition for high cost inpatient

          8  services. For example, NCB's inpatient psychiatric

          9  beds remained full. Fundamentally what we are saying

         10  the more profitable part goes to the private, and

         11  the more utilized less profitable part stays with

         12  the public.

         13                 The union is also concerned that HHC

         14  so-called network consolidation strategy is hurting

         15  NCB. By sending patient and support services to

         16  Jacobi Hospital, HHC is either inviting patients to

         17  leave the public health care system, which cannot

         18  afford to lose them, or are setting up obstacles to

         19  care by creating confusion and complication.

         20                 There are ways in which

         21  consolidation, sending services to Jacobi, has made

         22  life difficult for the workers at NCB, so we can be

         23  sure that NCB's patients have similar difficulties.

         24                 For example, payroll, labor relations

         25  and personnel from the North Bronx Network are all
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          2  located at Jacobi now. So problems in these areas at

          3  NCB take much longer to resolve than they used to.

          4  Accounts receivable for the North Bronx Network has

          5  been consolidated at Jacobi, because records are not

          6  yet computerized, the entire chart goes to Jacobi

          7  for billing. If the patient returns to NCB or a

          8  clinic for care, the chart is inaccessible to the

          9  health care provider.

         10                 We are concerned that too many

         11  patients who were referred to Jacobi, after being

         12  stabilized in the NCB ER, are risking their health

         13  by choosing not to go.

         14                 Mr. Chairman, District Council 37

         15  AFSCME is committed to the survival of North Central

         16  Bronx Hospital. We will continue to work with the

         17  community and with elected officials to ensure that

         18  the community has access to high quality

         19  well-staffed services.

         20                 We will also continue to monitor

         21  conditions at the hospital, and to work with our

         22  locals and with you to draw attention to NCB, both

         23  what is good and what is potentially destructive

         24  about management's actions.

         25                 The City Council needs to work with
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          2  us to ensure that adequate funds for capitalization

          3  and staffing are available.

          4                 But above all, we must remain

          5  committed to a comprehensive public health care

          6  delivery facility at NCB, that meets the community's

          7  health care needs.

          8                 And Mr. Chairman, I might add, this

          9  union has been saying since we have been in this

         10  administratorship, that we would like to see and

         11  know what the Health and Hospital Corporation's plan

         12  is for public health care in New York, and of course

         13  here in the Bronx as well. We have yet to find out

         14  and we have yet to sit down and have constructive

         15  meetings about public health care delivery, we are

         16  not the only ones who should be at that table,

         17  obviously. Public officials, advocates, community

         18  people, there are a number of people who need to be

         19  involved. But again today, sir, in front of this

         20  Committee and in front of you, we will let you know

         21  that we are available and we would be willing and

         22  able and would like to work with this Committee and

         23  with HHC to find out what, and develop a positive

         24  progressive plan for public health care in New York,

         25  because without public health care in New York,
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          2  there would be no decent quality of life.

          3                 And now I would like to turn it over

          4  to Mr. Butler.

          5                 MR. BUTLER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

          6  for calling this hearing. I come here this evening

          7  with no joy in my heart. I come with sadness. I

          8  don't want to attend another funeral. I attended a

          9  funeral at Siedenham and Neponsit and now North

         10  Central Bronx is in the intensive care unit. She is

         11  hemorrhaging. I was there when she gave birth in the

         12  seventies. We called to save the hospital, to keep

         13  Dr. Sikowski at Montefiore from swallowing (sic) a

         14  public hospital. The real deal with they shut down

         15  Morrisania on Waldon Avenue in the Bronx poor

         16  community and said we are going to replace it with a

         17  new hospital, but they put that up on 210th Street

         18  in Bainbridge, next door to Montefiore Hospital.

         19                 North Central Bronx Hospital is

         20  suffering. It is understaffed, it is being used now

         21  as the guinea pig, to feed into Bronx Municipal

         22  Hospital, they shift the staff back and forth.

         23                 There is a new technique they are

         24  trying to use now, by eliminating services. Number

         25  one, when you shut down a pediatric services in the
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          2  community hospital in the community, there are

          3  children there, and the rehab. North Central Bronx

          4  had a top record for asthma cases for children. I

          5  have with me today a young man, Alex, who had

          6  asthma, and he went into North Central Bronx. He is

          7  a healthy child now because North Central Bronx was

          8  fully staffed and they gave him the best of service.

          9  He goes to school, he runs, he likes wrestling, and

         10  he survived because North Central Bronx had

         11  sufficient staff, they had a pediatric service.

         12                 But now how about the next Alex who

         13  comes there early in the morning with this mother

         14  because he can't hardly breath, and go into a code

         15  blue? So, North Central Bronx played its part once

         16  upon a time when they were fully staffed and they

         17  had a pediatric service. Thank God for North Central

         18  Bronx,

         19  Alex is here standing with us today. Good news.

         20  Something happened good. But we are here today to

         21  say to please do all you can, we know you are going

         22  to do it, keep that hospital fully staffed and

         23  restore the pediatric service. We always say save

         24  the children, we saved Alex, and many other kids

         25  that were here today, who used that hospital when
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          2  they had asthma problems and they had to go in for

          3  survival.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Alex,

          6  thank you.

          7                 Let me just pick up on something

          8  which you said which I welcome. Let me just walk you

          9  through the budget process. Now, in this budget

         10  process, the only request that I saw coming at the

         11  last moment was in the capital side for the Central

         12  Laundry at Kings County. So, I am a believer, and I

         13  say this respectfully, let me say how it works.

         14  Every Council member submits two lists, one is an

         15  expense list, and one is a capital list, and on that

         16  capital list, they are the ones like me who then

         17  says I want this park fixed, I want this because it

         18  seems that if we don't do it, the City won't do it.

         19                 So, I encourage and I urge and I

         20  would like to know, and perhaps you help me in

         21  identifying the facilities within the system so that

         22  when the time comes and we start dealing why at

         23  certain facilities things are not happening, then I

         24  return to the elected official and say, excuse me,

         25  you represent that facility, number one.
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          2                 Number two. I am prepared, and you

          3  notice that I will arrange that meeting between Dr.

          4  Marcos and the Borough President, because the

          5  Charter also says that the Borough President has two

          6  pots, he has an expense and a capital, and we get

          7  the list of every Borough President, and so when it

          8  comes to the Bronx, I believe that the Bronx Borough

          9  President, in consultation with the Bronx

         10  Delegation, sets what capital projects and where it

         11  goes.

         12                 Of the two pots, I must tell you,

         13  although we are getting to that cap, and I don't

         14  think we are going to have that much flexibility,

         15  but if you inform this Committee and this Chair of

         16  what facilities need to be addressed, then I am

         17  prepared to work with you. My dilemma is, I must

         18  tell you, now if I need something done at WoodHull

         19  Hospital, I don't call upon anybody, I do it myself.

         20  We are now doing the water coolers, air

         21  conditioners, those monsters. If I waited upon

         22  anybody to give me the coolers and all of that

         23  stuff, we will still have the same facility.

         24                 This week, when they merged and

         25  everyone was concerned, I am going to be joining the
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          2  Mayor in opening up that new EMS station at WoodHull

          3  Hospital built on WoodHull Hospital's site. I didn't

          4  wait upon the Fire Department or anybody to tell me

          5  what was needed in my community, I am prepared to

          6  work with you, but I must tell you, I have enough

          7  work trying to hear what Jim said about do

          8  everything possible wherever I can, to at least save

          9  whatever I can. That is why this year, in January,

         10  when both the Speaker and the Mayor talked about the

         11  tobacco settlement and not one cent was going, or

         12  mentioned health care, I went crazy. Because who is

         13  against children and motherhood?

         14                 But I sat here when those hearings

         15  and those people came with those gadgets underneath

         16  their throats, and that was a health issue, not one

         17  cent was being spent for health services.

         18                 Well, I must tell you, that in this

         19  budget, as a new Chair, okay, when $30 million was

         20  earmarked into the budget and most of the

         21  restoration and the new enhancement is coming out of

         22  the tobacco settlement because that was a health

         23  issue.

         24                 So, yes, I have been around long

         25  enough, 15 years, I have been on this Committee 15
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          2  years, I am now privileged to be the chair, believe

          3  me, when you work with me, I believe we can do a lot

          4  of things. But if you don't bother me, I have enough

          5  things to deal with. Number one, my number one

          6  priority is my district. And I forget from whence I

          7  have come, I will never be here, you won't even

          8  return my calls.

          9                 My second priority is the borough

         10  that I come from. And last is the people of New York

         11  City, because as Chair of this Committee I am

         12  obligated.

         13                 I believe every member, all 51

         14  members, and I was not joking when I wanted to do it

         15  two years before anyone says, oh, he is only doing

         16  it because he is a lame duck, he is not going to be

         17  coming back, he is running for something -- no, I,

         18  for one, as a minority person will always never

         19  forget the pioneers that have paved the way, that

         20  today we have what we have in our health system is

         21  because I remember people like Jim Butler when

         22  nobody wanted to touch him with a ten-foot pole.

         23                 So, I want to be clear that I am

         24  prepared to work with you. I must tell you that I

         25  have been turned off on DC 37. Now, I am prepared
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          2  under the new leadership to, as a Christian, the

          3  resurrection, I am prepared to be resurrected, to be

          4  as aggressive with you as the leadership in dealing

          5  about the health need, not only the people that I

          6  represent, but the people who provide the services

          7  of which most of them, I don't have to worry about

          8  what counties they live in, outside of New York

          9  City. I will tell you, and Jim Butler constantly

         10  tells us that, when you look at the membership that

         11  works in the HHC Corporation, for the most part, I

         12  will say 98 percent of what I call grassroot

         13  workers, happen to live in the City of New York, so

         14  I am obligated to making sure they are not

         15  forgotten.

         16                 So, unless you have anything else to

         17  say, Jim, and, again, I appreciate the fact that you

         18  took the time out, and again, communications is very

         19  important, don't come to me when they are closing

         20  the doors. I cannot open up the doors when they slam

         21  it. But if you come to me when the door is starting

         22  to close and we start addressing it early in the

         23  game, and I will tell you that I believe there are a

         24  lot of things we can do to keep that door open.

         25                 MR. SEIDE: Mr. Chairman, if I might,
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          2  and very respectfully, I can't undo what happened in

          3  terms of the old regime.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Sure.

          5                 MR. SEIDE: While Lee Saunders has

          6  been the administrator, we have taken a much more

          7  aggressive approach on a whole number of issues, and

          8  you have worked with us very well and we appreciate

          9  that, and we are going to continue to do that. We

         10  are a different kind of union, we are a new union,

         11  and we are very aggressive about it.

         12                 The other thing, sir, we were very

         13  much involved with, and as you pointed out earlier,

         14  we were not able to get anywhere with this year, is

         15  the tax levy dollars for HHC, which have been of

         16  course zeroed out. And we had put that as a proposal

         17  early in the session, and unfortunately this time

         18  around we didn't get anywhere with that, but we

         19  would love to sit down with the Council and work out

         20  a way to properly fund it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Very simple, I

         22  will give you an answer right now. There are 51

         23  members of the Council, you need 26 votes, what you

         24  are looking for is not tax levy money it is the

         25  subsidy. $75 million six years ago, when David
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          2  Dinkins was Mayor, we used to provide HHC with. It

          3  is gone. Finished. Okay?

          4                 MR. SEIDE: Absolutely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When you get 26

          6  members to make a commitment that that subsidy is

          7  the life and death of the HHC system, not Dr. Luis

          8  Marcos, but the people who represent --

          9                 MR. SEIDE: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I will tell you,

         11  you will see the $75 million back as a subsidy.

         12                 MR. SEIDE: I agree with you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That is why I got

         14  away from the subsidy and I turn towards the tobacco

         15  settlement of which, with all due respect, $30

         16  million are being spent today, it is more money than

         17  you have had in the last six years.

         18                 MR. SEIDE: You are absolutely

         19  correct, sir. You are absolutely correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, very simple,

         21  you need to either put -- I don't mean you. People

         22  either need to put up or shut up.

         23                 MR. SEIDE: You got it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What you need is

         25  the subsidy.
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          2                 If I remember correctly, the last

          3  time that we really addressed what was wrong with

          4  the system, it cost us $75 million. You need to

          5  convince 26 members of the Council to put back the

          6  subsidy. It is not like a handing out, or like

          7  people think welfare, this is about the survival,

          8  and the fact is that only in HHC facilities do we

          9  not turn away anybody, regardless if they are able

         10  to pay or not. With all due respect, that is not

         11  what I remember when I grew up in Williamsburg,

         12  because there were voluntary hospitals that today

         13  exist in my community, and simply because my mother

         14  could not show them the proper health coverage,

         15  while they are not supposed to do it, it is against

         16  the law, they have the uncanny ability to refer them

         17  to an HHC facility and I understand that. And if I

         18  know that, and I grew up in Williamsburg, then there

         19  is something wrong because what I need you to do is

         20  to lobby aggressively that we make it a priority of

         21  the Council to bring back the subsidies that you

         22  would need in order to keep whatever we are asking

         23  for and that is that $75 million that was put in

         24  there once and after Dinkins it is gone.

         25                 MR. SEIDE: Mr. Chairman, you have our
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          2  pledge that we are going to do that and continue to

          3  do that and work very, very hard, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

          5                 MR. SEIDE: And we will also, I pledge

          6  to you, as we have been trying to do, keep in touch

          7  with you as soon as we know what is going on.

          8                 As Jim will be the first to tell you,

          9  HHC has not been forthcoming in terms of

         10  communication with us, we welcome better

         11  communication, if we had better communication we

         12  could certainly be a better early warning system in

         13  terms of thing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I assure you from

         15  this day forth, because I must tell you, I thank God

         16  for certain people that I am not going to embarrass,

         17  because I always do, but I knew about North Central

         18  Bronx' dilemma when Judy Wessler called me about

         19  rumors, and everybody denied it when I called

         20  everybody under the sun, and they said to me, oh,

         21  what are you talking about? Well, I am not from the

         22  Bronx.

         23                 Then all of a sudden the next day

         24  Juan Gonzalez puts out this article and then

         25  everybodys' eyes opened up and before anybody
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          2  sneezed, I had a letter from the Speaker, myself,

          3  and Council Member June Eisland to Luis Marcos. So,

          4  since now there is a new dialogue, like the secret

          5  service, I have my own network, but when I hear

          6  something that you don't hear, I am going to reach

          7  out to you and vice versa. When you hear something

          8  you need to reach out to us and when we work

          9  together, and I dare say a house divided never

         10  stands, but if we catch it early enough, things do

         11  change if we knew how to use it. And I repeat, in a

         12  legislative body and a budget of $33 billion, what

         13  you need is 26 votes. You   need three of the five

         14  delegations consistently put on the list, the

         15  subsidy, to put on the list saying we are not going

         16  to tolerate, we are not going to let anyone close

         17  down, and then you will see, and then you know what?

         18  Then I don't need to go to Jim Butler or anybody

         19  else and say can I have your endorsement, you would

         20  automatically give it to me because I have earned

         21  it. And that is what is missing, people now only

         22  earn it at the spur of the moment.

         23                 There was a time when I went to the

         24  Assembly and I got the endorsement of DC 37, I had

         25  to earn it and keep earning it every two years.
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          2  Sometimes around here we forget that, yes, four

          3  years comes and goes real fast, but I am ready to

          4  work with you.

          5                 MR. SEIDE: Thanks. We are ready to

          6  work with you too, sir, and thanks for doing this

          7  hearing today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Jim, it is good

          9  seeing you. It is good to see that you are back to

         10  being healthy again.

         11                 MR. BUTLER: Thank you so much.

         12                 MR. ORENGO: Judy Wessler, and Emelio

         13  Morante, and the Reverend Robert Trainor.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before we begin,

         15  I know that my counsel called the Reverend, and I

         16  know of the old church and even though I am getting

         17  up there, there was a time when someone was a

         18  Monsignor that was an honor that the Pope gave to

         19  you, so that while he overlooked it, Monsignor, it

         20  is nice to have you with us.

         21                 There is a big difference between a

         22  Reverend and a Monsignor. Go ahead. Everyone who

         23  becomes a priest is a reverend, but once you get

         24  honored by the Pope as a monsignor, that is a

         25  promotion.
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          2                 MONSIGNOR TRAINOR: I thank you very

          3  much for those words.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Would you

          5  identify yourself for the record, and then I guess

          6  you will begin, sir?

          7                 MONSIGNOR TRAINOR: Yes, thank you.

          8  And thank you for the opportunity of addressing some

          9  members of the City Council, it us my first such

         10  experience.

         11                 My name is Monsignor Robert M.

         12  Trainor. I am the Pastor of St. Ann's Church, which

         13  is on the corner of Bainbridge and Gunhill, about a

         14  block and a half from North Central.

         15                 But I have been a resident of the

         16  neighborhood for 26 years, having been in another

         17  parish about two miles away. When I first came to

         18  that Parish, Fordham Hospital was closing, and of

         19  course we gave it the old college try, we were

         20  unsuccessful but consoled by the fact that North

         21  Central was about to open. And over the years it has

         22  enjoyed a marvelous reputation in our neighborhood.

         23  Its services have been extensive and efficient. It

         24  is user-friendly. There is waiting, as there is in

         25  every hospital, but it seems not as much as in most
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          2  hospitals. It has catered to the young, our youth,

          3  stressed out mothers and it really is a facility so

          4  vital to that neighborhood.

          5                 Seven years ago I moved even closer

          6  to becoming Pastor of St. Ann's, and so almost every

          7  person that I know has had some experience with

          8  North Central in that neighborhood.

          9                 And when people come into the

         10  rectory, very often it is not about a spiritual

         11  problem, very often it is about a health problem.

         12  The other day, last Wednesday, and, oh, she had the

         13  worst toothache and swollen jaw you could ever

         14  imagine. She had gone to the convent and the sisters

         15  had given her a number and she called the doctor and

         16  the doctor got back but the doctor's response was,

         17  no, we do not take any free patients, you have to go

         18  elsewhere, and of course elsewhere did not have any

         19  telephone number or any address, it was just

         20  elsewhere.

         21                 And so she came into the rectory, and

         22  having a few connections over at North Central, I

         23  was able to give her a telephone number which she

         24  used and within two hours she was serviced, and when

         25  I saw her the next day she was completely out of
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          2  pain and she was so satisfied with everything that

          3  had been done at North Central.

          4                 A couple of days later a Carlos

          5  Rodriguez came into the rectory. He is the father of

          6  two small children and a very good parishioner.  He

          7  had just come from the hematology clinic at NCB

          8  where he had gone very often but he was saddened by

          9  the fact that he could not go there anymore

         10  apparently because it was closing or was being

         11  transferred.

         12                 Now, Carlos is a man who has been in

         13  NCB two out of the last three winters with very bad

         14  pneumonia, and when winter comes again, if he has to

         15  go to Jacobi Hospital or his clinic, he will not be

         16  able to survive. He is not supposed to be out in the

         17  freezing weather for more than a minute or two any

         18  time that the weather is that way.

         19                 Now if he is not accommodated at

         20  Montefiore and that is a big question mark, and if

         21  those buses that we heard about are not available,

         22  and certainly if NCB closes they won't be available,

         23  he will have to go by two buses, there is no subway

         24  connection so he will have to go by two buses and it

         25  will be two buses over, two buses back, and what he
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          2  will do is he won't go to the clinic appointments

          3  because he would be risking his life in doing so.

          4                 Carlos Rodriguez is a man that really

          5  needs that hospital.

          6                 Yesterday afternoon, in preparation

          7  for the words that I was going to speak here today,

          8  I went over to the hospital and I spoke to some of

          9  the patients on the ninth floor. I found two

         10  beautiful Hispanic women, one had been in the

         11  hospital for six weeks. She said that when she came

         12  in in emergency conditions, she went to Montefiore

         13  emergency room. She said the service there was not

         14  what she absolutely needed. No criticism of a great

         15  medical center that is recognized throughout the

         16  nation, people come thousands of miles for their

         17  open heart surgery and their transplants and all, it

         18  is a great hospital but it cannot service anyone. It

         19  could not service this particular woman. Her friend

         20  said let's go over to emergency at NCB. They went to

         21  emergency at NCB, and they were seen almost right

         22  away and the gravity of her illness was recognized

         23  and she has been in the hospital for a long time now

         24  but hopes to be home in a week or two.

         25                 In the next bed was a woman who had
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          2  been there only for two weeks, but she spoke of the

          3  care that she was getting in spite of the cutbacks,

          4  that they were really and truly trying their best. I

          5  said, you know, tomorrow I may have a chance to talk

          6  with some of the members of the City Council about

          7  the closing of the hospital - oh, she said everybody

          8  knows this hospital is going to close. She said

          9  please beg them that it will not close. And then she

         10  said (In Spanish) the poor need this hospital. And

         11  when it was opened 25 years ago there were poor

         12  people in the neighborhood, now there are more poor

         13  people in the neighborhood. It is needed now more

         14  than it was the day that it was open.

         15                 And so, I just want to conclude by

         16  saying that I may be emotional about this, because,

         17  I, myself, have also been a patient at NCB. In the

         18  eighties I had a very bad car accident coming off

         19  the Cross Bronx Expressway, I was rushed to NCB

         20  emergency room, after I was there a few minutes they

         21  said we just found out you were a Priest, do you

         22  want to go over to Our Lady of Mercy, and I was in

         23  such pain at that time I said I don't even want to

         24  be moved to the next room. I spent one month in NCB,

         25  and at that time the physical therapy, which hardly
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          2  exists over there now, was so excellent that though

          3  some people, friends in the medical community told

          4  me that I would be four, five months before I could

          5  function again, NCB had me back on my feet in about

          6  five weeks. And I wrote such a letter of thanks and

          7  gratitude at the hospital at that time, as you can

          8  well imagine.

          9                 I am also an asthmatic. And a few

         10  years ago about two miles from the hospital had a

         11  very bad asthma attack, the worst I have ever had.

         12  Once again I was rushed to NCB, and NCB right

         13  immediately into the asthma section, and the service

         14  was excellent. It was perfect. As a matter of fact

         15  they stabilized me to such an extent that four hours

         16  later I was able to leave and the next day I was

         17  able to say mass.

         18                 And, so, I have a great affection and

         19  a great loyalty to that hospital, and I just have to

         20  say as a resident of the community, that it is

         21  almost a foregone conclusion now that that hospital

         22  is going to close, and if there is no formal

         23  announcement, gradually it will be dismantled and

         24  one day we will go by and it will simply have

         25  disappeared. We want that hospital for the next
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          2  century and it is a vital, vital importance to the

          3  men, women and children of that neighborhood.

          4  Whatever we can do to keep it open, the Lord will

          5  bless us.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

          7  Monsignor.

          8                 Before we go on, let me just say that

          9  we have been joined by the sister city program of

         10  the City of New York, these are visitors from the

         11  Tokyo High School Diplomats, and we would like to

         12  welcome you to City Hall, and this is the City

         13  Council Chamber. I am Council Member Victor Robles,

         14  I am the Majority Whip of the Council, and also the

         15  Chair of the Committee on Health.

         16                 Today we are having a hearing, a

         17  resolution introduced by both myself and Council

         18  Member Eisland on the potential closing of a major

         19  health facility called the North Central Bronx

         20  Hospital in the Bronx. And you now have what I would

         21  refer to as the advocates and residents of the

         22  community. Before you came in we had both the

         23  distinguished Borough President of the Bronx,

         24  Fernando Ferrer, and also the president of the

         25  Health and Hospitals Corporation, Dr. Luis Marcos.
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          2  Just as you were walking in they were walking out,

          3  the union that represents most of the workers at the

          4  facility was here.

          5                 So, again, welcome to New York City,

          6  the city of hope and opportunity and the "big

          7  apple", as referred to. So, again, welcome.

          8                 Judy.

          9                 MS. WESSLER: Yes. My name is Judy

         10  Wessler, and I am a Policy Coordinator --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say,

         12  I don't normally do this, but let me just say for

         13  the record, back in March I was in my Brooklyn

         14  District office when Judy Wessler called me, to

         15  inform me about rumors that she heard about the

         16  closing of North Central Bronx Hospital. So, the

         17  first person who brought to my attention the rumors,

         18  I want to be clear, this is not those who today want

         19  us to help, but it was the Commission on the Public

         20  Health System and its person, Judy Wessler, that

         21  brought it to my attention. And I must tell you, and

         22  she can verify that, from that moment this chair has

         23  attempted to address this issue.

         24                 I am glad to see that we are finally

         25  coming together. Because, Monsignor, yes, I thank
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          2  you for your prayers, I need it every day, whether I

          3  am in Brooklyn or here at City Hall, I need it.

          4                 However, if we as a people and as a

          5  community do not stand up and defend that which is

          6  ours, then shame on us as a people.

          7                 If we really believe that that

          8  facility is the heart and soul for that community

          9  for health services, then we better rise up and be

         10  heard loud and clear. So, on behalf of the people of

         11  New York City and this Council, I want to personally

         12  publicly thank you, Judy Wessler. You always come

         13  through and sometimes I wonder where you get your

         14  information from. But go ahead, Judy.

         15                 MS. WESSLER: Well, I want to

         16  personally thank you, Mr. Chair, for both having

         17  this hearing and for still being here. I note that

         18  none of the Bronx representatives are still here and

         19  I think that is a very unfortunate statement.

         20                 So, we want to thank you and thank

         21  you for many things that you have done.

         22                 I am going to condense my testimony,

         23  and actually the Commissioner on the Public's Health

         24  System today is represented by both myself and

         25  Emilio Morante, and Emilio, we are sharing the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            137

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  testimony.

          3                 I was going to talk about the

          4  history, but that has already been addressed so I

          5  want to talk about community needs, utilization of

          6  services of which we heard a lot today, most of

          7  which was very distorted.

          8                 I am cleaning up my language, I

          9  wanted to say lies, but I will say distorted, by the

         10  Health and Hospitals Corporation, and something

         11  about the North Bronx Network, and then Emilio will

         12  pick up from there.

         13                 On the needs, they are very well

         14  documented, they are actually -- I won't go through

         15  all of the data, but clearly in my testimony I got

         16  data from several sources, including the City Health

         17  Department, so it is not our data, and the community

         18  district needs statements that the City Planning

         19  Commission puts out for the City, the Bronx book.

         20                 There are very high rates of deaths

         21  and illnesses in the zip codes and health areas that

         22  are the primary service area of North Central Bronx

         23  Hospital, and I wanted to say, primary service area

         24  means not just where a hospital is located but where

         25  the most of the patients come from to go to that
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          2  hospital. And most of the patients from the North

          3  Central Bronx that go to North Central Bronx, come

          4  from that primary service area. It is zip codes

          5  10467, 10458 and 10468. And then there are other zip

          6  codes that North Central Bronx also covers, but the

          7  primary service area is those three zip codes and

          8  North Central Bronx is located in 10467. And I am

          9  stressing that to say that, Dr. Marcos has raised

         10  questions about the location of North Central Bronx

         11  Hospital, that it is on the same block as

         12  Montefiore, but I would contend, if one was to talk

         13  about mislocation of hospitals, one could say that

         14  Jacobi, which borders two zip codes in the East

         15  Bronx, neither of which is their primary service

         16  area, actually people come from further away. I

         17  really raised questions about mislocation in

         18  relationship to Jacobi and not in relation to North

         19  Central Bronx, which is located in the heart of the

         20  communities that it serves, which is a very

         21  important distinction.

         22                 Again, there is lots of data in my

         23  testimony about why the hospital is needed.

         24                 As well, I was pleased to see that

         25  Community Board 6 and Community Board 8 actually
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          2  weighs concerns and identify additional needs that

          3  they would like North Central Bronx to serve, and

          4  asks for funding in their district needs statements

          5  for those programs.

          6                 It has already been referenced but

          7  let me just stress that an HHC document written in

          8  January of 1997, and that is the North Central Bronx

          9  Hospital Environmental Assessment that Councilwoman

         10  Eisland made reference to, just to stress strongly,

         11  says that NCB is a community hospital which is a

         12  major provider of inpatient women's and children's

         13  health care services, and moreover, rehab medicine

         14  is also very important in that community. Now,

         15  remember, pediatrics and rehab, both of which have

         16  been closed.

         17                 And plans are now underway as well to

         18  move high risk deliveries from North Central Bronx

         19  to Jacobi as well, so that is the additional women's

         20  service that they will be taking away. And a lot of

         21  that is because they are down an OBGYN doctor at

         22  North Central Bronx, and they have also eliminated

         23  the residents that are the OBGYN residents at NCB.

         24  So, hearing claims from HHC that this is not a

         25  problem or an issue of staff, just I am sorry gets
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          2  me very upset because it is just not accurate.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Just to follow

          4  through on that answer.

          5                 MS. WESSLER: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I suggest you

          7  communicate with me that information in writing so

          8  that we can follow up on that.

          9                 MS. WESSLER: Okay, it is in my

         10  testimony, actually. And anything else that we can

         11  provide, we would be happy to do that.

         12                 We are very proud to be here, I

         13  should have said this to begin with, to be here with

         14  a newly formed coalition to save North Central Bronx

         15  Hospital, and the Commission is very much a part of

         16  that, and we will submit through the coalition.

         17                 There are large numbers of patients

         18  who are uninsured in the community and as we know,

         19  they won't necessarily be helped in the private

         20  health sector. We saw Juan Gonzalez' article about

         21  St. Luke's Roosevelt turning people away from the

         22  emergency room who were uninsured. We are sure that

         23  Montefiore probably has some equally untenable

         24  system that they use.

         25                 But from data from the Health and
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          2  Hospitals Corporation, and this is from February

          3  1999, 10.9 percent of inpatient discharges were

          4  self-pay. That is quite high. And there was a growth

          5  of almost 53 percent since 1998. 39.5 percent of

          6  emergency room visits were self-pay, and that was

          7  also a growth, and 35.4 percent of ambulatory

          8  surgery visits were self-pay, also a growth since

          9  1998.

         10                 Okay, utilization of services. I have

         11  started to address that, but I just want to say, you

         12  know, people talk about smoking guns, I think

         13  attached to my statement is something of a smoking

         14  gun.

         15                 Attached to my statement is the notes

         16  from a department head meeting at North Central

         17  Bronx Hospital which was held on May 6th, 1999.

         18  There are four pages of people signing in but on one

         19  page they have Mr. Orlando saying if the decline and

         20  utilization continues, it is possible NCB could

         21  close as an acute care general care facility.

         22                 Lastly, there is in fact a legal

         23  document which states if NCB ever closed as a

         24  hospital, that Montefiore would have the first

         25  option to buy back the land and the building.
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          2                 This allegedly are statements from

          3  Mr. Orlando, I know he said something else today,

          4  but this is from probably he thought we would never

          5  have this, so he could say whatever he wanted to

          6  say, but these are statements that he made --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I want to make

          8  sure that it is clear for the record, because I have

          9  stumbled upon this too as you have brought this --

         10  not the first issue, the second issue about this

         11  buy-back by Montefiore, and way before I got elected

         12  and way before I came here, it was my understanding

         13  that land was sold to the City for the purpose  of

         14  building a facility and in the purchasing there was

         15  an amendment or rider that said that if and when at

         16  any time that facility gets reverted to anything but

         17  a health facility, that Montefiore has the first

         18  right to reclaim and purchase that. So, I want to be

         19  clear that that was something that was before me and

         20  a lot of people here and so let's set the record

         21  straight.

         22                 I see Frank is still here, and I hope

         23  you have a copy of this, because if this document

         24  says one thing by Mr. Orlando and he comes here and

         25  says something different, I am troubled because then
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          2  I have no trust with what he says to me.

          3                 Now, rather than getting on it  now,

          4  respectfully I am here to work with everybody. I

          5  can't work with one and not the other. But I think

          6  clearly I need to know about that statement.

          7                 MS. WESSLER: Okay, I don't have fancy

          8  charts to put up, because we don't have the money

          9  that HHC has --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You are doing

         11  pretty good.

         12                 MS. WESSLER: However --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You got a mouth

         14  like, boy, I tell you.

         15                 MS. WESSLER: My father is in the

         16  audience, so you have to watch -- my father is here

         17  so you have to watch what you say about me.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me tell you

         19  something, you are very fortunate to have someone

         20  like her. I scared the wits out of her when I told

         21  her I was giving up the Health Committee.

         22                 Go ahead.

         23                 MR. WESSLER: You better not.

         24                 I don't have fancy charts to

         25  counteract, but when you move services out, they
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          2  move rehab and they move pediatric services out, and

          3  then you will show a chart with utilization decline,

          4  guess what? You caused it. You know? And they sit

          5  there and say like this is natural, you know, but

          6  they caused it.

          7                 They also said that technically they

          8  could use 255 beds, well that is not accurate,

          9  because there are beds, and there is also a listing

         10  again in the back of my testimony, what beds that

         11  North Central Bronx had before decertification and

         12  what beds they have afterwards. They are not

         13  supposed to use pediatric beds for adults, they had

         14  pediatric beds and they closed them. They have not

         15  decertified those beds so they are still counted and

         16  it makes it look like the hospital is underutilized.

         17  Anybody can manufacture this if they want to, and

         18  that is exactly what they are doing.

         19                 I am getting upset.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I know you are

         21  getting upset, but you know something? There again,

         22  for those of us, it is either two kinds of people,

         23  and those of us who deal with these kinds of issues

         24  every single day and then those of us who try to at

         25  least, as a chairman of the Committee, address the
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          2  issues.

          3                 Well, you just said something and

          4  that is where I need you all to help me too. Because

          5  if there is a violation, remember, we are the

          6  creatures of the state. Health and Hospitals

          7  Corporation was created by the State of New York. If

          8  the State that created HHC says you cannot convert a

          9  pediatric bed into whatever you want, unless you get

         10  a waiver from us or need a clearing from us, then

         11  that is something I can deal with.

         12                 MS. WESSLER: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Not only me.

         14  Listen, folks, you were in the room. There is a

         15  legislator who claims there is going to be a hearing

         16  similarly in the fall, in September. Well, those are

         17  the issues that when Dick Gottfried and company has

         18  his hearing, which is the state government, that is

         19  the kind of thing you should be addressing.

         20                 MS. WESSLER: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I just want

         22  to make sure.

         23                 MS. WESSLER: We will. We definitely

         24  will. On the medical beds and the cap, as of last

         25  week, as far as we know, there was still a cap. I
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          2  don't know about today and what they did with this

          3  hearing, but as of last week there was a cap and

          4  people were still being transferred. So, I hope you

          5  are going to follow up on that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, I am. If

          7  you help me, too. And let me be clear, the same

          8  thing with DC 37, I repeat: You can't have it both

          9  ways. I am prepared to be a partner, but I cannot be

         10  the police officer. So, those of you who are

         11  physically in that facility, whether you work or you

         12  don't work, and if you don't trust me, you go see

         13  Judy Wessler. I cannot make allegations unless I can

         14  prove it. So, if that is the case, I have to take

         15  for face value a gentlemen who said to me that is

         16  not true.

         17                 Now, DC 37 said that in March, and

         18  now I will verify that those two positions have been

         19  filled, so if those positions have been filled, then

         20  where does the cap come in? So now I need you as

         21  community people to be the ears and eyes and

         22  document and note, date, time, what have you. Then

         23  you give that to me, and believe me, I mean if I

         24  need to keep having hearings, I will have hearings.

         25                 MS. WESSLER: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But what I am

          3  saying is, it must become a priority of the Bronx

          4  Delegation.

          5                 MS. WESSLER: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Because if you

          7  think I am going to spend my time when I have

          8  problems in Brooklyn and hospitals who right now I

          9  need to address as a Council Member, not as a

         10  chairman of the Committee, then I repeat, my first

         11  priority as a Council member, who brought me here 15

         12  years ago, was the people of North Brooklyn that

         13  gave me the privilege to be a big shot.

         14                 So, I am going to address the health

         15  needs and cares of the people of North Brooklyn that

         16  WoodHull happens to be.

         17                 MS. WESSLER: I am just about

         18  finished.

         19                 I know there are lots of patients and

         20  others who want to testify, and as I said, I am

         21  sharing my testimony with Mr. Morante and he is

         22  going to talk about networks in the North Bronx

         23  Network, and the Commission, as you know, has raised

         24  serious concerns about the network structures of the

         25  Health and Hospitals Corporation and how they are
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          2  operating, so we are very, very pleased that the

          3  City Council and the Chair of the Committee has

          4  raised concerns about this and will be following up

          5  on it.

          6                 In all documents that we have seen,

          7  all planning documents from the Health and Hospitals

          8  Corporation in 1996, 1997, they claim there was no

          9  other planning document after 1997, that all those

         10  documents maintained 22 pediatric beds and 20 rehab

         11  beds at North Central Bronx Hospital, and we know

         12  they have now been closed.

         13                 The final thing that I want to say is

         14  that at a meeting with Joseph Orlando and with Laray

         15  Brown of the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

         16  relatively recently, I am sorry I don't have the

         17  date with me, we raised questions about the cap in

         18  admissions of medical patients, and Mr. Orlando at

         19  first said that if there were more patients in the

         20  ER, that they would add staff, and that it wouldn't

         21  be a problem, they wouldn't keep patients in the

         22  emergency room. Later on, however when we referred

         23  to that again, and this is an exact quote that he

         24  said and Mr. Morante was there and he can verify

         25  this, Mr. Orlando said that he had to fill his beds
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          2  at Jacobi, and therefore, you know, the cap was

          3  going to stay in place. Again, I am very happy if

          4  they have lifted it, but as of a couple of weeks ago

          5  Mr. Orlando was still talking about filling his beds

          6  at Jacobi, he doesn't see NCB as his beds.

          7                 I want to turn to Mr. Morante now and

          8  just finish by saying that I come by it very

          9  naturally, actually my father was a primary care

         10  physician in Greenpoint and admitted patients at

         11  Greenpoint Hospital before the affiliation and

         12  delivered babies there. So, I just want to thank my

         13  dad.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I want to remind

         15  your father that maybe I was a kid when they closed

         16  Woodhull Hospital, but my mother was alive and one

         17  of the things that I will never forget was the

         18  commitment that was made to those people of North

         19  Brooklyn that in closing Woodhull and Cumberland, we

         20  were going to get the most modern health facility

         21  which was Woodhull Hospital.

         22                 Well, my mother is not here, but her

         23  son happens to now preside over the Health Committee

         24  and I am a Council member, and just like in the

         25  Bronx, I am going to tell you something, they ain't
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          2  going to mess with WoodHull Hospital so long as I am

          3  the Council person.

          4                 MS. WESSLER: Okay.

          5                 MR. MORANTE: My name is Emilio

          6  Morante, and I am a Board member on the Commission

          7  of the Public Health System, and I would like to

          8  thank you very much for offering this opportunity to

          9  share our perception into helping the process.

         10                 From 1990 to 1995, I had the

         11  opportunity to serve as North Central Bronx

         12  Hospital's Executive Director, and was within the

         13  HHC system for some seven years, and before that I

         14  have been a long time student and observer of HHC,

         15  having co-founded and chaired the community

         16  coalition to save Metropolitan Hospital back in 1978

         17  where we teamed up with Siedenham, lost Siedenham

         18  but we kept Metropolitan. Judy asked me to focus on

         19  the networks. Medicaid Managed Care and prospective

         20  reimbursement influenced the formation of,

         21  introduced the concept, helped introduce the concept

         22  of the networks and the regional networks.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Just to keep a

         24  tone of which the concept is not locally but is

         25  really a statewide?
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          2                 MR. MORANTE: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I just

          4  wanted to make sure. I want to make sure that we

          5  separate the difference between regionalization and

          6  consolidation.

          7                 MR. MORANTE: Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, for those

          9  who don't know.

         10                 MR. MORANTE: The original idea was to

         11  reinvent HHC as a large network of networks,

         12  strategically aligned but autonomous units, capable

         13  of responding promptly and effectively to the

         14  service area environment.

         15                 What brought that about? As we enter

         16  the new millennium, the most successful

         17  organizations out there today in the public sector

         18  and in the private sector are networks of

         19  strategically integrated but autonomous functional

         20  units, that integrate their workforce in the

         21  planning process at a maximum. They are known as

         22  high performance organizations, and in the words of

         23  David Osborne, co-author of the Book Reinventing

         24  Government, they are successful because they learn

         25  to separate, as he said, steering from rowing.
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          2  Because top leaders at all levels learn to engage

          3  less in telling others how to do it, and more in

          4  soliciting the opinions of the operating forces and

          5  the field leadership. Leadership focuses more on

          6  understanding their consumers, their customers, the

          7  performance expectations, as you pointed out earlier

          8  and the Borough President were interested in

          9  outcomes and measuring everything by outcomes, and

         10  in focusing on the needs of the work force and the

         11  system in achieving those outcomes.

         12                 This was the thinking that became

         13  prevalent under the leadership of Dr. Bruce Siegel,

         14  who was the former president of HHC, as we know.

         15                 And I summarize, as quickly as

         16  possible, five goals that we had when the network

         17  concept was evolving back in 1994, '93/'94. And the

         18  first one is, as we were entering into managed care

         19  and knowing what all that meant, reduction of

         20  revenues and so on, we wanted to generate savings in

         21  the early stages of managed care, to take those

         22  savings and reinvest them into the development of a

         23  managed care infrastructure, that we would now need

         24  to, as we know the saying is, to manage the lives,

         25  to promote health maintenance, to focus on
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          2  prevention.

          3                 The idea then was, we have too many

          4  inpatient beds, not enough resources and primary

          5  care prevention, if we develop primary care and

          6  prevention, our community health centers, et cetera,

          7  improve our case management, over time we would see

          8  less admissions in our inpatient beds. That was the

          9  theory.

         10                 So, we would use this new money,

         11  these savings, for more primary care providers, case

         12  management services, prevention services, managed

         13  care implies the need of a sophisticated MIS,

         14  Management Information System, we would do that too,

         15  we would develop a sophisticated transportation

         16  system to account now for regionalization, we would

         17  enhance our practice management systems.

         18                 A second goal was to pursue what we

         19  call economies of scales, by consolidating our

         20  business assets and optimizing their performance and

         21  their use. And under that was the idea of every

         22  hospital doesn't need a laboratory, as was

         23  mentioned, we can have labs serving a network of

         24  hospitals, management information systems serving a

         25  network of hospitals, some financial services
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          2  serving a network of hospitals, quality management

          3  services, facility management services, and an

          4  opportunity at the same time to enrich these

          5  services where individual hospitals did not have

          6  these functions fully developed.

          7                 The third goal, to regionalize

          8  appropriate specialty and tertiary care services,

          9  services that for 100,000 population generate less

         10  visits than general services, why should they be

         11  paid for by each and every individual hospital?

         12  Let's regionalize those services and then

         13  transportation systems, facilitate patients getting

         14  to them.

         15                 Fourth, we wanted to decentralize,

         16  and this was radical then, continues to be, to

         17  decentralize the decision-making process, within a

         18  strategically aligned network where we understood

         19  our commitment to the public mission, we understood

         20  our goals, et cetera.

         21                 But this effort would involve

         22  developing a strong planning network, with the idea

         23  of integrating all managers at all levels.

         24                 It would require the development of a

         25  systemwide performance measurement capability where
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          2  we would become aware of how we were doing across

          3  the Board, and the commitment to improve performance

          4  all along the way because improvement essentially

          5  means savings and the opportunity to reinvest those

          6  dollars.

          7                 Related goals include improving

          8  response time, we wanted to improve response time,

          9  we wanted to achieve problem solving at the point of

         10  service, move away from the tendency of having to go

         11  through a whole bureaucracy to deal with issues that

         12  can be addressed at the local level, we want to

         13  become very good at effective customer service.

         14                 And finally, we wanted to empower the

         15  leadership at the facility level to seek new

         16  cooperative relationships within their service area,

         17  with essential community providers, and

         18  community-based organizations. We understood that we

         19  would need these strong relationships in order to

         20  ensure the future and the tradition of the

         21  corporation. The result that we were seeking was to

         22  create a highly attractive, lean, high performance

         23  Health and Hospitals service delivery system in the

         24  public sector. We wanted to think globally, we

         25  wanted the ability to act locally and quickly.
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          2                 This we understood meant making

          3  changes to the contractual relationship with the

          4  medical schools and academic health center

          5  affiliates. It also meant making changes in the

          6  political and managerial relationship between the

          7  Mayor and the HHC Board of Directors. These changes

          8  would range from introducing new performance

          9  standards in the affiliation contracts to empowering

         10  leaders to influence the scope of services to

         11  actually be able to say this scope of services is

         12  what makes sense in the North Bronx Service area,

         13  not something that is dictated by elsewhere that was

         14  addressing other needs such as training and research

         15  over the services needed in the area.

         16                 We wanted to move decision-making to

         17  the facilities. We wanted the leadership of the

         18  facilities to move decision-making to the mid-level

         19  structures onto the floors, and in many instances we

         20  wanted to move decision-making into the community.

         21                 Why? Because these are the models

         22  that we were witnessing taking place in public and

         23  private sector, and there is rich documentation of

         24  what has been happening over the last decade.

         25                 Despite the clarify of these goals,
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          2  it is painfully clear that the leadership of the

          3  North Bronx Network today is moving in the opposite

          4  direction. They have sought to centralize authority

          5  even further.

          6                 In the case of North Central Bronx

          7  Hospital, decision-making clearly in my opinion, has

          8  been moving exclusively to the Jacobi Medical

          9  Center, with a, and you heard today, a site

         10  administrator, having been left behind.

         11                 North Central Bronx Hospital in

         12  particular has been stripped of its strategic local

         13  leadership. With the Senior Vice President of the

         14  Network clearly stating to us that he was going to

         15  assume those responsibilities for strategic

         16  planning, and his staff assuming complete control of

         17  operations of North Central Bronx, so the leadership

         18  of one hospital who we now know was seeking to fill

         19  his hospital beds first, has assumed full

         20  operational control of another hospital.

         21                 On both counts the results have been

         22  to weaken overall performance. The North Bronx

         23  Network leadership has justified this direction by

         24  defining it as a means of achieving cost efficiency

         25  saying nothing about the need to make investments to
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          2  ensure the future.

          3                 It is therefore no surprise that the

          4  leadership at Jacobi Medical Center has been

          5  removing clinical and other organizational services

          6  key to performing functions at NCB, removing them

          7  from NCB, and to use their term, consolidating them

          8  at Jacobi. The results, just a handful. And

          9  unfortunately there is a huge disconnect here,

         10  because my information even comes from as early as

         11  last night.

         12                 Response time to supply in staffing

         13  shortages have slowed tremendously. To get an oxygen

         14  tank at NCB, you have to make a call over to Jacobi.

         15  Last night nurses were saying how they could not

         16  find bed sheets. So we do have problems I have been

         17  warned not to say --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say

         19  something. You know what happens, I don't normally

         20  do this, but I have a lot of people and I am the

         21  kind of person that -- but, you know, in fairness to

         22  me, those are issues that have to be addressed in

         23  the Bronx, have to be addressed by elected officials

         24  in the Bronx, have to be addressed by leaders,

         25  whether religious, civic, in the Bronx, because it
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          2  is not going to change by you telling me this here

          3  and me sitting here alone. Because the one thing I

          4  won't do, I will not sit here and give you the

          5  impression that the world is going to change when,

          6  again, I want to be clear, I hope these hearings are

          7  about really resurrecting the community affected

          8  locally, to start addressing health issues and how.

          9  And if you don't, I am going to tell you that I will

         10  see, because originally the privatization of the

         11  hospital system, when it first was brought into bear

         12  by this Administration, was not Coney Island

         13  Hospital, was not North Central Bronx, it was

         14  supposed to be WoodHull Hospital.

         15                 Now, if this individual elected

         16  official, because of commitments made to people who

         17  resided and there were six City blocks that were

         18  displaced of housing to build WoodHull, then I will

         19  tell you, I will sit here and listen to how WoodHull

         20  become privatized.

         21                 Now, it is not to cut you off, but I

         22  must say respectfully, you know, I don't mind

         23  sitting, but I have a lot of people who I am trying

         24  to be fair to allow you to say what you have to, but

         25  let's get back to the issue of how we are going to
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          2  work together to send a clear message. It is not

          3  acceptable that that institution is viable, that we

          4  need to bring back what was, and not what is, but it

          5  is not going to happen when Council Member Victor

          6  Robles sits here alone. There is something wrong

          7  here.

          8                 So, again, I am sorry if I cut you

          9  off, but I must tell you that in fairness, when you

         10  talk to me about Bruce Siegel, and there was a

         11  different administration, and a different board, and

         12  even then you are telling me that they bought into,

         13  because they saw it coming, this new health system,

         14  and now we have had other administrations after

         15  Bruce Siegel left, you know, Luis Marcos was not the

         16  only one, and I am talking about the Hospitals

         17  Corporation, the fact is until the Year 2002, when

         18  and if there is a new administration, maybe you will

         19  see changes, but I suggest we should go back to

         20  focusing on something I have been saying for two

         21  years, and before two years: You want changes in the

         22  Health and Hospitals Corporation, go up to Albany

         23  and change the law that simply gives me the power to

         24  tell them exactly what they can do and what they

         25  cannot do, and so long as they are a creature of the
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          2  state and they have been created by the State

          3  Legislature, I urge you to start aggressively making

          4  the priority of changing -- there is a bill in

          5  Albany that will change the Board of Directors of

          6  the Health and Hospitals Corporation -- folks, you

          7  can talk all you want, if you don't get that bill

          8  passed, then it is really throwing wind.

          9                 So, I am sorry, but I just don't want

         10  to sit here and listen to this.

         11                 MR. MORANTE: No, I appreciate your

         12  views. I am done. And I think that the only point I

         13  want to leave us behind -- leave behind, is that the

         14  networks were the right idea. They are only now

         15  being used, unfortunately, in the wrong direction,

         16  to consolidate, to centralize, and to hide severe

         17  reductions in services.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say this,

         19  and in fairness to those of you who are here, and I

         20  heard Mr. Orlando mention the Chair of the Community

         21  Advisory Board of that facility, well I want to tell

         22  you something, I haven't heard boo from them.

         23                 And excuse me, under the so-called

         24  system that you just mentioned, I will tell you what

         25  they recognize, not you, not Judy, not the
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          2  Monsignor, not the union, not Victor Robles, they

          3  recognize the CABs. Who are the CABs? Made up of two

          4  appointments, one, the executive director, and, two,

          5  the Borough President of the Borough. And it is

          6  mandated that every community board that falls

          7  within the catchment area of that facility must be

          8  represented on that CAB.

          9                 I am troubled because I hear about

         10  this person, which I don't even know the lady, she

         11  may be a fine person, but don't you think if we are

         12  addressing the closing or the phasing down or the

         13  shrinking of North Central Bronx or Bronx Central or

         14  whatever it is called, that that CAB, who is the

         15  people's representative sitting on that board should

         16  be here also?

         17                 Excuse me. You can find all of the

         18  excuses you want, but I am telling you, we invited

         19  everybody that I believe was part of what the

         20  problem is.

         21                 Now, when I start hearing, and the

         22  Council Members from the Bronx start hearing from

         23  those who have been selected to be the spokesperson

         24  of the community that we are speaking about, then

         25  maybe you will see them start going back to doing
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          2  something.

          3                 So, now, Judy, I love you dearly, and

          4  I know your frustration like I know mine too, but I

          5  am a no-nonsense person, okay? You can't sit on a

          6  board and say you represent the people and then when

          7  you are supposed to be accounted, where are you.

          8                 So, I want to b clear, folks, let's

          9  get back to the issue, and I think that as we move

         10  along, you as a community better go back into that

         11  community and tell them, either put up or shut up

         12  because if they don't start defending their

         13  hospital, Monsignor, you have lived to see it open,

         14  you will live to see it close.

         15                 I am sorry, go ahead.

         16                 MR. MORANTE: I am done, sir.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         18                 I will tell you that during the whole

         19  budget process this hospital was never mentioned.

         20  And now I am hearing people talking about the

         21  capital budget and all of this nonsense, where were

         22  they during the budget?

         23                 Okay, I am sorry, go ahead.

         24                 MR.  ORENGO: Kimberly Klink. Joel

         25  Ramos and Barbara Stronczer. Kevin Cruz.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let's go, folks.

          3  Come on, let's go. Sergeant-At-Arms, I want the

          4  hearing to move ahead.

          5                 Folks, why don't you identify

          6  yourselves for the record and let's move on.

          7                 MS. KLINK: Good afternoon. My name is

          8  Kimberly Klink, and I am here on behalf of State

          9  Senator Eric Schneiderman. Unfortunately Senator

         10  Schneiderman could not be here today, but he

         11  applauds Councilwoman Eisland and Chairman Robles'

         12  effort in calling this hearing today, and I am going

         13  to tell him about the incredible questions that you

         14  asked today in order to get some of the answers --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Particularly you

         16  would be very helpful to my colleagues at the state

         17  level, and I hope you heard the questions when it

         18  comes to state --

         19                 MS. KLINK: Definitely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And since I

         21  understand, I believe it was Assemblyman Jeff

         22  Dinowitz, said that he was moving with Chairman

         23  Gottfried, to hold similar hearings on this hospital

         24  issue in the State Assembly. I suggest you weed out

         25  the state issues. For example, if it is true that
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          2  pediatric beds are being used for other than what

          3  the law says and that is a clear violation, and I

          4  suggest, and I repeat, there is a bill in Albany

          5  that will eliminate or at least expand the Board of

          6  Directors of the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

          7  and if we did that, believe me, they will either

          8  shape up or ship out.

          9                 So, I thank you for joining us but go

         10  ahead.

         11                 MS. KLINK: I am State Senator Eric T.

         12  Schneiderman, and I represent the 30th Senate

         13  District, which includes the neighborhoods of

         14  KingsBridge, Marble Hill, Norwood, Riverdale, and

         15  Van Courtlandt Village in the Bronx.

         16                 With the population of the North

         17  Bronx, and the number of the uninsured rapidly

         18  growing, I have become increasingly concerned over

         19  the reduction of services at North Central Bronx

         20  Hospital.

         21                 Nevertheless, despite assurances by

         22  the Health and Hospital Corporation that has no

         23  intention of closing this facility, recent events

         24  have caused many to question its commitment to NCB

         25  and its ability to provide health care to thousands
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          2  of uninsured individuals that live in the

          3  communities surrounding the hospital.

          4                 Specifically, doctors have been laid

          5  off, several wards have been closed, and critical

          6  medical equipment has been removed.

          7                 Even more disturbing, there are

          8  allegations that an arbitrary cap has been set which

          9  restricts the number of patients that are admitted

         10  to the hospital.

         11                 Nevertheless, the emergency room is

         12  constantly busy and clinics are overcrowded.

         13                 Moreover, there are reports that

         14  patients are stranded daily on gurneys, while others

         15  are transferred regularly to Jacobi Medical Center

         16  in the East Bronx.

         17                 Consequently, many are asserting that

         18  HHC is reducing services at NCB in order to create

         19  the impression that it is underused in order to

         20  justify its closure.

         21                 However, North Central Bronx Hospital

         22  was built for a purpose - it was created to serve

         23  the people of the North Bronx and to provide many of

         24  the working poor with health-related services that

         25  they would not otherwise be able to obtain.
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          2                 To simply state these individuals can

          3  receive quality health care at Jacobi Medical

          4  Center, is to assume that Jacobi will have the

          5  resources and the manpower to treat these

          6  individuals.

          7                 With the population of the North

          8  Bronx growing at a fast pace, and with the Health

          9  and Hospitals Corporation to reduce its costs, we

         10  cannot make such assumptions.

         11                 Nevertheless, the decision to reduce

         12  services at NCB, or any other facility indicates a

         13  much larger problem. Is the Health and Hospital

         14  Corporation properly managing our public hospital

         15  system and providing adequate health services to New

         16  York City residents.

         17                 In particular, under the current

         18  management structure, North Central Bronx Hospital

         19  does not have an on-site Executive Director.

         20  Accordingly, there is no one in the hospital to

         21  advocate on behalf of NCB to ensure that it is

         22  effectively serving the residents of the North

         23  Bronx.

         24                 While this structure is very common

         25  throughout the City's public hospital system, such a
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          2  practice creates the appearance of impropriety. More

          3  specifically, many believe that it has caused

          4  certain hospitals to be favored over others.

          5                 In this case, several of the services

          6  previously provided at North Central have been

          7  relocated to Jacobi. Accordingly, while Jacobi

          8  Medical Center is being developed into a

          9  state-of-the-art facility, NCB's ability to treat

         10  its patients has been severely diminished in the

         11  process.

         12                 As a member of the State Senate's

         13  minority task force on the uninsured, I am well

         14  aware of the insurance crisis that faced New York

         15  City and the State as a whole.

         16                 During the month of March, three

         17  hearings were held, including one in New York City.

         18  As a result, many individuals testified around the

         19  state regarding how the lack of health insurance

         20  have prevented them from seeking treatment for

         21  serious health problems because of their inability

         22  to pay.

         23                 To curtail North Central Bronx

         24  Hospital's ability to treat these individuals at

         25  little to no cost of the patient, at a time when the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            169

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  uninsured population in New York City is

          3  approximately 30 percent and is growing at an

          4  astronomical rate, is unconscionable.

          5                 Accordingly, the reduction of

          6  services at North Central and the attempt to

          7  privatize Coney Island Hospital calls into question

          8  the Health and Hospital Corporation's commitment to

          9  serving the poor.

         10                 Therefore, it is critical that we

         11  evaluate how our public hospitals are being managed

         12  in order to ensure that these institutions thrive

         13  and that community-based hospitals, such as NCB,

         14  remain open.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Just before you

         17  go, let me ask you a question, because I lost track

         18  of the State budget.

         19                 MS. KLINK: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And since the

         21  state had all of these hearings throughout the state

         22  and the City, and there is no doubt, everybody talks

         23  about the uninsured, how much money was put into the

         24  state budget to address the uninsured issue, after

         25  these hearings?
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          2                 MS. KLINK: I don't have the number

          3  off the top of my head, but I can get --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That's my point.

          5  My point is, we can't talk about an issue and what

          6  is wrong, and talk about all of these hearings all

          7  over the place, that is why people get turned off on

          8  politicians.

          9                 MS. KLINK: Well --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, listen to

         11  what I am saying, I am not being critical. I just

         12  want to be clear.

         13                 MS. KLINK: Right. Just for your

         14  information, as part of these hearings, a report was

         15  put out, I believe in April, by the minority task

         16  force, which outlined specific initiatives that they

         17  felt the State Government should take on to combat

         18  the issue of uninsurance. Including in that report,

         19  and I believe you mentioned earlier, was the use of

         20  tobacco funds for insurance and health-related

         21  issues.

         22                 The senator has also been very active

         23  in the passage of a universal health care bill. And

         24  he is extremely concerned on this issue.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My point is the
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          2  following, and in fairness, because on your house

          3  side, being a minority is a waste of time, because

          4  you are not the majority. But on the assembly side

          5  we are in the majority. And I repeat, we are either

          6  going to address the uninsured question once and for

          7  all, or we are not.

          8                 Second, I must tell you, and I was in

          9  the State Assembly for six years, so don't think I

         10  am anything new, because nothing has changed up in

         11  Albany, just speakers.

         12                 The fact is that right now the State

         13  Legislature did absolutely nothing on the tobacco

         14  settlement money, they are coming back to deal with

         15  it afterwards, and I am telling you that if we don't

         16  start making an issue about it, see, I didn't wait

         17  until after, I made it an issue back in January when

         18  I heard the Speaker and I heard the Mayor mention

         19  tobacco money but going to fix schools. I said

         20  excuse me. With all due respect, take back your

         21  Chairmanship of the Health Committee, because I am

         22  not going to sit and preside over the Health

         23  Committee and talk about health issues and now we

         24  have money and we are not doing nothing.

         25                 Well, I must tell you that the City
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          2  Council and this Mayor, whether you like him or not,

          3  appropriated 30 million dollars of tobacco

          4  settlement money of which all of the restorations

          5  and the new initiatives in the HHC, DOH, came from

          6  the tobacco settlement money. So, I want to be

          7  clear, and I am not being negative, and I appreciate

          8  and I commend the Senator, but I know the difference

          9  from being a minority member of the state senate,

         10  which are not in the majority, and in the assembly,

         11  and I hope somewhere along the line we really stop

         12  talking about the uninsured and put our money where

         13  our mouth is.

         14                 The money is there. What has not

         15  happened, at least on the state side, is they have

         16  decided to defer it when they come back. And now we

         17  need to lobby aggressively if we expect to see one

         18  cent of the tobacco money for the issues that we

         19  have been addressing.

         20                 I am sorry, go ahead.

         21                 MR. RAMOS: Good afternoon, Chairman

         22  Robles and members of the Health Committee. My name

         23  is Joe Ramos and I am representing Assemblyman

         24  Dinowitz and the following is a statement from the

         25  Assemblyman regarding the North Central Bronx
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          2  situation.

          3                 We finally passed the 1999/2000 state

          4  budget last week. One reason the budget was held up

          5  was the Assembly's insistence that the budget ensure

          6  that quality health care remains accessible and

          7  affordable for all New Yorkers.

          8                 As a member of the Assembly Health

          9  Committee, this was one of my top goals. We did our

         10  job in Albany by restoring 1.1 billion dollars to

         11  our State's Health Care system that the Governor

         12  wanted to cut. Now I am asking that you do your

         13  share on the City level.

         14                 I represent the Norwood community in

         15  which North Central Bronx is located. It is becoming

         16  increasingly clear to me that it is the intention of

         17  the City to close NCB. It is no secret that the

         18  Giuliani Administration would like to privatize our

         19  municipal hospitals. While they cannot directly do

         20  this through the front door, many people believe

         21  that it is the plan of this administration to do it

         22  through the back door. More and more services that

         23  have been provided at NCB have been moved to Jacobi

         24  Hospital on the other side of the Bronx. There has

         25  been consolidation of many services but always the
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          2  services have been moved to Jacobi.

          3                 According to the Commission on the

          4  Public Health System, the following services have

          5  already been removed from NCB and relocated at

          6  Jacobi - pediatric inpatient beds, 30 beds;

          7  pediatric inpatient asthma service, ten beds;

          8  inpatient rehabilitation, 25 beds; the medicine

          9  wards have been limited to admitting only 60

         10  patients because the medical attending physicians

         11  were laid off, the pediatrics clinics have four

         12  empty pediatric positions, which results in a month

         13  wait for a pediatric clinic appointment and a

         14  proposed transfer of so-called high risk OB and GYN

         15  patients to Jacobi.

         16                 It is abundantly clear to me that

         17  this is the intention of the administration to

         18  remove or shrink services to the point that there

         19  will be many fewer people using the services of NCB,

         20  resulting in the ability to make the claim that

         21  there is no need for this hospital anymore, the

         22  creation of a self-fulfilling prophecy.

         23                 If the Health and Hospitals

         24  Corporation can claim that NCB is underutilized, it

         25  would be only as a result of HHC's deliberate
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          2  efforts to create the situation to justify

          3  consolidating NCB with Jacobi and closing NCB. I am

          4  disturbed by reports that there is an arbitrary cap

          5  which limits the number of patients at NCB, and I am

          6  disturbed that NCB does not have its own on-site

          7  executive director. Joe Orlando is both the Senior

          8  Vice President of the North Bronx Network, as well

          9  as the Executive Director of the Jacobi Medical

         10  Center.

         11                 Unfortunately, this has led many

         12  people to believe that NCB has gotten short shrift

         13  in this arrangement, and therefore that this

         14  management arrangement creates an inherent conflict

         15  of interest between the needs of NCB and the people

         16  it serves on the one hand, and the needs of the

         17  North Bronx Network on the other.

         18                 It would appear that the North Bronx

         19  Network is sucking the life out of NCB in order to

         20  benefit Jacobi.

         21                 There may be some state issues here

         22  and I have asked the Chair of the Assembly Health

         23  Committee to call a health hearing in September to

         24  focus on those aspects of this issue, including

         25  possible legislation.
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          2                 However, for the most part, the

          3  concerns about NCB must be dealt with on the City

          4  level. There is no question that the policies of

          5  both the City and the State Administrations

          6  demonstrate a lack of commitment to providing

          7  affordable and quality health care for the people of

          8  New York. Those of us who are committed to fighting

          9  for affordable and quality health care realize that

         10  it is a multi-front war. I ask you to demonstrate

         11  your commitment to this battle by helping to save

         12  and strengthen North Central Bronx Hospital.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         15  much. Let me just say this, and again respectfully.

         16  I don't think we need any more legislation. All you

         17  are doing is adding more layers of paper. What I

         18  need you to do is pass the bill we introduced in the

         19  State legislature that will take away the power of

         20  the Mayor and the Board of Directors and now make it

         21  an equal partner where the Council will have a say.

         22  The problem I have, which is unfortunate, where now

         23  there is a separation between the legislators, I

         24  don't mean you two, but legislators in Albany and

         25  the legislators in the City Council, that they feel
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          2  that, you know, we got too many powers.

          3                 Well, again, give me the power as

          4  Chairman of this Committee, to oversee that

          5  Corporation and I will tell you that I will stop the

          6  nonsense that we have been playing for a long time

          7  in the last six years.

          8                 But you do  not need any more

          9  legislation, so stop already. Too much legislation.

         10  Just one simple bill that has been sitting up there

         11  for six years, that will restructure the Board of

         12  Directors of the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

         13  and if you do that, believe me, we won't have to

         14  have any more hearings about closing down hospitals,

         15  we won't have to worry about the shrinking and the

         16  terminology, whether it is consolidation, whether it

         17  is regionalization. This Council, whoever comes in,

         18  will take the bull by the horn. My frustration is,

         19  you  created it, I don't mean you two, the State

         20  Legislature created it, because when I grew up in

         21  New York City, it was called the Department of

         22  Hospitals, it was under the direction of the Mayor,

         23  the Mayor appointed the Commissioner, and that is

         24  why I am also for doing away with the Board of

         25  Education. Because you know something, whether it is
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          2  Giuliani, whether it is Dinkins, whether it is

          3  timbuck two, as a Council member, comes budget time

          4  if I don't like what you are doing, I will hold up

          5  the damn budget.

          6                 But the only reason we have any say

          7  in terms of health and hospitals corporation is

          8  because we put $53 million of tax levy money to pay

          9  for the prisoners at Rikers Island and the other

         10  facilities.

         11                 Other than that, we have no

         12  accountability.

         13                 Do you know that right now if Dr.

         14  Luis Marcos didn't, and he knows better, because you

         15  don't mess with this Puerto Rican. But do you know

         16  that Dr. Luis Marcos, if he chose not to show up

         17  today, I cannot even subpoena him because he is not

         18  a Mayoral agency?

         19                 So, if you want to really do

         20  something worthwhile, stop folks, I don't mean to

         21  single you both out, believe me. You must be the

         22  best legislators representing -- legislators that

         23  are good, because, you know, to sit here all day and

         24  still be here, you have to be good. But I only want

         25  you to pass a simple piece of paper that says, Mr.
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          2  Mayor, you can no longer have control over the Board

          3  of Directors of the Health and Hospitals

          4  Corporation.

          5                 Mr. Mayor, no longer your

          6  commissioners are going to be -- you are going to

          7  appoint them as Board of Directors of HHC. Mr.

          8  Mayor, you are going to have to now pick individual,

          9  professional people, Council, you know, not only

         10  five, but if the Board consists of whatever the

         11  number is, we will make sure there is a check and

         12  balance.

         13                 Right now we have five members and

         14  let me say for those of you from the Bronx, you know

         15  something - finally tomorrow we will be voting on

         16  the replacement of the Bronx representative on the

         17  Health and Hospitals Corporation after almost six

         18  years. But again, we put that person to that board,

         19  what good did it do, because they are frustrated

         20  because of the five members that we recommend, they

         21  are outnumbered by Commissioners and all of the

         22  other ones that they get appointed.

         23                 So, do me a favor, folks, don't need

         24  any more legislation, please. What I need you to do

         25  is, pass the Council's bill that will restructure
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          2  the Board of Directors of the HHC Corporation and

          3  you will see changes like you have never seen

          4  before.

          5                 Sir.

          6                 MR. CRUZ: My name is Kevin Cruz, and

          7  I am a maintenance man at North Central Bronx

          8  Hospital for about 20 years, and I understand that

          9  you don't have power to subpoena, like you said, if

         10  he didn't show up, just turning on the lights makes

         11  the roaches run, you know? What is going on at North

         12  Central seems obvious to everybody that works there,

         13  they are watching the place get choked to death. We

         14  see it every day. You know, for the 20 years that I

         15  have been working there, we have been under siege

         16  for all 20. Either it was a takeover from Monte, or

         17  now Jacobi. It makes no difference to us, we have

         18  been used to this. It is over the years we are

         19  getting used to it. An employee over at North

         20  Central, we have got a constant joke, the weekend is

         21  coming up, if we are open we will see you Monday. It

         22  is kind of sad. But even in that atmosphere, you

         23  know, the constant threat of shutting down, still we

         24  have people dedicated to giving good health care.

         25  Things like this we can't fight. You say, you know,
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          2  you are the Brooklyn rep, you are also the Chairman

          3  of this Board, you have a group full of people here

          4  depending on you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, you got

          6  it wrong. Whoa, whoa, whoa, let's get the record

          7  straight. You better get your Council members that

          8  you elected, that you live, if you live in the City

          9  of New York, to address. If your job is in the Bronx

         10  and like in WoodHull,  there are people who don't

         11  live in Brooklyn but work at WoodHull, but like I

         12  said to you, again, let's be clear, you are not

         13  going to put the burden on this Committee and this

         14  Chair. You need 26 votes to stop anything. You don't

         15  have 26 votes, that is why they are doing what they

         16  are doing.

         17                 Now, I am not being critical, so what

         18  I suggest is, I sat here all day listening, but I

         19  need you to go back to your respective elected

         20  officials, especially those who sit on the  City

         21  Council, and make sure that this becomes a priority.

         22  Because I am going to tell you, my frustration is

         23  that health services has not been a priority until I

         24  became the Chair. That is why this year, $30 million

         25  was put into the budget. The most we have put into

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            182

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  the budget for HHC was less than $10 million, so I

          3  want to be clear.

          4                 MR. CRUZ: But you are the first ear I

          5  have caught.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I beg your

          7  pardon?

          8                 MR. CRUZ: You are the first big ear I

          9  have caught.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, I know that

         11  but you are not going to crucify me.

         12                 MR. CRUZ: I am trying to vent --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, no. You are

         14  not going to, listen --

         15                 MR. CRUZ: As a matter of fact, I was

         16  going to end this by saying really, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, I appreciate

         18  that.

         19                 MR. CRUZ: For bringing the attention

         20  to this.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My frustration is

         22  that there are other colleagues that have to make it

         23  a priority to focus on the issue and, again, last

         24  year, do you know what the issue was about? Kings

         25  County and the Central Laundry, okay?
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          2                 Before that it was Coney Island

          3  Hospital. Coney Island Hospital was privatized, and

          4  for almost six years we have been in court.

          5                 Let me set the record straight, one

          6  thing about this chair. I heard somebody say about

          7  if they should close it, and the Monsignor is still

          8  here. Let me assure you, as long as I am still

          9  Chairman of this Committee, and any attempt by this

         10  Administration or the Corporation to close down this

         11  hospital or any hospital in HHC, we are prepared to

         12  go into court and see you in court and stop it in

         13  court. That is what we did with Coney Island.

         14                 But, somebody does represent you in

         15  the Bronx, you know.

         16                 MR. CRUZ: They are not here. You are.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then you have

         18  your job to do, when you leave you ask them where

         19  were they.

         20                 Okay, go ahead.

         21                 MR. CRUZ: I forgot where I was

         22  actually originally. This is all new to me.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, okay. All

         24  right.

         25                 MR. CRUZ: What I am going to say is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            184

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  that there is a lot of good people there. We have

          3  been so long under this kind of pressure that it

          4  doesn't really phase us that bad. I am civil

          5  service, I know that if the place closes most likely

          6  I am going to go on a list. But I also know

          7  something like a hospital, once that closes, you

          8  will never see it again.

          9                 The City will never, and I have said

         10  this before, it will never out of the grace of its

         11  good heart, open up another City hospital.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It is already

         13  done. Look at Greenpoint Hospital, look at

         14  Cumberland Hospital, look at any hospital the

         15  closed, they never opened again. Oh, it opened

         16  again, you know how? Shelter.

         17                 MR. CRUZ: Well, before North Central

         18  becomes a shelter, I would appreciate all that you

         19  can do for us.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I say to you,

         21  sir, respectfully --

         22                 MR. CRUZ: I don't put it all on you,

         23  but you are the one here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no, no. I

         25  can't talk to it, because, again, I repeat, I have a
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          2  responsibility, I was elected like they were. There

          3  were 51 members, and let me tell you, I could be the

          4  biggest big shot here with titles and chairman and

          5  majority, if I forget from whence I have come, and

          6  how I got here, as a matter of fact, I don't think I

          7  will get the return calls like I get now, so I must

          8  always never forget, I try not to be parochial, but

          9  the one thing no one, even the press, is going to

         10  get me to forget that I am going to be parochial,

         11  that I was elected by people in Brooklyn, North

         12  Brooklyn and the district and that is my number one

         13  priority.

         14                 So, I am going to address those

         15  institutions that are in my district, because if I

         16  don't protect them, as the elected official, nobody

         17  else will.

         18                 So, what I need you all to do is,

         19  this hearing is to air out, to listen. But when it

         20  is over, you can't go back to y our job and say I

         21  worked 20 years, I am going to have a job, excuse

         22  me, that is not --

         23                 MR. CRUZ: Oh, no,  no, no.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Listen. I need

         25  everyone to go back from this room, go back into the
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          2  communities and say, we better come together as a

          3  people and really send a clear message --

          4                 MR. CRUZ: With all due respect --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Because if we

          6  don't, you will see it closed.

          7                 MR. CRUZ: My son was born at North

          8  Central Hospital. I have worked there for 20 years,

          9  I got feeling there. It ain't nothing about, that is

         10  a joke, an inside joke, like dark humor that

         11  developers under any group that is under siege for

         12  any length of time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         14                 MR. CRUZ: That is not anything that I

         15  go as my come back line to you saying, you know, we

         16  need help too, as hey, you know, if we close I got

         17  another job -- that is not what I am here saying,

         18  and that is not what I hide behind. My son was born

         19  there, I got a lot of feeling for that building. It

         20  is not just a job. I spent hours there I wasn't

         21  getting paid for and I have done things at home that

         22  I have had to take on and I am in charge of the fire

         23  equipment there, and I take it damn seriously,

         24  because people's lives are at risk all the time

         25  there.  This is nothing to do with that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I only ask you

          3  one thing, you live in that catchment area?

          4                 MR. CRUZ: I live near St. Lucy's --

          5  well, you don't know the area really, the Bronx. I

          6  am near St. Lucy's Church.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Who is your

          8  Council member?

          9                 MR. CRUZ: In the area where I work?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, where you

         11  live. See, I need Council members -- again, you

         12  don't have 26 votes in the Bronx Delegation, so that

         13  is why I need the other Council members who may not

         14  be from that particular area, realizes that if you

         15  happen to work there, I am not saying singling you

         16  out, but you happen to live in Manhattan or live in

         17  Queens or live in Brooklyn, or live in Staten Island

         18   -- excuse me, that is their constituents. If they

         19  lose their job, they vote for them. So, I need

         20  collectively get 26 votes to think alike, and that

         21  is how you get things done here. Here and of course

         22  in the Assembly.

         23                 MR. CRUZ: Well, it is an experience

         24  for the two of us, because you are learning a lot of

         25  aspects of what they are doing to us to torture our
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          2  lives, and I am learning the operations of  how

          3  government goes on what you need.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, fine.

          5                 MR. CRUZ: So now you tell me what you

          6  need, and I will try and get it for you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I need you to

          8  speak --

          9                 MR. CRUZ: And I will tell you what we

         10  need as the light shines on this subject.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, I need you

         12  to speak to your Council Member.

         13                 MR. CRUZ: You are going to be talking

         14  to a lot of our people, I got a feeling. We have a

         15  Coalition to Save North Central, and I am hoping

         16  that they are in contact, but you will tell us what

         17  you need and we are getting together. This is only

         18  four months old for me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         20                 MR. CRUZ: The other 19 and a half

         21  years so far, you know, we have all struggled

         22  silently.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine. I

         24  appreciate that.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. ORGENO: David Hysko, Joyce

          3  Cecelia Blake-Johnson, and Noreen Solomon Fitzworn.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, why don't

          5  you just come on up. And also, who is next, so

          6  people know who is being next?

          7                 MR. ORENGO: After this group will be

          8  Astin Jacobo, Diana Silverman and Alvera Brown.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Sergeant-At-Arms,

         10  just do me a favor, just move the Chairs out and let

         11  her come in there, please.

         12                 Okay, fine.

         13                 MR. ORGENO: Is David Hysko here?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, let's get

         15  started. Do you want to identify yourselves for the

         16  record please, and then go ahead.

         17                 Madame, are you going to testify? Can

         18  we call somebody else? Call the next person, please.

         19                 MR. ORENGO: Aston Jacobo. Diana

         20  Silverman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now that we have

         22  a full deck, would you just identify yourself for

         23  the record and just proceed? Go ahead.

         24                 MS. BLAKE-JOHNSON: All right. My name

         25  is Joyce Blake-Johnson. I am a registered nurse at
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          2  North Central Bronx Hospital, and I am going to read

          3  this and then I have some additional commentary to

          4  make.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am having a

          6  little problem hearing you. I am closer than you, so

          7  why don't you just talk right into the mic and go

          8  ahead. Don't be afraid, I am not going to bite you.

          9                 MS BLAKE-JOHNSON: For the past year

         10  the staff and patients have gone through traumatic

         11  times. We first faced the closure of 10-A medical

         12  unit. This resulted in the specialty clinic,

         13  HIV/AIDS clients and the eye clinic being moved

         14  there from the third floor, one on either side of

         15  the reconstructed floor. Separating these clinics

         16  from the clinic area made access difficult for

         17  clients. 11-A, formerly surgery, was closed, and

         18  reopened as a partial day hospital for psychiatric

         19  patients. No nursing staff on this unit, staff from

         20  the psychiatric unit, that is NB, 11-B and 12-B

         21  float there when medications are needed. Next came

         22  the closure of the asthma clinic, when patients to

         23  be admitted transferred to Jacobi Hospital.

         24                 In April through May 1999, we faced

         25  the reduction in census in the neonatal intensive
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          2  care unit with management indicating the need to

          3  reduce the census to ten.

          4                 Of course this reduction meant too

          5  much staff on the unit. So the staff was given an

          6  option to move to neonatal intensive care unit at

          7  Jacobi Hospital, voluntarily, of course.

          8                 In addition, in May, 6-A pediatrics

          9  began downsizing with some staff again moving to

         10  pediatrics at Jacobi Hospital, again voluntarily.

         11                 Finally, the unit closed permanently

         12  where staff moved to 9-A and 8-B. At 9-A medicine

         13  and 8-B GYN medicine and post-partum all catchall at

         14  North Central Bronx Hospital.

         15                 The most recent closure, and we

         16  believe not the last, was the rehabilitation unit on

         17  12-A, and all patients discharged or moved to Jacobi

         18  Hospital.

         19                 Again, North Central Bronx Hospital

         20  is being used as a conduit, this time by the Health

         21  and Hospitals Corporation.  Rather than funneling

         22  patients through the tunnel to Montefiore, they are

         23  being transported to Jacobi.

         24                 Many of us came to North Central

         25  Bronx in 1976, from various hospitals. In the
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          2  planning stages North Central Bronx was to replace

          3  Fordham Hospital. However, between the time it was

          4  being built in 1976, when it was forced to open, the

          5  decision to close Morrisania was May. Morrisania was

          6  staffed with both Montefiore affiliation staff and

          7  Health and Hospital Corp staff, so again there was

          8  dissention because of the need to redeploy both

          9  staff and only one hospital to do it. Rumor then

         10  began to fly that North Central Bronx Hospital would

         11  be given to Montefiore.

         12                 In 1976 we sat in at North Central

         13  Bronx Hospital night and day, until the City decided

         14  to move all Fordham staff and half the Morrisania

         15  staff to North Central Bronx. The other staff at

         16  Morrisania was transferred to Lincoln Hospital.

         17                 It appears that again the City has

         18  made an inappropriate decision, both for its clients

         19  and staff. So, action is necessary, and it may be 23

         20  years later, but we have not lost the ability to sit

         21  in, or the determination to keep this hospital to

         22  the uninsured and low-income residents in the Bronx

         23  or from wherever they may come.

         24                 In addition to that, I have personal

         25  experience. Although the powers that be have
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          2  repeatedly denied the intent to close NCB, we have

          3  witnessed the closing of pediatrics, physical rehab,

          4  orthopedics, dental, and respiratory distress asthma

          5  treatment unit.

          6                 Vital services, which the community

          7  require and utilize, were moved. The people received

          8  false promises that these services would be offered

          9  at Montefiore and Jacobi Hospital. What was actually

         10  experienced was, Montefiore patients would receive

         11  the services, while our patients were placed on a

         12  waiting list, which more often than not, their

         13  required treatment would be cancelled. Patients were

         14  kept NBO, which is nothing by mouth, for 12 to 24

         15  hours a day and still not receive a scheduled

         16  examination.

         17                 Our staffing has been depleted and

         18  dispersed to other facilities. The RNs at NCB strive

         19  to render quality of care to our patients, however,

         20  when the staffing consists of two RNs, or one RN and

         21  one PN, no nurse's aid, no clerk, no ancillary

         22  staff, so that they have a census of 21 to 24

         23  patients, we have empty beds but because of staffing

         24  we can accept just so many, we call this situation

         25  mission impossible.
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          2                 Consolidation of the hospitals have

          3  done little to help the people of our communities.

          4  Jacobi warrants this transfer by bus, that is a

          5  shuttle bus with occupancy maybe of eight to ten

          6  people. People schedule for meetings at Jacobi, the

          7  meeting might prevail at 8:00, the bus comes at

          8  8:30, so that the meeting, they are late when they

          9  get there. To a patient or a person in good health,

         10  the transportation is expensive and it really leaves

         11  us in great concern.

         12                 The people of our community deserve

         13  better.

         14                 MS. SOLOMON: My name is Noreen

         15  Solomon-Fitzworne. I am a registered professional

         16  nurse, I was employed for 19 years at North Central

         17  Bronx Hospital. Until 1994, when I suffered a

         18  stroke, a massive stroke, in 1994, I was not working

         19  anymore.

         20                 But what I want to say to you now is

         21  something that happened to me in 1995, June. I fell

         22  in my home and crashed on my knee, on the right

         23  side, because that was the side of the stroke. I

         24  crashed against the wall on my shoulder, rupturing

         25  all of the muscles in my shoulder.
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          2                 My arm was swollen and it was very,

          3  very painful. So, I went to Montefiore with my

          4  attending physician, my internist. So, I said to Dr.

          5  Stenchie (phonetic), I come to be admitted because I

          6  feel much, much pain and my arms feel swollen, and I

          7  can't move my arm. He said, you realize you only

          8  have three days of medical coverage left. I said,

          9  yes.

         10                 The second day she came back and she

         11  said to me, you have to get out because you only

         12  have one day left. I will discharge you. So, I

         13  thought it was nothing to be worried about because I

         14  was sick. She came back the next day and said, I

         15  discharged you yesterday, why are you still here?

         16  Why didn't you go on? You haven't medical coverage,

         17  don't stay here because you can't. So, I thought she

         18  was joking again.

         19                 The next day she came back, two hours

         20  later she came back and said, aren't you out of

         21  here? Why are you still in that bed? You have no

         22  medical coverage, you can't stay here. Leave. Leave.

         23  Leave.

         24                 I am sick. I am your patient, I am

         25  sick. She said, but you haven't medical coverage.
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          2  So, thank God I worked at North Central Bronx, so I

          3  called over there to the Director of Nurses, Ms.

          4  Firmarkim (phonetic), I told her what is happening.

          5  Ms. Firmarkim put down the phone, instead of

          6  answering me. The next thing I knew there was

          7  somebody standing at my bed saying he has come from

          8  North Central Bronx to transfer me over there to

          9  receive medical care. Thank God North Central Bronx

         10  was there and thank God my Director of Nurses, Ms.

         11  Firmarkim, acted promptly because otherwise I would

         12  have died with the pain.

         13                 Can you imagine a doctor telling me

         14  get out of here because you have no medical

         15  insurance? You have no coverage, you must leave,

         16  while I was obviously sick. That is what I wanted to

         17  say. Thank you for listening.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Ma'am.

         19                 MS. SILVERMAN: Yes, I came without

         20  prepared testimony but I worked in the last three

         21  years in the Caribbean Community, both Hispanic and

         22  Haitian, and my issue around the closing of North

         23  Central Bronx, and I just wanted to put this on the

         24  record, my understanding, because I work very

         25  heavily in the Caribbean communities, people have
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          2  approached me about issues of health care access in

          3  the Bronx concerning the communities that I work in,

          4  and so I want to put on the record that my

          5  understanding is that there is a large and growing

          6  Jamaican community, which I was told is middle class

          7  but does not always mean that people have health

          8  insurance coverage, because one of the issues that

          9  recently was brought up to me in a project I was

         10  working on in another borough, that even though

         11  people may be middle class, but if they are small

         12  business people, shop owners, they may not even be

         13  educated to access medical coverage and how to get

         14  it or have it. Plus the fact that you have a large

         15  Hispanic community in the Bronx that is immigrant,

         16  these are all immigrant populations that are not

         17  just your traditional Dominicans and Puerto Ricans,

         18  but Central Americans, people from, I think there is

         19  Guatamalen and other Central American populations.

         20                 Since the 1996 anti-immigrant

         21  legislation, people who come who are recent

         22  immigrants cannot get Medicaid, they are not covered

         23  by Medicaid so you may have populations, and I

         24  really think that some examining of this issue

         25  should be done for the catchment area being served
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          2  by North Central Bronx, about how many people there

          3  are not Medicaid eligible or who even may be middle

          4  class, but do not have health insurance coverage,

          5  and how much of this closing is going to impact

          6  those communities.

          7                 One of the issues raised on the

          8  proposal I just worked on within the last week by a

          9  former hospital administrator is that what will

         10  happen is that in immigrant communities there is a

         11  prioritization, so if you can't get to the hospital

         12  or you don't know how to get the medical care, the

         13  medical health insurance won't go for care. That

         14  will not be your top priority.

         15                 I own a small shop, my priority will

         16  become going to my shop, taking care of my kids but

         17  not necessarily seeking health care or taking care

         18  of my medical issues.

         19                 I think that one of the problems, I

         20  have heard a lot of statistics, a lot of interesting

         21  stuff, but I think there really has to be some

         22  attention paid, and this is a big issue, not only in

         23  the Bronx, but the City, to the large immigrant

         24  populations, and their whole perspective concerning

         25  health care and the fact that you may have a
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          2  proportion of people in that catchment area who are

          3  not Medicaid eligible and may not have any health

          4  insurance, and what will happen to them if this

          5  hospital closes. And I just wanted to be there to

          6  put on the record, because I know the Bronx has an

          7  expanding Caribbean community both, and Central

          8  American community that there is this anti-immigrant

          9  legislation that they cannot go for benefits.

         10                 So, I think that some needs

         11  assessment or some examination of this kind of

         12  impact should go into the elevation of the situation

         13  around North Central Bronx.

         14                 Plus the fact that these populations

         15  are not going to come to the table, they are not

         16  going to their elected officials, sometimes they are

         17  fearful of government so they don't make their needs

         18  readily known, and so you may not be hearing from a

         19  whole segment of the service area population simply

         20  because they don't feel empowered to make themselves

         21  known.

         22                 So, I just wanted to say that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say,

         24  in fairness, I believe that the Hospitals

         25  Association most recently put out a report exactly
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          2  on what you just said. Clearly that is why I was

          3  able to, with my colleagues in this budget, address

          4  the uninsured, and we will.

          5                 As a matter of fact, if I remember

          6  correctly, and, Judy, you are sitting there, just an

          7  HHC facility, 30 percent of those who come through

          8  HHC facilities are uninsured, just in HHC. So, that

          9  has already been done.

         10                 My problem is that everyone talks

         11  about the uninsured, you know, it is like every time

         12  you want to deal with something there is always a

         13  study. As a person who comes out of a neighborhood

         14  in North Brooklyn and as a minority, I have been so

         15  studied, that I just wish somebody would stop

         16  studying me and just give me the services and then

         17  worry about and evaluate afterward what would

         18  happen.

         19                 So, I want to be clear, there is no

         20  reason, like another law. Folks, stop, don't need no

         21  more laws, just deal with the problem at hand. I am

         22  telling you that right now in the Health and

         23  Hospitals Corporation only 30 percent of those who

         24  go to those facilities are uninsured. So, the $30

         25  million that we put into this budget, from the
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          2  tobacco settlement, of which 13 million is still out

          3  there, one of the things that this Chair and this

          4  Committee and this Council is doing is negotiating

          5  with the Administration to see how we can tap into

          6  that money to address the uninsured.

          7                 But we are addressing it,

          8  unfortunately, like I said to you, state has to also

          9  address it. And you know, I must tell you, like

         10  welfare reform, it was Bill Clinton who signed and

         11  said, oh, after I get re-elected, come back and I

         12  will undo it. I am still waiting for them to undo.

         13  And the law says you are anti-immigrant, folks,

         14  don't ask me then to try to address it because it is

         15  in a different ball game.

         16                 If the Congress does not amend and

         17  repeal what they did, whether I like it or I don't

         18  like it, I have to live it, it is the law.

         19                 So, you are right, legislation very

         20  much anti-immigrant, absolutely. Who gets affected?

         21  Like this lady who went, I guess the impression I

         22  got was at a voluntary hospital, if you didn't have

         23  after three days the coverage, the law says they

         24  can't do it. Yet, they know how to route you into an

         25  HHC facility. So, as far as I am concerned, that is
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          2  why I am committed. And I repeat. My number one

          3  priority, as Chairman of this Committee is to

          4  preserve and protect the public health system,

          5  Health and Hospitals Corporation.

          6                 What happens is not everybody has the

          7  same priority. So, I need to get more of us to make

          8  it a priority and then we start dealing with the

          9  issues at hand, and I assure you, that in that area

         10  that you are referring to, which is not only in that

         11  area, you are coming to Brooklyn and I am surprised

         12  that she is not jumping, Council Member Clarke, she

         13  consistently tells me about the Caribbean community

         14  that has been neglected in Brooklyn. So, we are

         15  aware of it, what we need to do is educate our own

         16  elected officials on the need to aggressively make

         17  sure that we put the monies in the budget that we

         18  need to provide the services. That is what is

         19  lacking.

         20                 MS. SILVERMAN: Well, I have a

         21  question. With your bill, to be able to insure the

         22  uninsured, is that going to be able to cover

         23  undocumented people?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me. I did

         25  not say I have a bill.
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          2                 MS. SILVERMAN: Well, whatever it is.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, that is my

          4  problem. Let's be clear, okay?

          5                 One, we could never, never, the

          6  government could never guarantee that every

          7  immigrant who comes to this country is going to be

          8  protected, that I can't do. But I will tell you that

          9  I will do everything within my power locally to

         10  address -- and who is the uninsured? The immigrants.

         11  Can I guarantee you that 100 percent is going to be

         12  taken care of? No. Is 13 million enough -- if the

         13  Administration agrees to spend the $13 million just

         14  in uninsured? No. Because the numbers, and watch

         15  next year with the census. Next year with the census

         16  you will see that in New York City we have lost

         17  population, people have fled the City of New York.

         18  What we have not lost is exactly what you are

         19  talking about. The immigrant is still here. But

         20  unfortunately they don't get counted again and they

         21  are not part of the census, you are not going to be

         22  reimbursed by the federal and state government to

         23  deal with those individuals.

         24                 I would love to do something, but I

         25  am in the wrong house. Maybe in the Year 2001, when
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          2  I cannot come back to City Council and I choose to

          3  run for Congress, maybe you will hear my voice in

          4  Congress, I just don't know right now, okay?

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. ORENGO: Linda Freeland Cadogan.

          7  Myra Goggins and Elizabeth Thompson.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me make sure,

          9  because we went through this last time and all of a

         10  sudden we are creamed in the press.

         11                 Let me be -- excuse me. Excuse me, I

         12  am the Chair. It is my understanding that someone at

         13  the table who will be testifying on behalf of a

         14  doctor, but does not want to say who it is, let me

         15  be clear for the record, okay? One, the fact is that

         16  I cannot stop you from, and I must tell you that

         17  with all due respect, because there are other

         18  people, you are going to have to limit your

         19  testimony, I am prepared to submit this for the

         20  record, but I want to be clear, that at no time has

         21  there been any discussion with us, at no time have

         22  we said that if a person who works for the

         23  Corporation, particularly the HHC Corporation, we

         24  went through that with the Neponsit Nursing home, if

         25  somebody came in and I got the impression by the
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          2  lawyers, and I said what are they crazy, you are

          3  going to testify and you work for the City? And they

          4  said, oh, yes, yes. And the next thing you know I

          5  got blasted because we promised protection.

          6                 I want to be clear, there is no

          7  protection. So, if you are going to testify, I want

          8  to be clear that you are not covered under the

          9  whistle-blower act. I just want to be sure on that.

         10                 Let's identify ourselves for the

         11  record, please. And honestly, I understand, but

         12  let's try to limit our prepared remarks. Go ahead,

         13  Ma'am.

         14                 MS. THOMPSON: My name is Elizabeth

         15  Thompson, and I do work for North Central Hospital,

         16  I work in the admitting office and the cap is still

         17  on. Since last night the cap is still on, okay? I am

         18  proof. I do the census every night, the cap is still

         19  on.

         20                 My thing is, I live in the area, I am

         21  a community person, I am here for the people, I am

         22  not here for political or anything, I am here

         23  because I use the facility when my grandchildren, my

         24  children needs it. When I work there and see things,

         25  it's a shame. Public hospitals is for the people.
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          2  The people pay into the system. The people are

          3  supposed to be honored and taken care of. When

          4  another facility takes a person from that facility

          5  and shoot them over to North Central, and leave them

          6  in our emergency room and want a public hospital to

          7  take care, then it's a problem.

          8                 We take care of our people as much as

          9  possible, and we want everything to be as good as

         10  possible. We work hard, we are overworked, and there

         11  is hardly no staff there that says they are trying

         12  to bear with.

         13                 We try to do it every day, and the

         14  thing is, like this lady says, I was in emergency

         15  when she almost died. North Central helped her, the

         16  way we are being -- people come in and it is a

         17  different hospital and we are turned away and then

         18  sent to public assistance, public hospital and then

         19  says, oh, we don't need this public hospital. What

         20  are we doing to our citizens? What are we doing to

         21  our nationality? As coming up in the Bronx, and I

         22  have been in the Bronx all of my life, when Fordham

         23  was there, when Morrisania was there, I was just

         24  coming up as a child. My parents and I know your

         25  parents worked for the same thing, to keep public
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          2  hospitals alive. We cannot be political when we are

          3  talking about people's health. Our children, our

          4  grandchildren will need that facility in some way or

          5  form. When we go to a park, sometimes we don't go

          6  with identification, if something happened to you

          7  today or tomorrow, they are going to take you to a

          8  public hospital, so you might not have

          9  identification, and when you are on that stretcher,

         10  some people ask for identification - do you have

         11  coverage? And I know of particular hospitals that

         12  ask for that. You cannot get off of your, run home

         13  and say oh, I got coverage, you are sick. But public

         14  hospital is for the people, and I am here to let you

         15  know that I will be fighting for the people, not

         16  because I am black, it is because I am minority, all

         17  races have a right, and that is what I am here for.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. FREELAND CADOGAN: Good afternoon,

         20  Chairman Robles and members of the Committee. My

         21  name is Linda Freeland Cadogan, and I have been a

         22  resident of the Norwood Community, in which North

         23  Central Bronx is located, for over 30 years.

         24                 When NCB opened in about 1976,

         25  another colleague and offered, and we did volunteer
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          2  our services, as a child birth educator and a health

          3  educator. We initiated and implemented prenatal and

          4  child birth education classes, Lamaze, for the

          5  patients at North Central Bronx Hospital. And as

          6  Congresswoman (sic) Eisland mentioned, there were

          7  many women, couples and residents who did tout the

          8  services provided by the OB/GYN and mid-wifery

          9  services at North Central Bronx Hospital. At one

         10  particular time they had the lowest rate of

         11  C-Section nationwide.

         12                 As a resident, I am sorry to have to

         13  be redundant and reiterate what has already been

         14  said, but we do have an ever-increasing and

         15  expanding population of minorities, different ethnic

         16  and cultural backgrounds, whether they are Irish,

         17  Albanian, Mexican, Russian immigrants, and some we

         18  have are the new inflexive immigrants from Kosovo,

         19  and we are trying to deal with them on a community

         20  level, not only with housing, but with health issues

         21  and to empower them, as you have heard, that a lot

         22  of immigrants are intimidated by the system,

         23  democratic, socialist or whatever it is.

         24                 At another point, I recalled North

         25  Central Bronx had a couple of rooms in the emergency
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          2  room earmarked for victims survivors of rape, and as

          3  a member of the Bronx women against rape, as a

          4  counselor, when I am called to come up to the

          5  hospital, we are graciously met by the staff who is

          6  there who followed the procedure for gathering the

          7  evidence necessary for later litigation, as well as

          8  helping the victim survivor overcome the trauma and

          9  to make the transition through the legal and medical

         10  systems onto a recovery.

         11                 I think that it is really inhumane

         12  and insane to have people trapse over to the east

         13  campus to Jacobi when we have a well-establishing

         14  function and vital hospital in our midst, and I am

         15  very vexed at the plight of North Central Bronx

         16  Hospital, and I will work, as you have suggested, on

         17  the legislation that is present at hand.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         20                 Ma'am.

         21                 MS. GOGGINS: Thank you, Mr. Robles. I

         22  am Myra Goggins. I am a resident of Norwood also. I

         23  am actually a neighbor of Linda Cadogan, I am happy

         24  to see her here. I am the President of the Northwest

         25  Bronx Community and Clergy Coalition, and we have
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          2  been asked to testify here today.

          3                 Before I start, I just wanted to say

          4  that I believe the members of the Bronx Delegation

          5  are with Ms. Hillary Rodham Clinton this afternoon

          6  in the Bronx at some event that she is listening at,

          7  so that is where they are. And I believe that

          8  Councilwoman Provenzano might be Mr. Cruz'

          9  Councilwoman, he said he was from St. Lucy's.

         10                 We would like to go on the record

         11  also as to saying that we fully support the

         12  attaining union jobs and jobs of all kinds in our

         13  neighborhood and at North Central Bronx. We have

         14  always supported people who needed work. There are a

         15  lot of members of our community who are employed at

         16  the hospital and we are happy to be able to support

         17  them in a place where there is a need for people to

         18  work and to have jobs, and we have always pushed on

         19  other projects, sometimes the unions are saying you

         20  have to have a project because we need jobs, and we

         21  say, yes, but we need jobs in the right places doing

         22  the right kind of work and that is what it is.

         23                 I am here today, and I know this is a

         24  little unusual, at the request of an attending

         25  physician, who is in a very good position to make
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          2  certain suggestions, to give some information also,

          3  which may on the face of it seem contradictory to

          4  some of the information that was provided by Health

          5  and Hospitals today, and I am very happy to hear

          6  that what has been said today will be looked at very

          7  closely as to whether or not it really has been

          8  implemented, when it has been implemented and to

          9  what degree, how much waiting period has there been,

         10  which has caused problems, or whatever. Because I

         11  would not speak for anyone if I hadn't seen for

         12  myself, heard from myself, discussed it with this

         13  particular individual as well as many other health

         14  professionals who work both in Monte and in North

         15  Central Bronx, and I have gone and seen the hospital

         16  functioning, the emergency services, I had not been

         17  there unfortunately in some time, about eight years,

         18  and really I was impressed by the way, especially

         19  the emergency room, had been set up and the services

         20  that were provided and I would like to also say that

         21  actually emergency services have increased at North

         22  Central Bronx, rather than decreased, even though

         23  Mr. Marcos said that trauma is down perhaps

         24  Citywide, but the need is there in North Central

         25  Bronx.
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          2                 May I just make one point? You

          3  mentioned there are state issues here. We are very

          4  aware that we deal on state, federal, local levels.

          5  We just want to point out that there is an

          6  application being made for one single certificate of

          7  need for both Jacobi and North Central Bronx, which

          8  you I am sure know that this is a death knell for

          9  North Central Bronx, if there is no certificate of

         10  need we will never be able to have oversight as to

         11  what is going on in North Central Bronx, vis-a-vis

         12  Jacobi.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I will repeat.

         14  Look, and I know sometimes you start off by being a

         15  gentleman, and as you can see, when I have hearings

         16  I don't have a time thing, but the fact is, that

         17  people have to set priorities, because that is the

         18  way the system works, and my frustration is, we had

         19  a budget, and I must tell you, I am very frustrated,

         20  because during this whole process, never, never once

         21  was this facility mentioned. I happened to stumble

         22  upon it by complete outside person bringing it to my

         23  attention, and I did what I was supposed to do as

         24  Chairman of the Committee, inform all of my

         25  colleagues.
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          2                 Now, I am ready to make it a priority

          3  of this Committee, but then I need the Bronx

          4  Delegation to similarly work with me to make it a

          5  priority. Because when the chips are down, I need

          6  three of the five delegations.

          7                 Now, I may look good, I may sound

          8  good, but I am human like you and I, for one, will

          9  never sit there and give you the wrong impression

         10  when the reality is I am prepared to address health

         11  issues as the Chairman of the Committee. But I am

         12  not going to carry the cross of the City of New York

         13  alone. If we are together, if we work together, then

         14  everything is possible.

         15                 North Central will never close if we

         16  start sitting, talking, sharing and giving the

         17  information like you said. This is the first time I

         18  have heard about this application, I have never

         19  heard it before, even in the meetings.

         20                 We had a meeting to prepare myself

         21  for this, this is the first time I have mentioned

         22  it, I am not saying you, and I appreciate that.

         23                 MS. GOGGINS: Well, I am glad we are

         24  bringing it up.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.
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          2                 MS. GOGGINS: You know, this is not y

          3  job either.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: How do you want

          5  me, from Brooklyn to know an application in the

          6  Bronx when I am from Brooklyn?

          7                 MS. GOGGINS: Exactly.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And how am I

          9  supposed to know there is an application in Queens

         10  or in Staten Island? I mean, folks, I said it

         11  clearly to the president, I always look up there

         12  because I am a firm believer that I am the resident

         13  of the people, but the people don't mean all of the

         14  people, it means 140,000 that went to the polls, got

         15  me elected and I got to do my job here. Now, I am

         16  not against you, because if I was against you I

         17  wouldn't have this hearing.

         18                 This resolution was just introduced

         19  two weeks ago.

         20                 MS. GOGGINS: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This is

         22  summertime, everybody is on vacation. I am here. But

         23  with all due respect, believe me, we will address

         24  the issues.

         25                 You see that meeting with the Borough
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          2  President, he is going to get it.

          3                 MS. GOGGINS: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You see the

          5  things about if we work together with unions, we

          6  will work through with you.

          7                 MS. GOGGINS: Hopefully the community

          8  will be at these meetings and there will be more

          9  community representation on the civilian advisory

         10  board.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I would like to

         12  see the community advisory board members actively

         13  defending the hospital that they are appointed both

         14  by the Borough President and the Executive Director

         15  of the Hospital to be the people's representatives,

         16  that is the community people.

         17                 If the system says that is who I work

         18  with, it is like the Board of Education, don't ask

         19  me to open up a school when you elect nine local

         20  school board members, and under the law they are the

         21  ones, not me.

         22                 So, yes, politicians, elected

         23  officials, believe me, I am just as frustrated as

         24  you are, because some of us really take our jobs

         25  serious. But you know it's numbers, and I am the
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          2  Majority Whip of the Council, for me to pass, or the

          3  Speaker to pass anything, I need to make sure we

          4  have 26 votes. That is all I am asking, I am not

          5  against you. But please, don't expect that this

          6  chair and this Committee is going to save you. We

          7  are going to survive if we work together, okay?

          8                 MS. GOGGINS: We understand the

          9  process, sir. We have been through it on many

         10  issues.

         11                 Thank you very much. Thank you, Ms.

         12  Clarke, for being here to listen.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I am a senior

         14  member, I am a ranking member on Health --

         15                 MS. GOGGINS: Right, I understand.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And I am also

         17  chair of Mental Health so I am up on the issues.

         18                 MS. GOGGINS: Right.

         19                 We have a few suggestions that were

         20  made by this physician. We appreciate the fact that

         21  Jacobi's services are being upgraded and at the

         22  tertiary level and that sort of thing. We are saying

         23  that we need our community hospitals. There are

         24  certain aspects of primary health care that need to

         25  be dealt with in the community.
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          2                 We don't need high-tech medical care

          3  necessarily all the time at North Central Bronx, but

          4  we do need at least the services that are provided

          5  in any rural community hospital, where you bring a

          6  child in and a child can be treated for asthma or

          7  pneumonia or dehydration or something of that

          8  nature, where it is not triple bypass or anything

          9  like that. These things have been removed from us,

         10  and I am glad that the logistics have been addressed

         11  here today as to the distances that are involved and

         12  that lack of transportation and the discouragement

         13  that parents have received when they know that their

         14  child cannot get continuing care at their local

         15  facility. And I concur with what everyone said, that

         16  NCB has always been a jewel of a hospital, and I

         17  wish Mr. Robles could stay, because we would like to

         18  invite him and yourself and the members of the

         19  Health Committee and really all of the Council

         20  Members who will have to vote on any resolution to

         21  come and to see the population that is being served,

         22  the density of the population, the demographics and

         23  to know what is involved here.

         24                 We now have been asked to get in on

         25  it, we are ten neighborhoods all of which really
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          2  utilize the services of NCB. Our south affiliate is

          3  of course in the mix of it. We were promised, it was

          4  said that Fordham and Morrisania would be replaced

          5  by NCB. We have all lived through this, I have grown

          6  up in the Bronx.

          7                 So that we really now, when we see

          8  that the unions haven't been able to carry this on

          9  their own for whatever reason, that certainly Health

         10  and Hospitals doesn't appear to be concerned about

         11  our community, their bottom line seems to be

         12  budgetary, not providing their mission statement

         13  primary care to the community, the underserved. So,

         14  we are getting in on the fight and, you know, our

         15  resources are limited but we will do what we can to

         16  make sure that this hospital does not close.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: You know your

         18  representative for the hospital was here this

         19  morning, June Eisland.

         20                 MS. GOGGINS: Yes. We have been here

         21  all day.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Well, I

         23  suggest that you meet with your representative and

         24  the Bronx Delegation and the Bronx Borough

         25  President. When we had the issue of Coney Island
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          2  Hospital to be sold or to be privatized, it was

          3  Brooklyn Delegation that made it a priority

          4  including the member in whose district it was to

          5  give us what all the issues were so that we would be

          6  able to understand what the battle ground was going

          7  to be in terms of that sale.

          8                 I think what my colleague and chair

          9  was telling you is that the priority, it was the

         10  same Council Member, Eisland, and the Bronx

         11  Delegation that made sure Yankee Stadium was not

         12  moved, and carried the fight for it. They recognize

         13  and they know more intimately, on a day-to-day

         14  basis, what the needs of the Bronx is in terms of

         15  health care at this time. We all recognize the

         16  changing health care environment, and we are also

         17  trying to understand what these new networks are

         18  supposed to be about. Always it is difficult to

         19  remove services from one neighborhood to another,

         20  because we recognize that the poor families, even

         21  transportation becomes a problem if programs get

         22  relocated in other places.

         23                 I don't think that my colleague was

         24  trying to turn you off, and I don't think it is

         25  because he didn't care why he had to leave.
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          2                 MS. GOGGINS: I didn't mean to --

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: No, I know

          4  that, I am just trying to explain to you, because

          5  there is no one more committed to public health than

          6  is Council Member Robles. But, again, I hope you

          7  heard him when he said work through the Bronx

          8  Delegation, be able to figure out with the Bronx

          9  Delegation the needs and the priority of this

         10  institution for which you come to testify today. And

         11  we are all hearing you, it is going on the record,

         12  and the record will be analyzed. There are advocates

         13  here, as there are residents here, and it is true

         14  when he said the community boards, we work

         15  extensively with the community boards. We have been

         16  visiting public hospitals, we have done a number of

         17  them already, just looking at and making sure that

         18  all of our hearings are not held here at City Hall,

         19  but in the communities where the services are

         20  provided. I made sure that he came to Kings County

         21  Hospital, because I am the rep for Kings County

         22  Hospital, and while we are undergoing this

         23  rebuilding of Kings County, I wanted to make sure

         24  that we could see on-site what is going to be in

         25  that institution.
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          2                 I took a lot of criticism from my own

          3  community, with the rebuilding of Kings County, that

          4  had some 1,200 beds and recognizing that the health

          5  care environment is going, and know that the census

          6  at Kings County was never over 600 over a period of

          7  time. We recognized that we could work with the

          8  erosion or with the closing and we had to make sure

          9  that we recognize that there is SUNY Downstate in

         10  front of Kings County that had a number of beds and

         11  that we did not want to be competing with each other

         12  but complimenting each other as institutions to

         13  strengthen Central Brooklyn and we made certain

         14  decisions about that. But we worked closely with the

         15  health care, unions were there, we helped them to

         16  fight to save jobs that needed to be saved, and we

         17  made sure there was no duplication, that the

         18  physicians at SUNY that was being paid for being at

         19  both places at the same time, that that did not

         20  occur.

         21                 So, I am encouraging you and all of

         22  those who testified here today, who brought the

         23  attention to my colleague, Council Member Eisland,

         24  to now take it to the entire delegation, come down

         25  with a plan that you want the chair to carry and the
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          2  rest of us in the City Council to promote on your

          3  behalf.

          4                 MS. GOGGINS: I would just like to

          5  add, several years ago the Coalition had a meeting

          6  with Senator D'Amato, and at that time there were

          7  just the rumors of the closing of Coney Island

          8  Hospital and we brought this to his attention, and

          9  stood up for Coney Island Hospital at that time,

         10  because we know if you can do it to Coney Island,

         11  you can do it to Brooklyn, you can do it to the

         12  Bronx, and we are not for any closing at any

         13  hospital.

         14                 I would just like to take a few more

         15  minutes to just present a few of the points that

         16  were not made elsewhere that are in this particular

         17  testimony and to mention that attached to the

         18  testimony of the physician is a draft of a working

         19  paper that was drawn up by HHC in 1997, which

         20  emphasizes the positives of North Central Bronx, and

         21  apparently the positives, the women's care, the

         22  rehab, the pediatrics, instead of being developed

         23  and encouraged, are exactly the things that are

         24  being diminished, and they also made the suggestion

         25  that a greater emphasis be placed on the
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          2  Spanish-speaking population which is the fastest

          3  growing population all over, as well as in our

          4  neighborhood and that was not addressed.

          5                 Also, someone mentioned this morning

          6  that we didn't really need a public relations person

          7  but a community relations person. There is no longer

          8  a public relations person and that is a really vital

          9  instrument of getting the information out to me, not

         10  only going to the community and finding out what

         11  they are doing and how you can be involved in their

         12  work, and we have worked with NCB to have them come

         13  to a certain of our functions, but to let the

         14  population know the good PR, like Monte does all the

         15  time, what services are out there and which can be

         16  provided, rather than the opposite.

         17                 I don't know if anyone has mentioned

         18  that the staff was actually diminished from 2,700 to

         19  1,200 over the course of two years. And even if you

         20  know nothing about the running of an institution,

         21  you know that it cannot function at any level

         22  working with such a staff, and as a result of that,

         23  even though the staff has worked very diligently to

         24  keep up the good reputation, little things have to

         25  go by the wayside and things get dingy and drab, and
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          2  handpainted signs and paper gowns instead of

          3  laundered cotton gowns, when people see this

          4  happening they know something is going on, and they

          5  get nervous, and they say, well, maybe the care

          6  isn't as good as it used to be, what have you. So,

          7  by eroding these little things, they are also

          8  eroding the faith of the community in the hospital.

          9  And you can do anything with statistics and this can

         10  be programmed to failure, when they mentioned, as I

         11  said, that there is a diminution of trauma. Well, in

         12  our particular section, not even in the whole

         13  precinct, we have one of the largest precincts, but

         14  in our particular section where the hospital is

         15  located, we have increased traumas, we have

         16  increased homicides, and the area, the causes of

         17  death for the area, as compared with the rest of the

         18  City, is primarily AIDS, or homicides, liver

         19  disease, pneumonia, so it shows the kind of

         20  population that we have here that is so at risk and

         21  really needs these services.

         22                 The networking has been described

         23  here today, and, again, as I said to Mr. Robles, I

         24  am glad that everything is going to be looked at

         25  very carefully, to the structure of how the network
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          2  is being handled because apparently 85, 90, 95

          3  percent of the administrative heads are in Jacobi,

          4  they are not cited at North Central Bronx, there is

          5  no way they could know hands-on the daily basis what

          6  is needed there.

          7                 The heads of the medical departments

          8  are also at Jacobi. They do not have, as you know, a

          9  separate executive director. That was a big issue,

         10  is there a conflict. And there was no, as of this

         11  morning, no one knew of any site director. So, when

         12  Mr. Marcos mentioned, I didn't catch the last name

         13  but it was a female named Barbara, I don't know if

         14  she is an employee who has been promoted, or she is

         15  the site director, but I mean these are the kinds of

         16  things that really have to be looked at. You know,

         17  it is just an impossible situation, the staff is

         18  demoralized, they are doing their best, there are

         19  maybe two to three people at nights to clean up the

         20  whole building, there are no persons to transport

         21  people from one area to the next. There are long

         22  waits. So, all of this has an effect on the staff,

         23  on the community. The experienced people are leaving

         24  to go elsewhere, are going to Lincoln Hospital, I

         25  believe that is where the public relations person
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          2  went, long-term radiology people are going elsewhere

          3  because they are looking to protect their jobs.

          4                 So, it is built in prescription for

          5  failure if it keeps up this way, and I know Mr.

          6  Robles said you are talking to the converted and all

          7  of this kind of thing and you have to talk to your

          8  delegation, and I don't know how strong an excuse

          9  that is for their not being here today, they are

         10  meeting with Hillary. But we will certainly be

         11  keeping up the pressure on them, we don't give up.

         12                 I thank you for listening. We do have

         13  just a few good suggestions. We don't want to take

         14  anything from Jacobi or from Lincoln, but there are

         15  certain things that can be done at NCB and utilized

         16  as positive, and if you would ever see the renovated

         17  pediatric ward that is sitting there locked up,

         18  dark, with the key thrown away, it would break your

         19  heart.

         20                 We are asking that besides rehiring

         21  these administrative persons who would know what to

         22  do for the hospital and deal with the community as

         23  to their needs and to publicize and to strengthen

         24  the strengths and perhaps send the weaknesses

         25  elsewhere, certainly to bring back the rehab ward.
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          2  There is an empty floor, you could have a geriatric

          3  facility. We have a very aged population that would

          4  need help. We could create a nursing facility. I

          5  couldn't believe that we didn't have a detox when I

          6  went to the hospital. There is no detox unit at all.

          7  We have a high substance abuse problem in our area.

          8                 You know, there are so many things

          9  that can be done and we are looking for help from

         10  the committee, from the Council, and this is

         11  submitted as written testimony, we just want to make

         12  sure that it gets some kind of review, and well, I

         13  will just take it from there.

         14                 Thank you for listening.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Are there any

         16  other witnesses? Anyone else who wants to testify?

         17                 Seeing and hearing no other, the

         18  hearing is adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 4:25 p.m.)
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